
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

SUPERIOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP HALL 
3040 N. PROSPECT, SUPERIOR TOWNSHIP, MI 48198 

FEBRUARY 18, 2025 
7:00 p.m. 
AGENDA 

1. CALL TO ORDER
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3. ROLL CALL
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
5. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION
6. SUPERVISOR COMMENTS
7. PRESENTATIONS

8. CONSENT AGENDA 
A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

1. December 12, 2024, Special Meeting (approve with edits)
2. December 16, 2024, Regular Meeting (approve with edits)
3. January 21, 2025, Regular Meeting

B. REPORTS 
1. Supervisor Report
2. Departmental Reports: Building Department, Fire Department, Parks 

Commission Minutes, Sheriff’s Report, Utility Department, Assessing 
Department, Planning and Zoning Department (January 2025)

3. Accounting Report
4. Monthly Financial Reports, December 2024

C. COMMUNICATIONS 
1. C2PST
2. John Mackson Letter
3. Treasurer Lewis “Thank You” Letter
4. Answer to Dave Phillips Letter to the Board
5. EEOC Closure Notice
6. Land Preservation Event
7. Garrett’s Space Letters

9. ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA
10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. Ordinance No. 159, Amending Danbury Park Manor Tax Exemption, Second 
Reading

B. Resolution 2025-02, Approve Appointments to the Board of Review

Page 1 of 314



11. NEW BUSINESS 
A. Resolution 2025-07, Resolution to Approve Superior Township Appointment to the 

Planning Commission
B. Resolution 2025-08, Resolution to Approve Amended Lease Agreement Between 

Superior Charter Township Parks and Recreation Commission and Willow Run 
Acres Regarding Clayhill Community Farm and Garden

C. Resolution 2025-9, Resolution to Approve the Purchase of Laptops for Election 
Precinct Use

D. Resolution 2025-10, Resolution to Approve the Agreement for Rental Housing 
Certification Consulting Services

E. Resolution 2025-11, Resolution to Permit the Michigan Department of Natural 
Resources (MDNR) to Proceed with a Public Hearing and Investigate the Need for 
Prescribed Hunting and Firearm Controls in Superior Township

F. Resolution 2025-12, Resolution to Accept Bid with PPM Tree Service and Arbor 
Care, LLC for Removal of Trees on Geddes Road Between Andover and Wexford 
for Future Non-Motorized Path Construction

G. Discussion Regarding Garrett’s Space Conservation Easement and Possible Deed 
Restriction (additional documents will be submitted at the table)

H. Motion to renumber Resolution 2024-58, entitled, “Approve the Updated Policy 
and Procedure for the Use and Operation of Township Pool Vehicles, Township-
Owned Vehicles, and the Use of Private Vehicles for Township Business” to 
2024-58A, and the Resolution entitled “Adopting General Appropriations Act 
Millage Rates for 2025” is renumbered 2024-58B.

I. Motion to renumber Resolution 2024-59, entitled “Approving Garrett Space 
Development Agreement”, to 2024-59A, and the Resolution entitled “Adopting 
General Appropriations Act: 2025 Budgets for All Funds” is renumbered 
2024-59B.

J. Motion to renumber Resolution 2024-60, entitled “Establishing and Appointing 
Members to the Zoning Ordinance Rewrite Steering Committee”, to 2024-60A, 
and the Resolution entitled “Reporting of Township Controller to the Township 
Clerk” is renumbered 2024-60B.

K. Motion to renumber Resolution 2024-61, entitled “Approving Purchase of Heavy-
Duty Equipment for the Utility Department”, to 2024-61A, and the Resolution 
entitled “Approving the Purchase of Fire Nozzles and Appliances Using FEMA 
Assistance to Firefighters Grant Funds” is renumbered 2024-61B.

L. Motion to renumber Resolution 2024-62, entitled “Sale of Trailer-Mounted 
Generator for the Utility Department”, to 2024-62A, and the Resolution entitled 
“Allocating Remaining ARPA Funds” is renumbered 2024-62B.

M. Motion to renumber Resolution 2024-63, entitled “Approving the Replacement 
Fence for Prospect Pointe Lift Station”, to 2024-63A, and the Resolution entitled 
“Affirming the Salary of the Clerk” is renumbered 2024-63B.

N. Motion to renumber Resolution 2024-64, entitled “Accepting the Michigan 
Natural Resources Trust Fund Grant Agreement for the Superior Greenway 
Nature Preserve Acquisition”, to 2024-64A, and the Resolution entitled
“Affirming the Salary of the Treasurer” is renumbered 2024-64B.

Page 2 of 314



12. BILLS FOR PAYMENT AND RECORD OF DISBURSEMENTS 
13. PLEA’S AND PETITIONS
14. ADJOURNMENT

Angela Robinson, Clerk, Superior Township, 3040 N. Prospect, Superior Township, MI 48198 
Telephone: 734-482-6099; Email: arobinson@superior-twp.org 

Page 3 of 314

mailto:Email:%20arobinson@superior-twp.org


This Page Is Intentionally Left Blank 

Page 4 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 

SPECIAL MEETING 

DECEMBER 12, 2024 

APPROVED MINUTES

PAGE 1 

1. CALL TO ORDER

The special meeting of the Charter Township of Superior Board was called to order by the
Supervisor Emily Dabish Yahkind at 6:00 p.m. on December 12, 2024, at the Superior Charter
Township Hall, 3040 North Prospect, Superior Charter Township, Michigan.

2. ROLL CALL

The members present were Supervisor Emily Dabish Yahkind, Clerk Angela Robinson,
Treasurer Lisa Lewis, Trustee Dana Greene, Trustee Brenda Mckinney and Trustee Ken
Schwartz.

Absent: Trustee Sarah Devereaux

3. ADOPTION OF AGENDA

It was moved by Supervisor Dabish Yahkind and supported by Trustee Ken Schwartz to adopt
the agenda.

The motion carried by unanimous vote. 

4. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION

A. CITIZEN COMMENTS

• Bernice Lindke commended Supervisor Dabish Yahkind for revising the November 20,
2024, budget and preventing significant depletion of the undesignated fund balance. She
suggested the 1.0 FTE supervisor assistant position be compensated similarly to other
assistants. Lindke noted that during her tenure, an assistant was brought on as needed, and
neither Supervisor Schwartz nor Mcfarlane had a full-time deputy or assistant. Lindke also
addressed the financial commitment of the Rock Property, with annual principal and interest
payments of $190,000, and emphasized the need to balance this expense with benefits to the
community. She also urged attention to the Tree Preservation Fund.

• Rickey Harding, Supervisor of the Superior Township Utilities Department, addressed
income discrepancies between regular employees and other staff, noting that a promised
3.5% increase was impacted by budget issues beyond their control. He requested that trustees
visit the department to better understand how utility funds, such as water and sewer tap fees,
are managed, stressing that the utility department should be separated from other budget
categories. Harding also suggested exploring union representation for employees.

Page 5 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 

SPECIAL MEETING 

DECEMBER 12, 2024 

APPROVED MINUTES 

PAGE2 

5. PUBLIC HEARING ON TRUTH AND T AXTION

It was moved by Supervisor Yahkind and supported by Treasurer Lewis to open the public
hearing.

• Bernice Lindke resident addressed several financial matters, starting with the Rock Property
budget, which exceeds $189,000. She suggested directing the equity from this funding to the
Parks and Recreation Department to benefit the community, like the previous use of ARP A
funds. Lindke also emphasized the need to review the Tree Preservation Fund and track its
allocations.

Lindke discussed the importance of having a controller who can educate the board on the Law
Enforcement Fund, which currently holds nearly $3 million in undesignated funds, and help
the board better understand and utilize these resources.

Additionally, Lindke proposed creating an administrative cost allowance or cost center to
allocate administrative expenses across other funds, potentially alleviating pressure on the
general fund. She also noted the township controller's pay rate and suggested that previous
board spending on pathways should be considered when evaluating employee salary increases
and potential wage cuts.

A. RESOLUTION 2024-58, ADOPTING GENERAL APPROPRIATIONS ACT

MILLAGE RATES FOR 2025

The resolution was moved by Trustee McKinney and supported by Trustee Schwartz.

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 

WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING GENERAL APPROPRIATIONS ACT 

MILLAGE RATES FOR2025 

RESOLUTION NUMBER:2024-58 

DATE: NOVEMBER 18, 2024 

WHEREAS: The Charter Township of Superior Board of Trustees has carefully 
reviewed the Township's current and projected financial needs, and 

WHEREAS: The Board of Trustee's recognizes its responsibility to the citizens of the 

Charter Township of Superior to carefully monitor the Township funds and provide necessary 

revenue to offset proposed expenditures, and 

Page 6 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 

SPECIAL MEETING 

DECEMBER 12, 2024 

APPROVED MINUTES 

PAGE3 

WHEREAS: The auditors suggested that millage rates for revenue should be by 
resolution. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Charter Township of Superior 
Board of Trustees adopts the millages on the attachment by Resolution. 

TAXABLE MILLAGE TOTAL TAX REVENUE 
VALUE 

GENERAL 

REG $897,591,028 0.7974 $715,739 

IFT $25,954,008 0.3987 $10,348 

FIRE 
Voter-Approved 

REG $897,591,028 3.4933 $3,135,555 

IFT $25,954,008 1.7466 $45,331 

LAW Voter-Approved 

REG $897,591,028 2.7447 $2,463,618 

IFT $25,954,008 1.3723 $35,617 

CERTIFICATION STATEMENT 

I, Angela Robinson, the duly qualified Clerk of the Charter Township of Superior, Washtenaw 

County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution 

adopted at a special meeting of the Charter Township of Superior Board held on December 12, 

2024 and that public notices of said meeting were given pursuant to Act No. 267, Public Acts of 

Michigan, 1976, as amended. 

4n�t&:.f�erk 
Roll Call: 

Ayes: Supervisor Dabish Yahkind 

Trustee Greene 

Treasurer Lewis 

Trustee McKinney 

Clerk Robinson 

Trustee Schwartz 

Nays: None. 

Date Certified 

Page 7 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 

SPECIAL MEETING 

DECEMBER 12, 2024 

APPROVED MINUTES

PAGE4 

The motion carried by unanimous vote. 

B. RESOLUTION 2024-59, ADOPTING GENERAL APPROPRIATIONS ACT: 2025

BUDGETS FOR ALL FUNDS

The resolution was moved by Trustee McKinney and supported by Trustee Schwartz. 

• Supervisor Dabish Yahkind addressed concerns regarding the current budget, explaining that
the initial proposal was not intended to impact the anticipated 3.5% raise for staff. However,
during the end-of-year adjustments, it was discovered that the general fund reserve was
significantly lower than expected-around $300,000.00 instead of the projected $1.6 million.
This discrepancy raised serious concerns, especially considering that the November budget
presented a $400,000.00 deficit spending, which was deemed unsustainable. Despite efforts to
balance the budget, the township continues to face deficit spending.  Supervisor Dabish
Yahkind highlighted significant cost increases, including a 14.1 % rise in healthcare and a 38%
increase in liability insurance due to ongoing claims, which have not been fully reflected in the
budget. With the annual tax base growth limited to 2-4%, and 4 7%of the general fund already
allocated to salaries and associated health services, there is limited flexibility for a contingency
fund or public programming. In September, the township controller indicated adjustments to
the general fund reserve would be necessary, and it is now projected that the reserve, which
was $1.6 million last year, will be closer to $300,000 by year-end.
The proposed budget still reflects a $50,000.00 deficit, which will rise to approximately
$60,000.00 once healthcare costs are fully accounted for. The 2% employee raises align with
federal employee increases. In collaboration with the controller, Supervisor Dabish Yahkind
explored creative solutions, such as adjusting utility billing, rent, and building costs across
departments, to manage the budget and stabilize reserves. While the spending on various
special projects contributed to the current financial position, these efforts have helped mitigate
further strain, resulting in the budget proposal presented.

• The controller, available by phone, outlined the following key points: At the beginning of
2023, the projected deficit was $1.8 million, with a current projection of $1.3 million deficit,
reserves are expected to total $500,000 by year-end. The healthcare savings plan will increase
from $300 to $316. Healthcare premiums and liability insurance have risen by 38.8%.
Significant spending has occurred on special projects, as well as large increases for some
employees and trustees, including benefits and certifications previously not provided by the
township. The education bonus, which affects staff salaries, will remain unchanged. He
clarified that the budget does not reflect increases of the insurance, and the situation may be
more severe than previously projected.

• Trustee McKinney confirmed that the current balance of the general fund at the end of the year
stands at $500,000, following projected losses. Trustee McKinney also inquired whether any
cuts could help reduce the deficit.

Page 8 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 

SPECIAL MEETING 

DECEMBER 12, 2024 

APPROVED MINUTES 

PAGES 

• The Controller advised that a potential area for cost reduction would be to reassess future
hires.

• Trustee McKinney recommended that the board implement a freeze on hiring and salary
increases, except for fire, for all salaries affecting the general fund until a comprehensive
evaluation could be completed, noting the current township deficit.

• Clerk Robinson reminded the board of the budget deadline, December 15, 2024.
• Trustee Dana Greene acknowledged COLA expense cuts and questioned why non-union

employees, despite the Utilities Department's independent operation, have been treated
uniformly. He explained that the Fire Department's 5% raise, compared to the 2% for other
employees, was due to their contract employee status. He inquired about the $680,000 in grant
funds, which was explained to be receivable for the pathways project.

• Trustee Schwartz underscored the importance of effectively managing expenditures. On the
revenue side. He explained the tax base experienced a 7.2% growth. Additionally, the
completion of Woodside Village and Prospect Pointe West should contribute approximately
$300,000 to the tax roll, with expectations for continued growth throughout the year.

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 

WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING GENERAL APPROPRIATIONS ACT: 2025 

BUDGETS FOR ALL FUNDS 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2024-59 

DATE: DECEMBER 12, 2024 

WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Superior Board of Trustees has carefully reviewed 
the Township's current and projected financial needs, and 

WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Superior Board of Trustees recognizes its 
responsibility to the citizens of Superior Township to carefully monitor the Township funds and 
provide for the needs of the Township, and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Charter Township of Superior has carefully 
considered the projected revenues and expenditures for the coming year, and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Charter Township of Superior Board 
of Trustee's adopt the proposed budgets for the 2025 calendar year: the General Fund Budget by 
activity dated December 12, 2024, the Fire fund Budget dated December 12, 2024, the Building Fund 
budget dated December 12, 2024, the Law Fund budget dated December 12,2024, the Park Fund 
Budget dated December 12, 2024, the Utility Fund Budget dated December 12, 2024, The Streetlight 
Budget dated December 12, 2024, and the Side Street Maintenance fund budget dated December 12, 
2024. The Board agrees to approve the following table: 

Page 9 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 

SPECIAL MEETING 

DECEMBER 12, 2024 

APPROVED MINUTES

PAGE6 

Fund Revenues Expenditures 
General $2,776,004 $2,425,485 
Fire $3,462,486 $2,879,002 
Law $2,980,769 $2,124,033 
Enforcement 
Building $571,100 $387,532 
Parks $437,538 $522,538 
Streetlights $26,500 $26,500 
Side Street $93,700 $93,700 
Maint. 
Amer. Rescue $703,413 $703,413 
Plan 
Utilities $5,144,861 $4,879,800 
Legal Defense -0- 20,000 

CERTIFICATION STATEMENT 

Transfers Appropriations 
$412,338 $61,819 
$583484 -0-

$856,736 -0-

$183,568 -0-
-0- $85,000 
-0- -0-
-0- -0-

-0- -0-

$265,061 -0-
-0- $20,000 

I, Angela Robinson, the duly qualified Clerk of the Charter Township of Superior, Washtenaw 

County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution 

adopted at a special meeting of the Charter Township of Superior Board held on December 12, 

2024 and that public notices of said meeting were given pursuant to Act No. 267, Public Acts of 

Michigan, 1976, as amended. 

Roll Call: 
Ayes: Supervisor Dabish Yahkind 

Trustee Greene 
Treasurer Lewis 
Trustee McKinney 
Clerk Robinson 
Trustee Schwartz 

Nays: None. 

The motion carried by unanimous vote. 

/4· /4'·£,/ 
Date Certified 

Page 10 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 

SPECIAL MEETING 

DECEMBER 12, 2024 

APPROVED MINUTES

PAGE7 

6. ADJOURNMENT

It was moved by Clerk Robinson supported by Treasurer Lewis that the meeting be adjourned.
The motion carried and the meeting adjourned at 6:56p.m.

Respectfully submitted, 

Angela Robinson, Clerk Emily Dabish Yahkind, Supervisor 

Page 11 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 16, 2024 
APPROVED MINUTES 
PAGE 1 

1. CALL TO ORDER

The regular meeting of the Charter Township of Superior Board of Trustees was called to order
by Supervisor Emily Dabish Yahkind at 7:00 p.m. on December 16, 2024, at the Superior
Charter Township Hall, 3040 North Prospect, Superior Charter Township, Michigan.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Supervisor Dabish Yahkind led the assembly in the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. ROLL CALL

The board members present included Supervisor Emily Dabish Yahkind, Clerk Angela
Robinson, Treasurer Lisa Lewis, Trustee Sarah Devereaux, Trustee Dana Greene, Trustee
Brenda McKinney, and Trustee Ken Schwartz.

Absent: None

4. ADOPTION OF AGENDA

A motion was made by Trustee McKinney and supported by Trustee Devereaux to adopt the
agenda.

The motion carried unanimously.

5. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION

A. CITIZEN COMMENTS

• Brenda Baker (Ashton Court) provided an update from the Committee to Promote

Superior Township. She discussed communication updates, including an annual letter

and a monthly infographic available to the public. She highlighted the importance of

social media engagement for township alerts.

• YDL Library Team values their partnership with Superior Township and gave an

overview of the services, infrastructure, and activities they provide for the community.

Some recent developments include a new interactive children's play area at the

Superior branch and a full-time social worker to be split between the Superior and

Michigan A venue branches.

• Mrs. Muhammad raised concerns about retaining the same auditing firm for over 20

years. Argued for soliciting bids to meet the June 30, 2025, state timeline and for

considering a one-year contract.

I 

Page 12 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 

REGULAR MEETING 

DECEMBER 16, 2024 

APPROVED MINUTES 

PAGE2 

• Jan Piert supports the need for new auditors to ensure transparency and fresh

perspectives.

• Bernice Lindke (Alan Mark Dr) expressed concerns about the controller's attendance

and the need for timely financial updates.

• Kelly Goolsby, Community Health Worker, requested better maintenance and

potential demolition of Sycamore Meadows due to chronic issues with blight. She

urged the board to revisit building inspections.

• Irma Golden (Sheffield Dr) addressed allegations made against her during the

election campaign, clarifying her background and actions.

• Latasha Golden (Sheffield Dr) provided further context and refuted allegations of

dishonesty and defamation against Irma Golden.

• Donovan Golden (Sheffield Dr) provided further context and refuted allegations of

dishonesty and defamation against Irma Golden.

• Joshua Golden (Sheffield Dr) questioned how elected officials and candidates could

provide township legal documents to attorneys and newspaper outlets.

• Curtis Freeman expressed concerns about the two-minute limit for public comments.

• Rhonda McGill (Barrington Dr) expressed concerns about the two-minute limit for

public comments.

• Jerry Clifton (Pine Ct) questioned the board's willingness to hear public complaints

because of the two-minute time constraint on public comments.

• Bill Secrest (Cherry Hill Rd) thanked the board and residents for the opportunity to

serve the community. His biggest gift serving was getting to know the people South of

Geddes Rd. He highlighted the work of Rhonda McGill with the Southeast Michigan

Land Conservancy.

B. SUPERVISOR COMMENTS

• Supervisor Dabish Yahkind thanked the Ypsilanti District Library team for their
service to the community and she looks forward to more opportunities to work with
them. Addressing concerns about the controller, she stated whether remote or not Mr.

Lockie has been a great educator and thanked him for his service. Regarding
Sycamore Meadows, Supervisor Dabish Yahkind recognized the significant issues
affecting underserved residents in this area and stressed cross-departmental efforts to
address them. She also invited collaboration with the Washtenaw County Health
Department to identify actionable policies to better serve these populations. She went
on to address the two-minute cap for public comments, stating that it was hard to
capture unique perspectives and issues during the board meeting and she intended to
go neighborhood by neighborhood to discuss in smaller forums the issues Superior

2 

Page 13 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 16, 2024 
APPROVED MINUTES 
PAGE3 

Township residents are experiencing. Lastly, Supervisor Dabish Yahkind expressed 
her disappointment over the comments made against her integrity. 

• Trustee McKinney thanked the Utility department and Superintendent Rickey Harding

for moving quickly to ensure the safety of the residents by removing the fallen Oak
Brook sign out of the road right-of-way.

• Trustee Greene thanked everyone in the room, expressing hope that strong board
meeting attendance will continue throughout his term. Trustee Greene went on to

acknowledge the difficulty of capturing all thoughts during the two-minute comment
period but stressed the importance of listening to the community suggesting that the
two-minute time limit may need reconsideration. He also highlighted the dire living
conditions at Sycamore Meadows and other nearby communities, emphasizing the
need for the board to take action. Lastly, Trustee Greene reminded board members to
treat citizens with respect, regardless of any comments made.

6. CONSENT AGENDA

A motion was made by Trustee Schwartz and supported by Treasurer Lewis to approve the

Consent Agenda with the following amendments:

1. Removal of the following reports:

A. Fire Report
B. Utility Report
C. Controller's Report

2. Correction of Minutes:

A. November 20, 2024, Regular Meeting

The motion carried unanimously. 

A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
1. NOVEMBER 20, 2024, REGULAR MEETING

B. REPORTS
1. BUILDING DEPARTMENT

2. FIRE DEPARTMENT
3. PARKS COMMISSION MINUTES
4. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT
5. UTILIT¥ DEPARTM.ENT
6. ASSESSING DEPARTMENT
7. SHERRIFF'S DEPARTMENT

3 

Page 14 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 

REGULAR MEETING 

DECEMBER 16, 2024 

APPROVED MINUTES 

PAGE 4 

8. CONTROLLER'S REPORT

9. MONTHLY FINANClAL REPORTS, OCTOBER & NOVEMBER

C. COMMUNICATIONS

1. COMMITTEE TO PROMOTE SUPERIOR TOWNSHIP (C2PST)

7. NEW BUSINESS

A. RESOLUTION 2024-63, AFFIRM SALARY OF THE CLERK

A motion was made by Trustee Schwartz and supported by Trustee Mckinney to approve the
resolution.

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 

WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION TO AFFIRM THE 2025 SALARY OF 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR CLERK 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2024-63 

DA TE: DECEMBER 16, 2024 

WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Superior Board of Trustees approved the 2025 
budgets for all funds on December 16, 2024, and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees specifically designated the compensation for the full
time elected officials and the Board of Trustees, and 

WHEREAS, the Township auditors have requested that compensation for the full-time 
elected officials and the Board of Trustees be approved by the Board of Trustees by resolution, 
and 

WHEREAS, the residents of Township continue to receive service that reflects 
positively on the employees, officials and trustees of the Township. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that compensation for the Clerk be 
$101,391 which is two percent (2.0%) higher in 2025 than her compensation of $99,403 in 2024 
as listed in the 2025 budget adopted by the Charter Township of Superior Board of Trustees. 

CERTIFICATION ST A TEMENT 

I, Angela Robinson, the duly qualified Clerk of the Charter Township of Superior, Washtenaw 
County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution 
adopted at a regular meeting of the Charter Township of Superior Board held on December 16, 

4 

Page 15 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 

REGULAR MEETING 

DECEMBER 16, 2024 

APPROVED MINUTES 

PAGES 

2024 and that public notices of said meeting were given pursuant to Act No. 267, Public Acts of 
Michigan, 1976, as amended. 

�obinson, Township Clerk Date Certified 

Roll Call: Dabish Yahkind- Yes, Lewis - Yes, Devereaux- Yes, 
Greene - Yes, McKinney - Yes, Schwartz- Yes, Robinson- No 

The motion carried 6 to 1. 

B. RESOLUTION 2024-64, AFFIRM SALARY OF THE TREASURER

A motion was made by Trustee Devereaux and supported by Trustee Mckinney to approve the
resolution.

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 

WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION TO AFFIRM THE 2025 SALARY OF 

THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR TREASURER 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2024-64 

DATE: DECEMBER 16, 2024 

WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Superior Board of Trustees approved the 2025 
budgets for all funds on December 16, 2024, and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees specifically designated the compensation for the full
time elected officials and the Board of Trustees; and 

WHEREAS, the Township auditors have requested that the compensation for the full
time elected officials and the Board of Trustees be approved by the Board of Trustees by 
resolution; and 

WHEREAS, the residents of the Township continue to receive service that reflects 
positively on the employees, officials, and Trustees of the Township. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that compensation for the Treasurer be 
$101,391.00 which is two percent (2.0%) higher in 2025 than her compensation of$99,403.00 in 
2024 as listed in the 2025 budget adopted by the Charter Township of Superior Board of 
Trustees. 

5 

Page 16 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 

REGULAR MEETING 

DECEMBER 16, 2024 

APPROVED MINUTES 

PAGE6 

CERTIFICATION STATEMENT 

I, Angela Robinson, the duly qualified Clerk of the Charter Township of Superior, Washtenaw 
County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution 
adopted at a regular meeting of the Charter Township of Superior Board held on December 16, 
2024 and that public notices of said meeting were given pursuant to Act No. 267, Public Acts of 
Michigan, 1976, as amended. 

Angela Robinson,�w� Clerk Date Certified 

Roll Call: Dabish Y ahkind - Yes, Lewis - Yes, Devereaux - Yes, 
Greene - Yes, McKinney - Yes, Schwartz - Yes, Robinson - No 

The motion carried 6 to 1 . 

C. RESOLUTION 2024-65, AFFIRM SALARY OF THE SUPERVISOR

A motion was made by Trustee Schwartz and supported by Treasurer Lewis to approve the
resolution.

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 

WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION TO AFFIRM THE 2025 SALARY OF THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF 

SUPERIOR SUPERVISOR 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2024-65 

DATE: DECEMBER 16, 2024 

WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Superior Board of Trustees approved the 2025 
budgets for all funds on December 16, 2024, and, 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees specifically designated the compensation for the full
time elected officials and the Board of Trustees; and, 

WHEREAS, the Township auditors have requested that the compensation for the full
time elected officials and the Board of Trustees be approved by the Board of Trustees by 
resolution; and, 

WHEREAS, the residents of the Township continue to receive service that reflects 
positively on the employees, officials, and trustees of the Township. 

6 

Page 17 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 

REGULAR MEETING 

DECEMBER 16, 2024 

APPROVED MINUTES 

PAGE7 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that compensation for the Supervisor to be 
$ I 02, 3 7 3. 00 which is two percent (2. 0%) higher in 2025 than their compensation of $100,366.00 
in 2024 as listed in the 2025 budget adopted by the Charter Township of Superior Board of 
Trustees. 

CERTIFICATION STATEMENT 

I, Angela Robinson, the duly qualified Clerk of the Charter Township of Superior, Washtenaw 
County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution 
adopted at a regular meeting of the Charter Township of Superior Board held on December 16, 
2024 and that public notices of said meeting were given pursuant to Act No. 267, Public Acts of 
Michigan, 1976, as amended. 

� Township Clerk Date Certified 

Roll Call: Dabish Yahkind- Yes, Lewis - Yes, Devereaux- Yes, 
Greene - Yes, McKinney - Yes, Schwartz - Yes, Robinson - No 

The motion carried 6 to 1. 

D. RESOLUTION 2024-66, AFFIRM THE 2025 SALARIES OF THE NON-UNION

EMPLOYEES

It was moved by Trustee McKinney and supported by Trustee Lewis to approve the resolution.

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 

WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION AFFIRMING THE SALARIES OF ALL NON-UNION EMPLOYEES OF 

THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR FOR THE 2025 BUDGET 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2024-66 

DATE: DECEMBER 16, 2024 

WHEREAS, the Superior Charter Township Board of Trustees approved the 2025 budgetsfor 
all funds on December 16, 2024, and, 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees did not specifically designate the compensation for the 
full-time and part-time Township employees and, 

7 

Page 18 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 

REGULAR MEETING 

DECEMBER 16, 2024 

APPROVED MINUTES 

PAGES 

WHEREAS, the Township auditors have requested that the compensation for the employees 

be approved by the Board of Trustees by resolution; and, 

WHEREAS, the residents of Superior Township continue to receive service that reflects 
positively on the employees, officials, and trustees of the Township. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that compensation for all full-time and part
time non-union employees be two percent (2. 0%) higher in 2025 than their compensation in 2024 
except as otherwise set by the 2025 budget. 

CERTIFICATION STATEMENT 

I, Angela Robinson, the duly qualified Clerk of the Charter Township of Superior, Washtenaw 
County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution 
adopted at a regular meeting of the Charter Township of Superior Board held on December 16, 
2024 and that public notices of said meeting were given pursuant to Act No. 267, Public Acts of 
Michigan, 1976, as amended. 

Angela Robinson, Township Clerk Date Certified 

Roll Call: Dabish Yahkind - Yes, Lewis - Yes, Devereaux - Yes, McKinney - Yes, 
Schwartz - Yes, Robinson - Yes, Greene -No 

The motion carried 6 to 1. 

E. RESOLUTION 2024-67, APPROVE THE ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF TO PURCHASE

MEDICAL, DENT AL, AND VISION INSURANCE FOR EMPLOYEES OF THE
TOWNSHIP.

A motion was made by Trustee Greene and supported by Trustee McKinney to approve the
resolution.

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 

WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF OF THE CHARTER 

TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR TO PURCHASE MEDICAL, DENTAL AND VISION 

INSURANCE FOR EMPLOYEES OF THE TOWNSHIP 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2024-67 

8 

Page 19 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 

REGULAR MEETING 

DECEMBER 16, 2024 

APPROVED MINUTES 

PAGE9 

DATE: DECEMBER 16, 2024 

WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Superior provides health care insurance plan 
benefits to all full-time Township employees; and 

WHEREAS, the Township's current health care insurance plan expires on December 31, 
2024;and 

WHEREAS, Township officials and staff have received and reviewed quotes for various 
health care providers through its agent Brown and Brown; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to its authority, Charter Township of Superior has elected to 
renew the Simply Blue HSA PPO Gold $1,650.00 health care plan, the Delta Dental Premier 
dental insurance plan and the VSP vision plan for 2025 with a total health care premium cost to 
the township of approximately $469,237.32 with an effective term of January 1, 2025, through 
December 31, 2025: and 

WHEREAS, Charter Township of Superior will continue to offer its fulltime employees 
the option to opt out of health insurance in consideration of a payment to the employee of 40% of 
the costs of providing health care insurance resulting in a cost of $66,550.03. 

WHEREAS, Charter Township of Superior will offer its employees a wellness bonus in 
2025 in the following amounts which is the employee's responsibility to utilize as desired to 
ensure maximum personal health in the amount of $162,000.00 divided as follows: 

Non-union 

Single 

Family 

$3,000.00 

$6,000.00 

Union 

Single 

Family 

$3,000.00 

$6,000.00 

WHEREAS, the total costs to Charter Township of Superior to provide medical, dental 
and vision insurance, plus opt outs and wellness is $688,787.35. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Charter Township of Superior 
Supervisor, Clerk or Treasurer are authorized to execute any documents necessary to provide the 
described health care benefits and corollary opt out and wellness incentive payment. 

CERTIFICATION STATEMENT 

I, Angela Robinson, the duly qualified Clerk of the Charter Township of Superior, Washtenaw 
County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution 
adopted at a regular meeting of the Charter Township of Superior Board held on December 16, 
2024 and that public notices of said meeting were given pursuant to Act No. 267, Public Acts of 
Michigan, 1976, as amended. 

9 

Page 20 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 

REGULAR MEETING 

DECEMBER 16, 2024 

APPROVED MINUTES 

PAGE 10 

XngelaRbinon ��Township Clerk Date Certified 

Roll Call: Dabish Yahkind- Yes, Robinson- Yes, Lewis - Yes, Devereaux- Yes, 
Greene - Yes, McKinney - Yes, Schwartz - Yes 

The motion carried unanimously. 

F. RESOLUTION 2024-68,APPROVE TO SET RATE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION

TO THE MERS HEALTH CARE SA VTNGS PROGRAM FOR NON-UNION AND

UNION EMPLOYEES

A motion was made by Trustee McKinney and supported by Trustee Schwartz to approve the
resolution.

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 

WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

APPROVAL TO SET THE RA TE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION TO THE MERS 
HEAL TH CARE SAVINGS PROGRAM FOR NON-UNION AND UNION EMPLOYEES 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2024-68 

DECEMBER 16, 2024 

WHEREAS, on March 21, 2005, the Charter Township of Superior Board of Trustees 
adopted a resolution to participate in the MERS Health Care Savings Program for the benefit of 
the non-union and union employees of the Township; and 

WHEREAS, the Township contribution to each employee was set at one hundred 
($100.00) dollars per month, and this amount has been raised several times since then; and 

WHEREAS, the Township Board has given this matter due consideration through the 
budgeting process; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Charter Township of Superior 
Board does hereby establish the monthly contribution for Health Care Savings Plan for union 
employees in the amount of $450.00 per month in 2025; and does hereby establish the monthly 
contribution for non-union employees in the amount of $315.00 per month in 2025. 

CERTIFICATION ST A TEMENT 

I, Angela Robinson, the duly qualified Clerk of the Charter Township of Superior, Washtenaw 
County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution 
adopted at a regular meeting of the Charter Township of Superior Board held on December 16, 

10 

Page 21 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 

REGULAR MEETING 

DECEMBER 16, 2024 

APPROVED MINUTES 

PAGE 11 

2024 and that public notices of said meeting were given pursuant to Act No. 267, Public Acts of 
Michigan, 1976, as amended. 

f\ngelaR.obinson, Township Clerk Date Certified 

Roll Call: Dabish Yahkind - Yes, Robinson - Yes, Lewis - Yes, Devereaux - Yes, 
Greene - Yes, McKinney - Yes, Schwartz - Yes 

The motion carried unanimously. 

G. RESOLUTION 2024-69, HEALTH CARE SAVINGS PROGRAM FOR INDIVIDUAL

EMPLOYEES

A motion was made by Clerk Robinson and supported by Trustee Schwartz to approve the
resolution.

SUPERIOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE HEALTH CARE SAVINGS PLAN PARTICIPATION 

AGREEMENTS WITH INDIVIDUAL EMPLOYEES 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2024-69 

DATE: DECEMBER 16, 2024 

WHEREAS, Superior Charter Township employees hired prior to November 1, 2011, 
are permitted to request the Superior Township Board to amend their MERS Health Care 
Savings Plan Participation Agreement (HCSP) once per calendar year; and 

WHEREAS, employees hired after November 1, 2011, are a separate and distinct group 
for purposes of their MERS Health Care Savings Plan Participation Agreement (HCSP), and are 
divided into non-union and union groups, and each group must vote as a separate group to amend 
their contribution by majority vote; and, 

WHEREAS, said non-union decided in November 2024 not to amend the amount 
withheld and continue to contribute at the rate of 3% for and the union groups decided to amend 
their amount to 3% of their gross pay; and, 

WHEREAS, the following employees hired prior to November 1, 2011, have requested a 
change in the amount they contribute to their HCSP for fiscal 2025 heretofore. 

11 

Page 22 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 

REGULAR MEETING 

DECEMBER 16, 2024 

APPROVED MINUTES 

PAGE 12 

NAME 

French, Jeffrey Fire Union Health Option #1 

Bach, Shaun Fire Union Health Option #1 

New Rate 

2% 

0% 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that a new MERS Health Care Savings 
Plan Participation Agreement be created for each above employee with the employee 
contribution rates for 2025 as indicated above, with all other provisions of their current existing 
MERS Health Care Savings Plan Participation Agreement to remain the same. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that any fulltime employee, upon termination or 
separation from Superior Township, may elect roll over any amount of cash owed to the 
employee into their individual MERS Health Care Savings Plan by virtue of any unpaid regular 
pay, unpaid overtime pay, unpaid education pay, unpaid longevity pay, unpaid vacation pay, 
unpaid sick time pay, and unpaid personal time pay. 

CERTIFICATION STATEMENT 

I, Angela Robinson, the duly qualified Clerk of the Charter Township of Superior, Washtenaw 
County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution 
adopted at a regular meeting of the Charter Township of Superior Board held on December 16, 
2024 and that public notices of said meeting were given pursuant to Act No. 267, Public Acts of 
Michigan, 1976, as amended. 

Allgela�n, Township Clerk Date Certified 

Roll Call: Dabish Yahkind- Yes, Robinson - Yes, Lewis - Yes, Devereaux - Yes, 
Greene - Yes, McKinney - Yes, Schwartz - Yes 

The motion carried unanimously. 

H. RESOLUTION 2024-70, OPT-OUT PA 152-2024

A motion was made by Trustee Devereaux and supported by Trustee Schwartz to approve the 
resolution. 

12 

Page 23 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 

REGULAR MEETING 

DECEMBER 16, 2024 

APPROVED MINUTES

PAGE 13 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 

WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE ANNUAL EXEMPTION OPTION AS SET FORTH IN 

THE 2011 PUBLIC ACT 152, THE PUBLICLY FUNDED HEALTH INSURANCE 

CONTRIBUTION ACT 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2024-70 

DATE: DECEMBER 16, 2024 

WHEREAS, Public Act 152 of 2011 contains three options for complying with the 

requirements of the Act: 

I. Section 3 - Hard Caps Option- limits a public employer's total health
care costs for employees based on coverage in the Act.

2. Section 4 - 80%/20% Option - limits a public employers share of
total annual health care costs to not more than 80%.

3. Section 8- Exemption Option - a local unit of government as defined
in the Act, may exempt itself from the requirements of the Act by an annual
2/3 vote of the governing body.

WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Superior Board of Trustees has decided to adopt the 

annual exemption option, section 8 of the Act, as its choice of compliance under the Act. 

CERTIFICATION STATEMENT 

I, Angela Robinson, the duly qualified Clerk of the Charter Township of Superior, Washtenaw 
County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution 
adopted at a regular meeting of the Charter Township of Superior Board held on December 16, 
2024 and that public notices of said meeting were given pursuant to Act No. 267, Public Acts of 
Michigan, 1976, as amended. 

L,��M_ 
Angela Robinson, Township Clerk Date Certified 

Roll Call Vote: Dabish Yahkind- Yes, Robinson- Yes, Lewis - Yes, Devereaux - Yes, 
Greene - Yes, McKinney - Yes, Schwartz - Yes 

The motion carried unanimously. 

13 

Page 24 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 

REGULAR MEETING 

DECEMBER 16, 2024 

APPROVED MINUTES 

PAGE 14 

I. RESOLUTION 2024-71, RESOLUTION TO MOVE THE SUPERVISION AND

OVERSIGHT OF THE UTILITY DEPARTMENT TO THE TOWNSHIP SUPERVISOR

A motion was made by Trustee Schwartz and supported by Treasurer Lewis to approve the
resolution.

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 

WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION TO MOVE THE SUPERVISION AND OVERSIGHT OF THE UTILITY 

DEPARTMENT TO THE TOWNSHIP SUPERVISOR 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2024-71 

DA TE: DECEMBER 16, 2024 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees (Board) of the Charter Township of Superior wishes 
to move the supervision and oversight of the Utilities Department from the Utility Department 
Superintendent and Utility Department Director positions; and, 

WHEREAS, section 42.10 of the State of Michigan Charter Township Act provides the 
Township Board with the power to delegate certain duties of the Township; and, 

WHEREAS, the Board wishes to delegate supervision of the Utility Department to the 
Township Supervisor; 

WHEREAS, the Board wishes to reassign the following functions and duties to the 
Supervisor: 1) managing and supervising the operation of all Township utilities, and 2) seeing 
that all terms and conditions imposed in favor of the Township or its inhabitants in any public 
utility franchise, or in any contract, are faithfully kept and performed. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Utilities Department will report 
directly to the Supervisor. 

CERTIFICATION STATEMENT 

I, Angela Robinson, the duly qualified Clerk of the Charter Township of Superior, Washtenaw 

County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution 
adopted at a regular meeting of the Charter Township of Superior Board held on December 16, 
2024 and that public notices of said meeting were given pursuant to Act No. 267, Public Acts of 
Michigan, 1976, as amended. 

Date Certified 

14 

Page 25 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 16, 2024 
APPROVED MINUTES 
PAGE 15 

Roll Call Vote: Dabish Yahkind- Yes, Lewis- Yes, Devereaux- Yes, 

McKinney - Yes, Schwartz - Yes, Greene - No, Robinson - No 

The motion carried 5 to 2. 

J. RESOLUTION 2024-72, BUDGET AMENDJVLENTS FOR YEAR-END 2024

A motion was made by Trustee Greene and supported by Trustee Devereaux to approve the
resolution.

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 
WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

BUDGET AMENDMENTS FOR ALL FUNDS 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2024-72 

DATE: DECEMBER 16, 2024 

WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Superior Board of Trustee's has carefully 
reviewed the Township's current spending, and 

WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Superior Board of Trustees recognizes its 
responsibility to the citizens of the Charter Township of Superior to carefully monitor the 
Township funds and provide for the needs of the Township, and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Charter Township of Superior has carefully 
reviewed the revenues and expenditures for 2024 and offers the following budget amendments. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Charter Township of Superior 

Board of Trustees adopt the proposed budget amendments as set forth in the attached 
spreadsheet. 

CERTIFICATION STATEMENT 
I, Angela Robinson, the duly qualified Clerk of the Charter Township of Superior, Washtenaw 

County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution 

adopted at a regular meeting of the Charter Township of Superior Board held on December 16, 

2024 and that public notices of said meeting were given pursuant to Act No. 267, Public Acts of 

Michigan, 1976, as amended. 

Angela Robinson, Township Clerk Date Certified 

15 

Page 26 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 

REGULAR MEETING 

DECEMBER 16, 2024 

APPROVED MINUTES 

PAGE 16 

The motion carried unanimously. 

K. RESOLUTION 2024-73, RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE AUDITING SERVICE

PROPOSAL WITH PFEFFER, HANNIFORD, AND PALKA, CERTIFIED PUBLIC

ACCOUNTS - AUDIT ENGAGEMENT LETTER

A motion was made by Treasurer Lewis and supported by Trustee Schwartz to approve the
resolution.

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 

WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE AUDITING SERVICE PROPOSAL WITH 

PFEFFER, HANNIFORD, AND PALKA, CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

AUDIT ENGAGEMENT LETTER 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2024-73 

DATE: DECEMBER 16, 2024 

WHEREAS, the Superior Charter Township Board of Trustees has reviewed the audit 
engagement letter presented by Pfeffer, Hanniford & Palka, Ce11ified Public Accountants, 
detailing the scope and objectives for the audit of the financial statements of the Charter 
Township of Superior for the year ended December 31, 2024; and 

WHEREAS, the audit engagement letter includes the auditing of the financial statements 
of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, the aggregate 
remaining fund information, and the disclosures, which collectively comprise the basic financial 
statements of the Charter Township of Superior; and 

WHEREAS, the engagement letter outlines the responsibilities of the auditors and the 
management, the audit procedures for internal control and compliance, the identification of 
significant risks, and the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles in the United States of America; and 

WHEREAS, the Board acknowledges the importance of this audit in ensuring the 
financial integrity and transparency of the Charter Township of Superior. 

WHEREAS, Pfeffer, Hanniford & Palka, Certified Public Accountants, propose for 2024 
an audit fee of $28, 500.00 which is a $4,500 increase; and 

16 

Page 27 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 

REGULAR MEETING 

DECEMBER 16, 2024 

APPROVED MINUTES 

PAGE 17 

PHP'S proposal for: 

• 2024 $28,500 

• 2025 $29,500 

• 2026 $30,500 

Prior Contract Costs: 

• 2023 $24,000 

• 2022 $23,750 

• 2021 $23,500 

WHEREAS, several factors have contributed to the increase in audit fees. The primary 
factor is the rising cost of staffing, which has necessitated annual salary increases of 15 to 20% 
in recent years to maintain adequate staffing levels. Additionally, increased costs in health 
insurance benefits, malpractice insurance premiums, and other audit-related expenses have 
significantly impacted overall audit costs; and 

WHEREAS, the Superior Township is also subject to new accounting standards, 
including GASB #84, GASB #87, GASB #101, and ASC #606, which pertain to revenue 
recognition. These standards require additional time and resources to ensure compliance with 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). This may lead to extended audit timelines, 
particularly if staffing changes occur within the Superior Township Accounting Department 
during the fieldwork phase. Any potential cost increases resulting from these factors will be 
communicated to the Township prior to implementation. The estimated time required for the 
2024 audit is approximately 200 hours, at a minimum hourly rate of $140; 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that the Superior Charter 
Township Board of Trustees approves the audit engagement letter and fee of $28,500.00 from 
Pfeffer, Hanniford & Palka, as presented. The Township Supervisor is authorized to sign the 
response section of the engagement letter, confirming the Township's understanding and 
agreement to the terms of the audit engagement. All Township officials and staff are directed to 
cooperate fully with Pfeffer, Hanniford & Palka during the audit process and provide all 
necessary information and assistance as required. 

CERTIFICATION STATEMENT 

I, Angela Robinson, the duly qualified Clerk of the Charter Township of Superior, Washtenaw 
County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution 
adopted at a regular meeting of the Charter Township of Superior Board held on December 16, 
2024 and that public notices of said meeting were given pursuant to Act No. 267, Public Acts of 
Michigan, 1976, as amended. 

Angela Robinson, Township Clerk Date Certified 

17 

Page 28 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 

REGULAR MEETING 

DECEMBER 16, 2024 

APPROVED MINUTES 

PAGE 18 

A motion was made by Trustee Devereaux and supported by Trustee McKinney to approve a 
one-year contract instead of the original proposed three-year contract with Pfeiffer, Hanniford & 
Palka. 

Roll Call: Dabish Yahkind- Yes, Robinson- Yes, Lewis - Yes, Devereaux - Yes, 

Greene - Yes, McKinney - Yes, Schwartz - Yes 

The motion carried unanimously. 

L. RESOLUTION 2024-74, RESOLUTION TO APPOINT SUPERIOR TOWNSHIP BOARD
MEMBERS TO SERVE ON SUPERIOR TOWNSHIP COMMITTEES, COMMISSIONS,

BOARDS, AND AUTHORITIES

A motion was made by Trustee Greene and was supported by Trustee Mckinney to approve the
resolution.

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 

WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION TO APPOINT SUPERIOR TOWNSHIP BOARD MEMBERS 
TO SERVE ON SUPERIOR TOWNSHIP COMMITTEES, COMMISSIONS, 

BOARDS AND AUTHORITIES 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2024-74 

DATE: DECEMBER 16, 2024 

Planning Commission 
Park Commission Liaison 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Supervisor Pro Tern 
SEMCOG 

Brenda McKinney 
Sarah Devereaux 

Dana Greene 

Brenda McKinney 
Emily Dabish Y ahkind/Lisa Lewis 

Superior Scenes 
Dixboro Design Review Board 
Wetlands Board 

Emily Dabish Y ahkind/Sarah Devereaux 

Emily Dabish Yahkind/Sarah Devereaux 

Ken Schwartz 

WATS 
County Non-Motorized Trail Committee 
Election Commission 

Washtenaw Co. Solid Waste Authority 

Urban County 

Emily Dabish Yahkind 
Emily Dabish Yahkind 

D. Greene/K. Schwartz/A. Robinson
Emily Dabish Yahkind

Emily Dabish Yahkind/Lisa Lewis

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board members are hereby duly 
appointed to serve on the committees, commissions, boards, and authorities of Superior 

18 

Page 29 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 16, 2024 
APPROVED MINUTES 
PAGE 19 

Township, as outlined above, and shall undertake their respective roles with the dedication and 
expertise required to further the goals and responsibilities of these bodies. 

CERTIFICATION STATEMENT 

I, Angela Robinson, the duly qualified Clerk of the Charter Township of Superior, Washtenaw 
County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution 
adopted at a regular meeting of the Charter Township of Superior Board held on December 16, 
2024 and that public notices of said meeting were given pursuant to Act No. 267, Public Acts of 
Michigan, 1976, as amended. 

Angela Robinson, Township Clerk 

Yes - 6, No - Clerk Robinson 

The motion carried 6 to 1 . 

Date Certified 

M. RESOLUTION 2024-75. RESOLUTION TO APPROVE SUPERIOR TOWNSHIP
APPOINTMENTS TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION AND ZONING BOARD OF
APPEALS

A motion was made by Trustee Lewis and supported by Clerk Robinson to approve the
resolution.

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 
WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE SUPERIOR TOWNSHIP APPOINTMENTS TO THE 

PLANNING COMMISSION AND ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2024-75 

DATE: DECEMBER 16, 2024 

Planning Commission: 

Curt Wolf, Term Expires January 2028 

Zoning Board of Appeals: 

Jack Gilbreath, Term Expires January 2028 

19 

Page 30 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 

REGULAR MEETING 

DECEMBER 16, 2024 

APPROVED MINUTES 

PAGE 20 

Meghan Winslow, Term Expires January 2028 
Guy T. Conti, Term Expires January 2028 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board members are hereby duly 
appointed to serve on the committees, commissions, boards, and authorities of Superior 
Township, as outlined above, and shall undertake their respective roles with the dedication and 
expertise required to further the goals and responsibilities of these bodies. 

CERTIFICATION STATEMENT 

I, Angela Robinson, the duly qualified Clerk of the Charter Township of Superior, Washtenaw 
County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution 
adopted at a regular meeting of the Charter Township of Superior Board held on December 16, 
2024 and that public notices of said meeting were given pursuant to Act No. 267, Public Acts of 
Michigan, 1976, as amended. 

Angela Robinson, Township Clerk 

The motion carried unanimously. 

Date Certified 

N. RESOLUTION 2024-76, RESOLUTION TO HIRE A BILLING SPECIALIST AND

RESIDENTIAL LIAISON

A motion was made by Treasurer Lewis and supported by Clerk Robinson to approve the
resolution.

The motion was withdrawn by Supervisor Dabish Yahkind.

SUPERIOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

A RESOLUTION TO HIRE A BILLING SPECIALIST & RESIDENTIAL LIAISON 

RESOLUTION 2024-76 

DA TE: DECEMBER 16, 2024 

WHEREAS, the Superior Township Utility Department (STUD) has a Billing Specialist 
and Residential Liaison vacancy; and, 

WHEREAS, Landis Smith was selected to fulfill the Billing Specialist and Residential 
Liaison duties as set forth by the Utility Director and has performed the duties outstandingly. 

20 

Page 31 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 16, 2024 
APPROVED MINUTES 
PAGE 21 

NOW THEREFORE, the Superior Township Board hereby approves hiring Landis 
Smith as Billing Specialist and Residential Liaison at a wage of $35.36 per hour. 

CERTIFICATION STATEMENT 

I, Angela Robinson, the duly qualified Clerk of the Charter Township of Superior, Washtenaw 
County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution 
adopted at a regular meeting of the Charter Township of Superior Board held on December 16, 
2024 and that public notices of said meeting were given pursuant to Act No. 267, Public Acts of 
Michigan, 1976, as amended. 

Date Certified 

A motion was made by Trustee Devereaux and supported by Trustee McKinney to approve the 
Billing Specialist and Residential Liaison hire full-time at the current pay rate and benefits for 30 
days. 

Roll Call - Roll Call: Dabish Yahkind - Yes, Robinson - Yes, Lewis - Yes, Devereaux -
Yes, Greene - Yes, McKinney - Yes, Schwartz - Yes 

The motion carried unanimously. 

0. MOTION TO APPROVE TOWNSHIP HOLIDAY SCHEDULE 2025

A motion was made by Trustee Greene and supported by Trustee Devereaux to approve the 2025
holiday schedule.

The motion carried unanimously.

P. MOTION TO APPROVE TOWNSHIP MEETING SCHEDULE 2025

A motion was made by Trustee Devereaux and supported by Clerk Robinson to approve the
2025 meeting schedule.

The motion carried unanimously.

Q. AGREE.MENT FOR SUBAWARD OF FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT (ARPA) TO THE COUNTY OF WASHTENAW

A motion was made by Trustee Schwartz and supported by Trustee Deveraux to approve the
agreement.

21 

Page 32 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 

REGULAR MEETING 

DECEMBER 16, 2024 

APPROVED MINUTES

PAGE22 

Roll Call: Dabish Yahkind - Yes, Robinson - Yes, Lewis - Yes, Devereaux - Yes, 
Greene - Yes, McKinney - Yes, Schwartz - Yes 

The motion carried unanimously. 

R. BILLS FOR PAYMENT AND RECORD OF DISBURSEMENTS

A motion was made by Trustee Devereaux, supported by Treasurer Lewis, to approve the bills
and disbursements, with the exception of the OHM line item, which will be addressed at the
January board meeting.

The motion carried unanimously.

S. PLEAS AND PETITIONS
• Bernice Lindke urged the board to ensure the controller attends all meetings and manages

budget amendments more promptly, including adjusting the undesignated fund balance. She

highlighted financial discrepancies, such as misallocated expenses and unaccounted funds,

and suggested taking inventory of township property for potential sale to prevent deficit

spending.

• Rhonda McGill questioned the rationale behind annual blanket raises, urged the board to

investigate the justification for these increases, and emphasized the critical need for a

dependable controller to address financial concerns. She highlighted ongoing accountability

issues, the lack of answers despite repeated requests, and expressed frustration over the

controller's continued absence, urging the board to take decisive action.

• Mrs. Muhammad provided constructive feedback on the board's lack of awareness about

the financial deficit, emphasizing the importance of proactive financial planning and grant

writing. She requests increased transparency by publishing meeting resolutions as

hyperlinks on the website before meetings, enabling residents to review and provide input,

and request voting results to be posted online for future accountability.

• Steph thanked Trustee Greene for thoroughly reviewing fire, utility, and controller reports,

seeking details on key incidents, and ensuring accountability for the controller's repeated

absences from monthly meetings.

• Kelly Goolsby asked for clarification on whether the hiring moratorium would affect the

hiring of a housing inspector. She also expressed deep concern over the deteriorating living

conditions in Sycamore Meadows, citing health hazards, water main breaks, ceiling

collapses, and black mold. She urged the board to take accountability and immediate action,

highlighting perceived bias in inspections and emphasizing that no residents should have to

endure such unsafe and unhealthy conditions.

22 

Page 33 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 

REGULAR MEETING 

DECEMBER 16, 2024 

APPROVED MINUTES

PAGE23 

T. ADJOURNMENT

A motion was made by Trustee Schwartz and supported by Supervisor Dabish Yahkind. The
motion carried and the meeting adjourned at 9:36 p.m.

Respectfully submitted, 

��-� 
Angela Robinson, Clerk 

23 

Page 34 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 21, 2025 
PROPOSED MINUTES 
PAGE 1 

1 

1. CALL TO ORDER

The regular meeting of the Charter Township of Superior Board of Trustees was called to order
by Supervisor Emily Dabish Yahkind at 7:00 p.m. on January 21, 2025, at the Superior Charter
Township Hall, 3040 North Prospect Rd, Superior Charter Township, Michigan.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Supervisor Dabish Yahkind led the assembly in the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. ROLL CALL

The board members present included Supervisor Emily Dabish Yahkind, Clerk Angela
Robinson, Treasurer Lisa Lewis, Trustee Sarah Devereaux, Trustee Dana Greene, and Trustee
Brenda McKinney.

Absent: Trustee Ken Schwartz

4. ADOPTION OF AGENDA

The motion was made by Trustee McKinney and supported by Clerk Robinson to adopt the
agenda.

The motion carried unanimously.

A motion was made by Trustee Devereaux and supported by Supervisor Dabish Yahkind to
move item 10A “Resolution 2025-01, Approve Hiring Moratorium” before item 11A
“Resolution 2024-76, Resolution to Hire a Billing Specialist and Residential Liaison” on the
agenda.

The motion carried unanimously.

Documents submitted at the table will appear at the end of these minutes. 

5. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION

A. CITIZEN COMMENTS
• Brenda Baker (Ashton Court) provided an update from the Committee to Promote

Superior Township. She highlighted the quarterly social media updates which involves

Page 35 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 21, 2025 
PROPOSED MINUTES 
PAGE 2 

2 

mapping out key content for the township's social media channels in collaboration 
with township officials. This includes updates such as holiday office closures and 
other relevant information.  

• Tom Brennan (Sheffield Dr.) voiced his disappointment that Irma Golden was not
reappointed to the board of review stating that she was a very good and faithful servant
to the Superior Township community.

• Mrs. Muhammad inquired about the Board of Review appointment process and
raised concerns about the township’s financial management and reporting. She
questioned the board’s understanding of the finances and their plan to address issues.
Additionally, she asked why the controller does not attend meetings and whether the
township covers his travel expenses since he is not local. She also requested more
neutral language used in meeting minutes.

• Landis Smith outlined his experience with Superior Township beginning in 2018 and
highlighted his commitment to continuously learning and growing professionally over
the years. The work-life balance Superior Township provided allowed him to grow in
his career while remaining a dedicated husband and father. He thanked the board for
the opportunity to serve his community and humbly asked for the opportunity to
continue doing so as the Billing Specialist and Residential Liaison for the Superior
Township Utility Department.

• Rickey Harding provided an overview of past hiring practices, including his
appointment as Utility Superintendent on January 13, 2003, and the recruitment of
eight additional employees. He also addressed corruption allegations from board
members towards employees of the Utility Department, deeming the allegations
unprofessional, and concluded by commending the Utility Department for its
outstanding service to the community.

• Bernice Lindke (Alan Mark Dr.) urged the board to appoint Irma Golden to the Board
of Review, emphasizing Ms. Golden’s valuable expertise. She thanked Supervisor
Dabish Yahkind for prioritizing a fair and open appointment process and requested
that all board members have the appropriate information about each candidate before
approving appointments to the Board of Review.

• Irma Golden (Sheffield Dr.) Irma Golden raised concerns about the Board of Review
appointment process, highlighting discrepancies in term lengths and reappointment
timelines. She called for greater transparency by making candidate resumes and cover
letters available to all board members, establishing clear evaluation criteria, and
expanding communication channels for announcements, including social media and

Page 36 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 21, 2025 
PROPOSED MINUTES 
PAGE 3 

3 

community postings. She also emphasized the need to address personal biases in 
decision-making. 

• Steph voiced support for retaining Irma Golden as a member of the Board of Review
citing Ms. Golden’s knowledgeability and resident focused approach as proof of her
qualifications.

• Brian Clark congratulated the Superior Township Board of Trustees on their
successful election to office.

B. SUPERVISOR COMMENTS

• Trustee McKinney suggested that the Board of Review appointments should be
delayed until the February board meeting to allow all board members the opportunity
to understand the process and to provide further transparency for all residents. She
emphasized the importance of making appointments that are geographically
representative of the township.

• Trustee Devereaux agreed with postponing the Board of Review appointments but
sought clarification that postponing the appointments would not cause a negative
impact.

• Supervisor Dabish Yahkind assured the board that postponing Board of Review
appointments would not have a negative impact due to February availability of
certifications for new Board of Review members. She shed light on the appointment
process for the recent Planning Commission, ZBA, and now Board of Review
appointments stating that candidates submitted cover letters, resumes, and received
interviews. She addressed term length concerns, noting an error on the Township
website but emphasizing that terms are clearly established and should not come as a
surprise. Indefinite appointments should not be expected. Supervisor Dabish Yahkind
reaffirmed her commitment to following the laws and policies of Superior Township
and developing clear and transparent processes where they are lacking.

6. CONSENT AGENDA

The motion was made by Treasurer Lewis and supported by Trustee Devereaux to approve
the Consent Agenda with the following amendments:

1. Removal of the following communications:

A. David Phillips Letter to the Board on 2025 Budget

Page 37 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 21, 2025 
PROPOSED MINUTES 
PAGE 4 

4 

2. Correction of Minutes:

A. December 16, 2024, Regular Meeting

The motion carried unanimously. 

A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
1. DECEMBER 16, 2024, REGULAR MEETING

B. REPORTS
1. SUPERVISOR REPORT
2. BUILDING DEPARTMENT
3. FIRE DEPARTMENT
4. PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION MINUTES
5. SHERRIFF’S REPORT
6. UTILITY DEPARTMENT
7. ASSESSING DEPARTMENT
8. PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT
9. CONTROLLER’S REPORT
10. MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS, NOVEMBER 2024

C. COMMUNICATIONS
1. C2PST
2. 2025 PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE MEETING DATES
3. IRMA GOLDEN EMAIL ON COMMITTEE APPOINTMENT PROCESS
4. SUPERVISOR RESPONSE TO IRMA GOLDEN’S EMAIL
5. DAVID PHILLIPS LETTER TO THE BOARD ON 2025 BUDGET

7. NEW BUSINESS
A. RESOLUTION 2025-01, IMPOSE A TEMPORARY MORATORIUM ON HIRING

The motion was made by Trustee Devereaux and supported by Trustee McKinney. 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 
WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN  

Page 38 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 21, 2025 
PROPOSED MINUTES 
PAGE 5 

5 

RESOLUTION TO IMPOSE A TEMPORARY MORATORIUM ON HIRING 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2025-01 

DATE: JANUARY 21, 2025 

WHEREAS, the 2025 budget for the Charter Township of Superior (the Township) has 
confirmed that the Township is deficit spending in various funds; 

WHEREAS, it is fiscally irresponsible to create new positions or fill open positions in 
departments where there is significant deficit spending across the Township and those positions 
are not involving the Law Enforcement Fund or Fire Fund;  

WHEREAS, the Township Board of Trustees wishes to take time to reassess the finances 
of the Township and responsibly manage taxpayers dollars; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT a moratorium is imposed upon hiring 
any position that requires Board of Trustees approval outside of the Law Fund and Fire Fund for 
a minimum period of four (4) months and there shall be a review of the moratorium in four (4) 
months’ time. 

BE IT NOW RESOLVED that the above-described moratorium on hiring outside of the 
Law Enforcement Fund and Fire Fund commences on January 21, 2025, and shall be reviewed no 
later than the May meeting of the Board of Trustees or May 19, 2025.  

CERTIFICATION STATEMENT 
I, Angela Robinson, the duly qualified Clerk of the Charter Township of Superior, Washtenaw 
County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution 
adopted at a regular meeting of the Charter Township of Superior Board held on January 21, 
2025, and that public notices of said meeting were given pursuant to Act No. 267, Public Acts of 
Michigan, 1976, as amended. 

__________________________________  1/23/2025 
Angela Robinson, Township Clerk                                      Date Certified 

Roll Call: Dabish Yahkind – Yes, Devereaux – Yes, Greene – No, Lewis – Yes, 
McKinney – Yes, Robinson – Yes 

Absent: Schwartz 

Page 39 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 21, 2025 
PROPOSED MINUTES 
PAGE 6 

6 

The motion carried 5 to 1. 

8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
A. RESOLUTION 2024-76, HIRE A BILLING SPECIALIST AND RESIDENTIAL

LIAISON

The motion was made by Trustee Devereaux and supported by Trustee McKinney.

SUPERIOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

A RESOLUTION TO HIRE A BILLING SPECIALIST AND RESIDENTIAL LIAISON 
RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2024-76 

DATE: JANUARY 21, 2025 

WHEREAS, the Superior Township Utility Department (STUD) has a Billing Specialist 
and Residential Liaison vacancy; and,  

WHEREAS Landis Smith was selected to fulfill the Billing Specialist and Residential 
Liaison duties as set forth by the Utility Director and has performed the duties outstandingly.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Superior Township Board hereby 
approves hiring Landis Smith as Billing Specialist and Residential Liaison at a wage of $35.36 
per hour. 

A five-minute recess was taken at this time. 

Roll Call: Dabish Yahkind – No, Devereaux – No, Greene – No, Lewis – No,  
McKinney – No, Robinson – No 

Absent: Schwartz 

The motion was denied unanimously. 

9. NEW BUSINESS CONTINUED
B. RESOLUTION 2025-02, APPROVE SUPERIOR TOWNSHIP APPOINTMENTS

TO THE BOARD OF REVIEW

Page 40 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 21, 2025 
PROPOSED MINUTES 
PAGE 7 

7 

The motion was made by Treasurer Lewis and supported by Trustee McKinney. 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 
WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE SUPERIOR TOWNSHIP APPOINTMENTS 
TO THE BOARD OF REVIEW 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2025-02 

DATE: JANUARY 21, 2024 

APPOINTMENTS 

TO: Superior Township Board of Trustees 

SUBJECT: Superior Township Appointments 

Board of Review Appointments to be made effective immediately: 

James Switala; term expires January 2027 
John G. MacNicol; term expires January 2027 
Brian G. Clark; term expires January 2027 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board members are hereby duly 
appointed to serve on the committees, commissions, boards, and authorities of Superior 
Township, as outlined above, and shall undertake their respective roles with the dedication and 
expertise required to further the goals and responsibilities of these bodies. 

A motion was made by Trustee McKinney and supported by Supervisor Dabish Yahkind to 
table the resolution until the next board meeting scheduled for Tuesday, February 18, 2025. 

Roll Call: Dabish Yahkind – Yes, Devereaux – Yes, Greene – Yes, Lewis – Yes, 
McKinney – Yes, Robinson – Yes 

Absent: Schwartz 

Page 41 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 21, 2025 
PROPOSED MINUTES 
PAGE 8 

8 

The motion carried unanimously. 

(Resolution was tabled until February 18, 2025 board meeting) 

C. RESOLUTION 2025-03, APPROVE 2025 SIDEWALK RESOLUTION

The motion was made by Trustee McKinney and supported by Trustee Devereaux. 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 
WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

SIDEWALK RESOLUTION 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2025-03 

DATE: JANUARY 21, 2025 

WHEREAS, to clarify the rights and obligations of the residents of the Charter Township 
of Superior;  

WHEREAS, Michigan Compiled Laws Section 691.1402a provides: 

691.1402a Municipal corporation; maintenance of sidewalk; liability; 
presumption; additional defense; limitation. 

(1) A municipal corporation in which a sidewalk is installed adjacent to a
municipal, county, or state highway shall maintain the sidewalk in
reasonable repair.

(2) A municipal corporation is not liable for breach of a duty to maintain a
sidewalk unless the plaintiff proves that at least 30 days before the
occurrence of the relevant injury, death, or damage, the municipal
corporation knew or, in the exercise of reasonable diligence, should have
known of the existence of the defect in the sidewalk.

(3) In a civil action, a municipal corporation that has a duty to maintain a
sidewalk under subsection (1) is presumed to have maintained the sidewalk
in reasonable repair. This presumption may only be rebutted by evidence of
facts showing that a proximate cause of the injury was 1 or both of the
following:

Page 42 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 21, 2025 
PROPOSED MINUTES 
PAGE 9 

9 

(a) A vertical discontinuity defect of 2 inches or more in the sidewalk.

(b) A dangerous condition in the sidewalk itself of a particular character
other than solely a vertical discontinuity.

(4) Whether a presumption under subsection (3) has been rebutted is a question
of law for the court.

(5) In a civil action, a municipal corporation that has a duty to maintain a
sidewalk under subsection (1) may assert, in addition to any other defense
available to it, any defense available under the common law with respect to
a premises liability claim, including, but not limited to, a defense that the
condition was open and obvious.

(6) A municipal corporation's liability under subsection (1) is limited by section
81131 of the natural resources and environmental protection act, 1994 PA
451, MCL 324.81131;

WHEREAS, the sidewalks that were installed in the Township are adjacent to a road and 
therefore responsibility for injuries resulting from a defective sidewalk lies with the Township and 
not the owner of the property whose property abuts the sidewalk; 

WHEREAS, by statute a defect in the sidewalk is defined as a vertical discontinuity of 2 
inches or more or other dangerous condition; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that in the event, a resident is sued for an 
alleged defect in the sidewalk installed adjacent to a municipal, county or state highway for which 
the Township is responsible for reasonable maintenance under MCL 691.1402a, the Township 
shall defend any such claim. 

CERTIFICATION STATEMENT 
I, Angela Robinson, the duly qualified Clerk of the Charter Township of Superior, Washtenaw 
County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution 
adopted at a regular meeting of the Charter Township of Superior Board held on January 21, 
2025, and that public notices of said meeting were given pursuant to Act No. 267, Public Acts of 
Michigan, 1976, as amended. 

__________________________________  1/23/2025 
Angela Robinson, Township Clerk Date Certified 

Page 43 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 21, 2025 
PROPOSED MINUTES 
PAGE 10 

10 

Roll Call: Dabish Yahkind – Yes, Devereaux – Yes, Greene – Yes, Lewis – Yes, 
McKinney – Yes, Robinson – Yes 

Absent: Schwartz 

The motion carried unanimously. 

D. RESOLUTION 2025-04, APPROVE 2025 POVERTY EXEMPTION GUIDELINE
FOR THE BOARD OF REVIEW

The motion was made by Trustee McKinney and supported by Trustee Devereaux. 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 
WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION APPROVING 2025 POVERTY EXEMPTION 
GUIDELINES FOR THE BOARD OF REVIEW 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2025-04 

DATE: JANUARY 21, 2025 

WHEREAS, the adoption of guidelines for poverty exemptions is required of the 
Township Board; and 

     WHEREAS, the principal residence of persons, who the Board of Review determines by 
reason of poverty to be unable to contribute to the public charge, is eligible for exemption in 
whole or in part from taxation under Public Act 390 of 1994 (MCL 211.7u); and 

     WHEREAS, pursuant to PA 390 of 1994, the Charter Township of Superior, Washtenaw 
County adopts the following guidelines for the Board of Review to implement. The guidelines 
shall include but not be limited to the specific income and asset levels of the applicant and all 
persons residing in the household, including any property tax credit returns, filed in the current 
or immediately preceding year; 

To be eligible, a person shall do all the following on an annual basis: 
1) Be an owner of and occupy as a principal residence the property for which an

exemption is requested.

Page 44 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 21, 2025 
PROPOSED MINUTES 
PAGE 11 

11 

2) File a claim with the Board of Review, accompanied by federal and state income tax
returns for all persons residing in the principal residence, including any property tax
credit returns filed in the immediately preceding year or in the current year.

3) File a claim reporting that the combined assets of all persons do not exceed the current
guidelines. Assets include but are not limited to, real estate other than the principal
residence, personal property, motor vehicles, recreational vehicles and equipment,
certificates of deposit, savings accounts, checking accounts, stocks, bonds, life
insurance, retirement funds, pensions, annuities, IRA’s, etc.

4) Produce a valid driver’s license or other form of identification if requested.
5) Produce, if requested, a deed, land contract, or other evidence of ownership of the

property for which an exemption is requested.
6) Meet the federal poverty income guidelines published in the prior calendar year as defined

and determined annually by the United States Department of Health and Human Services or
alternative guidelines adopted by the governing body of the local assessing unit provided
the alternative guidelines do not provide income eligibility requirements less than the
federal guidelines.

7) The application, Michigan Department of Treasury form 5737 (01-21) must be filed
after January 1, but before the day prior to the last day of the December Board of
Review. The filing of this claim constitutes an appearance before the Board of Review
for the purpose of preserving the right of appeal to the Michigan Tax Tribunal.
The following are the federal poverty income guidelines which are updated annually
by the United States Department of Health and Human Services. The annual
allowable income includes income for all persons residing in the principal residence.
The Superior Township annual allowable income is also included for all people residing
in the principal residence.

Annual Allowable Income for 2025 Assessments 
Number of Persons 

Residing in the Principal 
Residence 

Federal Poverty 
Guideline Annual 
allowable income  

Superior Township Annual 
allowable income 

1 Person $15,060 $27,861 
2 Persons $20,440 $33,261 
3 Persons $25,820 $38,661 
4 Persons $31,200 $44,061 
5 Persons $36,580 $49,461 
6 Persons $41,960 $54,861 
7 Persons $47,340 $60,261 
8 Persons $52,720 $65,661 

For each additional person $5,380 $5,400 

Page 45 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 21, 2025 
PROPOSED MINUTES 
PAGE 12 

12 

Asset Test 
The applicant is required to provide a list of assets for all persons residing in the residence. 
An applicant could meet the income guidelines but not the asset guidelines.  
The total assets for all persons residing in the residence excluding the value of the principal 
residence shall not exceed $25,000. 

Assets include but are not limited to: 
• A second home, land, vehicles
• Recreational vehicles such as campers, motorhomes, boats, and ATV’s
• Buildings other than the residence
• Equipment, other personal property of value
• All bank accounts, stocks
• Money received from the sale of property, such as, stocks, bonds, or a house or car

(unless a person is in the specific business of selling such property)
• Withdrawals of bank deposits and borrowed money
• Gifts, loans, lump-sum inheritances, and one-time insurance payments
• Food or housing received in lieu of wages
• Federal non-cash benefits programs such as Medicare, Medicaid, food stamps and

school lunches

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED that the Board of Review shall 
follow the above stated policy and guidelines of the local assessing unit in granting or 
denying an exemption. If a person claiming an exemption is qualified under the eligibility 
requirements the board of review shall grant the exemption in whole or in part. A full exemption 
is equal to a 100% reduction in taxable value, a partial exemption is equal to a 75%, 50%, or 
25% reduction. 

CERTIFICATION STATEMENT 
I, Angela Robinson, the duly qualified Clerk of the Charter Township of Superior, Washtenaw 
County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution 
adopted at a regular meeting of the Charter Township of Superior Board held on January 21, 
2025, and that public notices of said meeting were given pursuant to Act No. 267, Public Acts of 
Michigan, 1976, as amended. 

__________________________________  1/23/2025 
Angela Robinson, Township Clerk                                      Date Certified 

Page 46 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 21, 2025 
PROPOSED MINUTES 
PAGE 13 

13 

Roll Call: Dabish Yahkind – Yes, Devereaux – Yes, Greene – Yes, Lewis – Yes, 
McKinney – Yes, Robinson – Yes 

Absent: Schwartz 

The motion carried unanimously. 

E. RESOLUTION 2025-05, APPROVE, AMEND, AND EXTEND THE
AGREEMENT BETWEEN SUPERIOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP PARKS AND
RECREATION COMMISSION AND WILLOW RUN ACRES REGARDING
CLAY HILL COMMUNITY FARM AND GARDEN

The motion was made by Trustee McKinney and supported by Trustee Greene to approve the 
resolution with an amendment that the contract would be extended for an additional 4 years 
for a total of 15 years ending on October 16, 2038, and that the extension would be 
conditional upon Mr. Collins being approved for the USDA grant.  

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 
WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE, AMEND, AND EXTEND THE AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN SUPERIOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP PARKS & RECREATION 

COMMISSION AND WILLOW RUN ACRES REGARDING  
CLAYHILL COMMUNITY FARM AND GARDEN 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2025-05 

DATE: JANUARY 21, 2025 

WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Superior is a Michigan municipal corporation that 
provides public services to residents of the Township, especially services that support the well-
being of families in the QCT; and, 

WHEREAS, Willow Run Acres created a self-sustaining community farm (Clay Hill 
Farm Market), on the southeast corner of MacArthur Blvd. and Harris Rd. in the Charter 
Township of Superior. Clay Hill Farm Market allows people of all ages and backgrounds to 
grow, harvest and sell produce obtained from the land, while also allowing a space for building 
community, and economic stability for the residents; and, 

Page 47 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 21, 2025 
PROPOSED MINUTES 
PAGE 14 

14 

WHEREAS, the Township Planning Commission recommended the rezoning of the land 
stated in the following agreement for the purpose of the Clay Hill Farm Market; and, 

WHEREAS, the Township Board of Trustees approved unanimously the rezoning of the 
land stated in the following agreement for the purpose of the Clay Hill Farm Market; and,    

WHEREAS, the term of the agreement will be fifteen years at a cost of $1.00 per year to 
be paid by Willow Run Acres within 30 days of the agreement; and,   

WHEREAS, this agreement was amended by the Charter Township of Superior Board of 
Trustees on January 21, 2025 to extend the current contract, dated October 16, 2023, by five 
years, contingent upon the approval of Clay Hill Community Farm and Garden and T.C. Collins 
receiving USDA grant funding.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Charter Township of Superior 
Board of Trustees hereby amends the agreement between the Charter Township of Superior 
Parks & Recreation Commission and Willow Run Acres concerning Clay Hill Community Farm 
and Garden. This agreement amends the existing lease, extending the term from ten years to 
fifteen years, with an expiration date of October 16, 2038, at an annual cost of $1.00. This 
extension is contingent upon Mr. Collins securing USDA grant funds for Clay Hill Community 
Farm and Garden. 

CERTIFICATION STATEMENT 
I, Angela Robinson, the duly qualified Clerk of the Charter Township of Superior, Washtenaw 
County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution 
adopted at a regular meeting of the Charter Township of Superior Board held on January 21, 
2025, and that public notices of said meeting were given pursuant to Act No. 267, Public Acts of 
Michigan, 1976, as amended. 

__________________________________  1/23/2025 
Angela Robinson, Township Clerk                                      Date Certified 

Roll Call: Dabish Yahkind – Yes, Devereaux – Yes, Greene – Yes, Lewis – Yes, 
McKinney – Yes, Robinson – Yes 

Absent: Schwartz 

The motion carried unanimously. 

Page 48 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 21, 2025 
PROPOSED MINUTES 
PAGE 15 

15 

F. RESOLUTION 2025-06, APPROVE THE FIRE DEPARTMENT TO
REPAIR A FIRETRUCK

The motion was made by Trustee McKinney and supported by Treasurer Lewis.  

SUPERIOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE FIRE DEPARTMENT 
TO REPAIR A FIRE TRUCK 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2025-06 

DATE: JANUARY 21, 2025 

WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Superior Fire Department is currently repairing a 
fire truck in their fleet that was involved in a collision; 

WHEREAS, the insurance adjuster initially denied full cosmetic rehabilitation of the 
truck; 

WHEREAS, the Fire Chief will pursue an appeal of full insurance coverage for damages 
and associated rehabilitation of the truck; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees approves the 
spending of up to $13,000 for truck improvements if the appeal to the claim is denied. 

CERTIFICATION STATEMENT 
I, Angela Robinson, the duly qualified Clerk of the Charter Township of Superior, Washtenaw 
County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution 
adopted at a regular meeting of the Charter Township of Superior Board held on January 21, 
2025, and that public notices of said meeting were given pursuant to Act No. 267, Public Acts of 
Michigan, 1976, as amended. 

__________________________________  1/23/2025 
Angela Robinson, Township Clerk                                      Date Certified 

Roll Call: Dabish Yahkind – Yes, Devereaux – Yes, Greene – Yes, Lewis – Yes, 
McKinney – Yes, Robinson – Yes 

Page 49 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 21, 2025 
PROPOSED MINUTES 
PAGE 16 

16 

Absent: Schwartz 

The motion carried unanimously. 

G. ORDINANCE NO. 159, AMENDING DANBURY PARK MANOR TAX
EXEMPTION, FIRST READING

The motion was made by Trustee McKinney and supported by Trustee Devereaux. 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 
WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

ORDINANCE NO. 159 
ORDINANCE AMENDING DANBURY PARK MANOR TAX EXEMPTION 

First Reading: JANUARY 21, 2025 

Second Reading: 

WHEREAS, this amendment was introduced on January 21, 2025. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Charter Township of Superior ordains: 

Amendment to Add Section 159.09A. Ordinance 159, the Charter Township of Superior Danbury 
Park Manor Tax Exemption Ordinance is amended by adding a new Section 159.09A. Section 
159.09A shall read in its entirety as follows: 

Sec. 159.09A. Service charge constitutes a lien on property. 

The service charge shall constitute a lien on the housing project property and 
improvements, effective at the same times and enforceable in the same manner as 
general property taxes. 

Amendment to Add Section 159.09B. Ordinance 159, the Charter Township of Superior Danbury 
Park Manor Tax Exemption Ordinance is amended by adding a new Section 159.09B. Section 
159.09B shall read in its entirety as follows: 

Sec. 159.09B. Collection of service charge. 

The service charge as determined by this division shall be payable in the same 
manner as general property taxes, except that the annual payment shall be paid on 

Page 50 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 21, 2025 
PROPOSED MINUTES 
PAGE 17 

17 

or before August 15 of each year during which the exemption is in effect. The 
entire tax collection procedure provided by the General Property Tax Act; (MCL 
211.1 et seq.) shall be effective and utilized with respect to such payment, 
including, but not limited to, the provisions providing for interest and penalties on 
late payments, return of delinquent taxes, tax lien, and the sale of lands for 
delinquent taxes. In the event of a delinquency in the payment in lieu of taxes, the 
township shall issue a tax bill for the premises and include the required payment 
as a delinquent tax. In its discretion, in the event of a delinquent payment, the 
township may also declare a default for purposes of sections 46-54—46-57, or 
subsection 

Amendment to Add Section 159.09C. Ordinance 159, the Charter Township of Superior Danbury 
Park Manor Tax Exemption Ordinance is amended by adding a new Section 159.09C. Section 
159.09C hall read in its entirety as follows: 

Sec. 159.09C. Collection of service charge. 

In the event Housing Development is sold, transferred, or refinanced by the Sponsor 
or a related entity of the Sponsor, any delinquency owed to the Township pursuant 
to this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect and without further action by 
the Sponsor or the Township to otherwise change, alter or amend this Ordinance. 
Further, said delinquency shall constitute a lien on the Development until such time 
as the delinquency and all accrued service charges and interest are paid in full. 

Amendment to Add Section 159.09D Ordinance 159, the Charter Township of Superior Danbury 
Park Manor Tax Exemption Ordinance is amended by adding a new Section 159.09D.Section 
159.09D hall read in its entirety as follows: 

Sec. 159.09C. Default. 

In addition to the remedies set forth Sections 159.09A, 159.09B and 159.09D, in 
the event Sponsor is more than six (6) months delinquent in paying the required 
annual payment, the Township may file suit in the appropriate court in Washtenaw 
County, Michigan to collect any and all such delinquencies a related entity of the 
Sponsor, any delinquency owed to the Township pursuant to this Ordinance shall 
remain in full force and effect and without further action by the Sponsor or the 
Township to otherwise change, alter or amend this Ordinance. 

Page 51 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 21, 2025 
PROPOSED MINUTES 
PAGE 18 

18 

Section 2.  Saving Clause. 

All provisions of Ordinance 159, the Superior Charter Township Danbury Park Manor Tax 
Exemption Ordinance, not amended by this ordinance remain in full force and effect. 

Section 3.  Publication and Effective Date. 

This Ordinance shall be published by posting in the Office of the Clerk, 3040 N. Prospect, 
Ypsilanti, 48198, and on the Township website - www.superior-twp.org - pursuant to Section 8 of 
the Charter Township Act, being MCL 42.8(3)(b) within thirty (30) days following the final 
adoption thereof. This Ordinance shall become effective upon publication All ordinances or parts 
of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

Roll Call: Dabish Yahkind – Yes, Devereaux – Yes, Greene – Yes, Lewis – Yes, 
McKinney – Yes, Robinson – Yes 

Absent: Schwartz 

The motion carried unanimously. 

(Contains certain typographical errors which will be corrected in the final version prior to 
adoption) 

H. BILLS FOR PAYMENT AND RECORD OF DISBURSEMENTS

The motion was made by Treasurer Lewis and supported by Trustee McKinney to approve the
bills for payment and record of disbursements.

Roll Call: Dabish Yahkind – Yes, Devereaux – Yes, Greene – Yes, Lewis – Yes,
McKinney – Yes, Robinson – Yes

Absent: Schwartz

The motion carried unanimously.

I. PLEAS AND PETITIONS
• T.C. Collins shared his support of the Sycamore Meadows and Danbury Green

communities and asked the board to investigate the property managers, who are not
upholding the proper standard of living for these communities.

Page 52 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 21, 2025 
PROPOSED MINUTES 
PAGE 19 

19 

• Irma Golden (Sheffield Dr.) discussed the need for a diverse Board of Review that
represents every resident in Superior Township. She listed her qualifications and experience
serving the community and addressed the issue of indefinite appointments noting that she
served three years on the Board of Review while other appointed candidates had served 10-
20 years. She finished by declaring her intent to continue organizing forums to educate
residents on issues related to the Board of Review regardless of her appointment status.

• Brenda Baker (Ashton Ct.) requested that draft board minutes be posted in advance on the
township website. She also asked the board to reconsider the new rule limiting public
comments to agenda items at the start of the meeting, explaining that it could discourage
participation from first-time attendees.

• Bernice Lindke (Alan Mark Dr.) commended the board for creating much needed policies
and procedures and emphasized the need for a clear financial reporting process. Referencing
her own time in office, she explained that not all board members had access to accurate
financial information and implored all members of the current board to work with the
controller to develop a deep understanding of the financials.

• Mrs. Muhammad requested the board consider rescinding the approval of the 2% raise
given to the salaries of the Supervisor, Clerk, and Treasurer due to the financial deficit.

• Rickey Harding questioned whether the Deputy Supervisor position came before the board
for approval and why there was an estimated 91.3% increase in the position’s salary.

J. ADJOURNMENT
The motion was made by Trustee McKinney and supported by Trustee Greene to adjourn the
meeting. The motion carried and the meeting adjourned at 9:20 p.m.

Respectfully submitted, 

Angela Robinson, Clerk  Emily Dabish Yahkind, Supervisor 

Page 53 of 314



Page 54 of 314



Page 55 of 314



Page 56 of 314



Page 57 of 314



Page 58 of 314



Page 59 of 314



Page 60 of 314



Page 61 of 314



Page 62 of 314



Page 63 of 314



Page 64 of 314



Page 65 of 314



Page 66 of 314



Page 67 of 314



Page 68 of 314



Page 69 of 314



Page 70 of 314



Page 71 of 314



Page 72 of 314



Page 73 of 314



Page 74 of 314



Page 75 of 314



Page 76 of 314



Page 77 of 314



Page 78 of 314



Page 79 of 314



Page 80 of 314



Page 81 of 314



Page 82 of 314



Page 83 of 314



Page 84 of 314



Page 85 of 314



Page 86 of 314



Page 87 of 314



This Page Is Intentionally Left Blank 

Page 88 of 314



Building Department Report 

10 February, 2025 

1) Despite the winter weather, new home construction continues at Prospect Pointe
West. Phase 2 was approved to proceed on 9/10/2024. The road’s are completed and
water and sewer mains are underway. They have submitted documents for Phase 3.
They have been averaging 2 new starts per month.

2) Huron Dental Clinic at 5387 Plymouth /AA rd. has passed the electrical and framing
rough for the 2 second floor apartments. Drywall has started on the second floor.

3) The roads are completed for the Kinsley subdivision. We just received Plans and
application for the first 2 new house for the actual sub itself.

4) 6595 Plymouth A/A is in the drywall and exterior finishes stage right now.

5) We currently have 14 separate custom homes being built in the Township.

6) No change to the Blight/Hoarding situation at 4745 Napier Ct., is still in a holding
pattern. The structure is boarded up and secure while arrangements are being
worked on to demolish the buildings and prepare the property for sale.

7) There continues to be an average of 2-week delay in permit processing, due to the
lag-time caused by the outsourcing of Zoning. This is no reflection on Diane at Carlisle
Wartman. It is just a logistical reality.

Page 89 of 314



Page 90 of 314



Page 91 of 314



Page 92 of 314



Page 93 of 314



Page 94 of 314



Page 95 of 314



Page 96 of 314



Page 97 of 314



Page 98 of 314



Page 99 of 314



Page 100 of 314



Page 101 of 314



Page 102 of 314



Page 103 of 314



Page 104 of 314



Page 105 of 314



Page 106 of 314



Page 107 of 314



Page 108 of 314



Page 109 of 314



Page 110 of 314



Page 111 of 314



Page 112 of 314



Page 113 of 314



Page 114 of 314



Page 115 of 314



Page 116 of 314



Page 117 of 314



Page 118 of 314



Page 119 of 314



Page 120 of 314



Approved by the Superior Charter Township Park Commission on 1/27/2025 

 1 

Superior Charter Township Parks & Recreation Commission 
Regular Meeting 

December 16, 2024 

Approved Minutes 

1. Call to Order
The meeting was called to order at 6:00 pm by Chair Nahid Sanii-Yahyai.

2. Roll Call
Park Commissioners present: Curtis Freeman, Matthew Yahyai, Greg Vessels, Nahid Sanii-Yahyai, Martha Kern-
Boprie, Jack Smiley

Park Commissioners absent: Sharon Bryant-Phillips

Others present, Juan Bradford, Parks & Recreation Director, Brenda Baker, Steven Peach, Trustee Dana Green,
Don Waligor

3. Flag Salute
Chair Nahid Sanii-Yahyai led those assembled in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.

4. Agenda Approval
It was moved by Curtis Freeman and supported by Matthew Yahyai to approve the agenda as drafted.  The
motion carried.

5. Prior Meeting Minutes Approval
A. November 25, 2024 Regular Meeting

It was moved by Greg Vessels and supported by Curtis Freeman to approve the minutes of 11/25/2024
with the following corrections.  In Old Business item D, insert between the words “…informed of a state
law” and the words “requires in cases…” the word “that” so the sentence reads “…informed of a state law
that requires in cases…”.  In New Business item A. In the sentences covering the election of the Vice-
Chairperson, correct the spelling from “Vic-Chairperson” to “Vice-Chairperson” each time the word
appears.  The motion carried.

6. Citizen Participation
There was none.

7. Reports
A. Chairperson

Chair Nahid Sanii-Yahyai reported she spoke with Ken Schwartz and Emily Dabish-Yahkind about the 2025
budget for Parks and Recreation.  She also noted that the Christmas event in Dixboro was a success.

B. Director
Juan Bradford submitted a written report.  He added to this report that maintenance staff are on winter
hours now.

C. Township Board Liaison
There was no report, as the township board has not appointed a Liaison to the Park Commission yet.

D. Township Board Meeting Attendee
Curtis Freeman, Juan Bradford and Martha Kern-Boprie attended the special township board meeting on
December 12.  Martha submitted a written report.

Page 121 of 314



Approved by the Superior Charter Township Park Commission on 1/27/2025 

 2 

E. Park Steward
No contact with Ellen Kurath.

F. Safety
No accidents or injuries in the past month.

It was moved by Martha Kern-Boprie and supported by Greg Vessels to receive the reports.  The motion
carried.

8. Communications
A. Dixboro Village Green 2025 Schedule of Events
B. TF23-0058 Project Agreement executed by DNR
It was moved by Curtis Freeman and supported by Martha Kern-Boprie to receive the Communications.  The
motion carried.

9. Old Business
A. 2025 Farming Agreement

Due to current state law that requires tenants of publicly owned property to pay property tax on the
property, farmer Steven Peach will not pay rent in return for use of the “Rock Property” acreage.  Instead,
he will perform services that will benefit the property.

B. “Rock Property” Committee Update
Jack Smiley informed the Park Commission that the next meeting of the “Rock Property” committee will
take place in January 2025.

C. 2025 Proposed Budget
There will be no increase to the 2025 Park Fund budget.  Supervisor Emily Dabish-Yahkind stated she and
her staff identified a $1,600,000 loss in the General Fund reserve, and there is no source to fund a budget
increase to the Park Fund.

10. New Business
A. 2024 Final Budget Amendments

These were adjustments between budget activities that did not impact total budget.

B. It was moved by Martha Kern-Boprie and supported by Nahid Sanii-Yahyai to adopt:
Resolution 2024-3: Ducks Unlimited Grant
RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE ENTERING INTO A CONTRACT WITH DUCKS UNLIMITED ACCEPTING A
WETLANDS CONSERVATION GRANT

PARKS & RECREATION COMMISSION RESOLUTION 2024-03

DECEMBER 16, 2024

WHEREAS, the Michigan Department of Natural Resources has authority to issue grants for the
development of public outdoor recreation facilities under sections 602 and 603 of section 9901 of the
Social Security Act of Public Law No. 117-2, known as the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARPA),
signed into law on March 11, 2021, as the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (SLFRF), and;

WHEREAS, Governor Gretchen Whitmer signed a supplemental appropriations bill (Public Act 5 of 2023)
securing $10 million of American Rescue Plan Act funding for wetland restoration, enhancement, and
acquisition to aid in the reduction of phosphorus, nitrogen, and sediment entering Lake Erie and Saginaw
Bay.  This supplemental funding will improve the water quality of Lake Erie and Saginaw Bay to support
communities and Great Lakes tourism and related economic sectors that have been adversely impacted
by the COVID-19 pandemic, and;

Page 122 of 314



Approved by the Superior Charter Township Park Commission on 1/27/2025 

 3 

WHEREAS, Michigan Department of Natural Resources developed the Wetlands Conservation Program to 
guide expenditure for a portion of these funds, and selected Ducks Unlimited, a non-profit company that 
has preserved, enhanced, or restored 16 million acres of wetlands in North America since 1937, through 
a competitive process to manage the “ARPA Lake Erie and Saginaw Bay Watersheds Wetland Conservation 
Program”, program as a fiduciary agent, and; 

WHEREAS, Ducks Unlimited intends to serve as the “ARPA Lake Erie and Saginaw Bay Watersheds Wetland 
Conservation Program”, grant administrator, and; 

WHEREAS, the Superior Township Parks & Recreation Commission intends to be a sub-recipient of Ducks 
Unlimited ARPA grant funds in the amount of $300,000.00, and; 

WHEREAS, the Superior Township Parks & Recreation Commission will utilize the $300,000.00 as a 
portion of the local match towards the purchase of Parcel J-10-20-100-002 which comprises 162 acres of 
land on Cherry Hill Road directly south of the Cherry Hill Nature Preserve, and; 

WHEREAS, Superior Township was recently awarded a Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund grant IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $1,020,000.00 for the purchase of Parcel J-10-20-100-002, and; 

WHEREAS, the purchase of Parcel J-10-20-100-002 will connect the 160-acre Cherry Hill Nature Preserve 
to the north with the 302 acres recently purchased by the Township to the south, creating a continuous 
624 acres of protected Township-owned land, and; 

WHEREAS, the purchase of Parcel J-10-20-100-002 is in furtherance of the Parks & Recreation 
Commission’s 2023-2027 Parks, Recreation & Open Space Master Plan. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Superior Township Parks and Recreation Commission 
authorizes entering into a Sub-Award Agreement with Ducks Unlimited for their Wetland Conservation 
Program, and receiving grant funding in the amount of $300,000.00 to be utilized as a portion of the local 
match toward the purchase of Parcel J-10-20-100-002.  

A roll call vote was taken. 
Yes No Absent Abstain 

Curtis Freeman X 
Matthew Yahyai X 
Greg Vessels  X 
Nahid Sanii-Yahyai  X 
Martha Kern-Boprie  X 
Jack Smiley  X 
Sharon Bryant-Phillips  X 

The motion carried and the resolution was adopted. 

C. 2025 Parks & Recreation Commission meeting dates
It was moved by Martha Kern-Boprie and supported by Nahid Sanii-Yahyai to approve the following
schedule for Parks & Recreation Commission meetings in 2025.
January 27, 2025 Monday 6:30 pm 
February 24, 2025 Monday 6:30 pm 
March 24, 2025 Monday 6:30 pm 
April 28, 2025 Monday 6:30 pm 
May 27, 2025 Tuesday* 6:30 pm *held Tuesday due to Memorial Day holiday 
June 23, 2025 Monday 6:30 pm 
July 28, 2025  Monday 6:30 pm 

Page 123 of 314



Approved by the Superior Charter Township Park Commission on 1/27/2025 

 4 

August 25, 2025 Monday 6:30 pm 
September 22, 2025 Monday 6:30 pm 
October 27, 2025 Monday 6:30 pm 
November 24, 2025 Monday` 6:30 pm 
December 15, 2025 Monday  6:00 pm* 

*held on third Monday at 6:00 pm due to proximity to Christmas holiday and
township board meeting

        The motion carried. 

D. 2025 Township Board Meeting Attendees
Park Commissioner volunteered to attend the following Township Board meetings on behalf of the Park
Commission.
Meeting Date Park Commissioner 
January 21, 2025 Tuesday Nahid Sanii-Yahyai 
February 18, 2025 Tuesday Greg Vessels 
March 17, 2025 Monday Curtis Freeman 
April 21, 2025 Monday Martha Kern-Boprie 
May 19, 2025 Monday Greg Vessels 
June 16, 2025 Monday Jack Smiley 
July 21, 2025  Monday Sharon Bryant-Phillips 
August 19, 2025 Monday Sharon Bryant-Phillips 
September 15, 2025 Monday Curtis Freeman 
October 20, 2025 Monday Matthew Yahyai 
November 17, 2025 Monday Nahid Sanii-Yahyai 
December 15, 2025 Monday Martha Kern-Boprie 

11. Bills for Payment
It was moved by Matthew Yahyai and supported by Greg Vessels to approve payment of the bills totaling
$67,711.31 through December 16, 2024.  The motion carried.

12. Financial Statements
A. November 30, 2024 Revenue & Expenditure Report
B. November 30, 2024 Balance Sheet
It was moved by Martha Kern-Boprie and supported by Greg Vessels to receive the November 2024 financial
statements.  The motion carried.

13. Pleas and Petitions
Brenda Baker expressed concern about the safety of the ramp into the old Township Hall, as it is partially
covered by a juniper bush.

Jack Smiley asked if the presentation by Legacy Land Conservancy on their “tool kit” has been scheduled.
Juan Bradford reported the presentation is scheduled for March 10, 2025.

14. Adjournment
It was moved by Curtis Freeman and supported by Matthew Yahyai to adjourn at 6:30 pm.

Submitted by, 
Martha Kern-Boprie 
Park Commissioner and Secretary 

Page 124 of 314



Page 125 of 314



Page 126 of 314



Page 127 of 314



Utility Department Memorandum 

To:  Superior Township Board of Trustees 

From:  Mary Burton 

Date  February 18, 2025 

Re:  Utility Department Report 

• Stamford Water Main Replacement

The Stamford Water Main project is underway and the utility

maintenance team located 16 gate valves for the project.  When

the contractor is ready to complete the tie-in, crews will be ready to

isolate the main in the area.

• Danbury Park and Sycamore Meadows Delinquency

The water/sewer bills for Danbury Park and Sycamore Meadows are

delinquent. The current arrearages for Sycamore are more than

$94K and $67K for Danbury Park.

• St. Joseph Hospital Meter Replacement Program

Meter replacements are being planned for the Cooling Towers and

the Professional & Ed buildings. St. Joseph has agreed to move

forward with the meter replacement program.

• Prospect Point Dye Test

YCUA will conduct a dye test on Monday, February 10th at Prospect

Point.

• Water Main Break – Hemlock Ct

A water main break occurred on January 22nd on Hemlock Court.

Due to the extremely frigid conditions, repairs were delayed until

the following morning. There were about 12 residents that were

affected by the break and notified of the outage.

• Ross & Rodney Hunt Valve Exercise

On February 6th, the maintenance crew turned off the Booster

Station pumps and the incoming valve closed for a few hours. This

allowed the DWSD meter pit to open and be the main feed for the

Page 128 of 314



Utility Department Report          

2 

 

Township. This process opened the Ross and Rodney Hunt valves 

during the exercise.  

• Updating Utility Standard Detail Sheets:

The Utility Department Standard Detail Sheets have not been

updated since 2010. This is a much needed project since there are

new products and materials that have been introduced for water

and sewer systems. We hope to work with OHM to complete the

update for the detail sheets.

• Sewer Checks

Weekly and annual sewer checks have been completed for the

month of January.

• Bacti Samples

Bacti, TTHM, HAA5 and WQP samples at Geddes Site One sample

station have been taken and submitted for testing.

Page 129 of 314



JANUARY 2025 ASSESSING DEPARTMENT REPORT 

TO: Superior Township Board of Trustees 

FROM: Paula Calopisis, Assessor 

SUBJECT: Assessing Department Activity Report for the February 18, 2025 Meeting 
(not a complete list) 

The assessor conducted the following business activities during the month of January: 

• Spoke with numerous residents and potential purchasers with questions regarding the
Land Division Act, Principal Residence and Veterans exemption laws, and other state laws

• Worked with zoning and the county to answer questions regarding land divisions and
zoning compliance

• Continued to search for sales to be used for setting up the assessed values for Superior
Township (residential, commercial, agricultural, and industrial)

• Scheduled and attended the mandatory State Tax Commission Updates certification class
with my department

• Created and submitted revenue generation information

• Continued working on the economic condition factors that will determine the increase or
decrease in the assessed values for every property owner in the township

• Continued working on the land values for every property in the township

• Worked with a title company to pro-rate a veteran’s exemption

• Exchanged e-mails with accountants regarding personal property questions

• Prepared the 2025 Poverty Exemption Guidelines and Resolution

• Dealt with 5 FOIA requests

The appraisers conducted the following business activities during the month of January: 

• Completed site visits for 24 final building inspections which included new construction

• Accepted and entered 51 property transfers, principal residence exemptions, and rescinds

• Assisted with numerous general phone calls that came in to the township

• Conducted 156 year end permit inspections by visiting each site and determining the
percentage of completed construction so they can each be entered for 2025 assessments

• Assisted residents with assessing questions at the counter and on the phone

• Assisted 6 veterans with exemption paperwork

• Assisted 1 residents with poverty exemption paperwork

• Entered 240 year end percentage of completions utilizing building plans and surveys. This

information will be used to set up the 2025 assessments for each new construction

• Attended the mandatory State Tax Commission Updates certification class

Page 130 of 314



1 

MEMO 

TO: Superior Charter Township Board of Trustees 

FROM: Diane Mulville-Friel, Planning & Zoning Administrator 

RE: Planning & Zoning Department Report 

DATE: January 16, 2025 

PROSPECT POINTE WEST 

Prospect Pointe West is a four-phase single-family residential development project, on an ~67 acre parcel 
of land zoned R-4 an Urban Residential District. The development is located on the southwest corner of 
Geddes Road and Prospect Road, west of Hunters Creek Drive in the northeast quarter of Section 33. The 
applicant is proposing to develop Prospect Pointe West as a 157-unit site condominium. 

The four (4) phases consist of the following number of units: 
• Phase 1 – 39 units
• Phase 2 – 45 units
• Phase 3 – 26 units
• Phase 4 – 47 units

The proposed lot dimensions are 66' x 130' with a minimum lot size of 8,580 sf. The homes will range in size 
from 2,000 to 3,200 sf with sales prices starting in the $400,000s. The development has private roads with 
sidewalks on both sides and will be serviced by public sanitary sewer which will be designed as an extension 
of the existing Prospect Pointe development. Public water will also be extended from the existing 
subdivision.  Each of the phase of the development is required to go through the Final Site Plan process. 

The Final Site Plan for Prospect Pointe West Phase 1 (STPC #22-03) was approved by action of the Superior 
Township Planning Commission on April 26, 2023, and includes 39 single family lots. Building permits for 
individual homes are being issued and construction has commenced. 

The Final Site Plan for Prospect Pointe West Phase 2 (STPC #24-01) was approved by action of the Superior 
Township Planning Commission on May 22, 2024, and includes 45 single family lots. The Development 
Agreement for Phase 2 has been recorded and a preconstruction meeting was held on September 10, 2024. 

The Final Site Plan for Prospect Pointe West Phase 2 (STPC #25-01) was received by the Township in 
December 2024 and is being assessed for completeness prior to sending to reviewers.   

Page 131 of 314



2 

BROOKWOOD 

Brookwood is a Master Planned Community on an ~84 acre parcel of land zoned Planned Community (PC) a 
Special District. The development is located on the east side of Leforge Road approximately 700 feet north 
of Clark Road in the southwest corner of Section 33. The applicant is proposing to develop Brookwood with 
318 dwelling units divided into three (3) residential dwelling product types (i.e., stacked flats, duplex units, 
four-plex units, and attached townhomes).  

The development is designed for renters and owners plus a section dedicated for people over 55 years of 
age. Stacked flats and duplexes are anticipated to rent from $1.50 - $2.50 per square foot. The townhomes 
will be for sale and priced per unit according to the market. The development will also include a clubhouse, 
amenity areas, paved parking areas, landscape improvement, and a continuous sidewalk network along 
private drives throughout the development and walking paths that connect amenities and with various 
areas of the development. Existing public water and sanitary sewer mains will be extended to serve the 
development. 

The Brookwood Superior Area Plan Amendment was approved at second reading by the Township Board on 
May 20, 2024. 

The Brookwood Superior Preliminary Site Plan (STPC #23-05) was approved by action of the Superior 
Township Planning Commission on May 22, 2024, with the following conditions: 

1) Address all items in the Township Engineers May 9, 2024, review.
2) Provide additional details on Natural Feature Plan including how the 25% slopes will be protected,

and their integrity remain intact.
3) Provide a more detailed landscape plan that meets all landscape, screening, and woodland

preservation requirements.
4) Provide lighting and photometric plan.
5) Provide a detailed narrative of the architectural concept for the site including materials details.

The applicant submitted a Final Site Plan application on November 22, 2024.  The plans are in the process of 
being reviewed by the Township and applicable outside agencies.  It is anticipated the Final Site Plan may 
be ready for the Superior Township Planning Commission to review at their regular scheduled meeting in 
February or March. 

GARRETT’S SPACE 

Garrett’s Space is proposed to be a residential center where young adults suffering from depression and 
anxiety are treated.  The facility will include both inpatient and daily services, with a non-medical and non-
institutional focus.  Garrett’s Space is proposed on seven (7) parcels that will be combined into one lot 
totaling approximately 76.0 acres.  The property has historically been used as a single-family residence with 
an address of 3900 Dixboro Road and is in Section 7 of the Township. The site includes significant natural 
resources including woodlands, steep slopes, a creek, floodplain, and wetlands.  

Page 132 of 314



3 

The applicant proposes the following improvements: 
1) Convert the existing home on the site to administrative offices
2) Construct a 10,100 square foot building to house 15 to 20 residents
3) Construct a 2,100 square foot building for recreational and therapy activities
4) Construction of a parking lot
5) Landscaping improvements
6) Create walking paths and lookouts through the site’s natural features.
7) Expanding the sites well and sceptic system
8) Construct two (2) stormwater detention ponds

The applicant proposes a phased development: 
ه Phase 1: Use of the existing house for administrative offices and day programming. This phase does 

not include any overnight guests. 
ه Phase 2: Construction of the residential structure and creativity studio with parking areas, and 

utility and landscaping improvements. This phase includes expanded day programming and 
overnight residents.  

ه Phase 3: Additional ancillary elements, including the barn for gardening and therapeutic animals, 
and outdoor recreation and gathering spaces, will be constructed as funding allows. 

Previous Township approvals are as follows: 
ه Property was rezoned from A-2 to Planned Community (PC) Special District via an Area Plan petition 

approved by the Township Board on July 17, 2023. 

ه The applicant recorded a Zoning and Land Use Agreement dated October 16, 2023, that limits uses, 
the number of residents and the number of employees.   

ه A Preliminary Site Plan (STPC 23-03) was approved by the Planning Commission with conditions on 
January 24, 2024. 

ه A Final Site Plan (STPC 23-03) was approved by the Planning Commission on September 25, 2024, 
with the following conditions:  
1) Obtain all outside agency approvals permits outlined in Township Engineer’s memo dated

9/19/24.
2) Combine existing seven (7) parcels into one parcel prior to receiving certificate of occupancy.
3) Record conservation protection prior to certificate of occupancy.

ه  A Development Agreement was approved by the Township Board on October 21, 2024. 

The applicant is in the process of completing the three (3) Final Site Plan conditions of approval referenced 
above.  Staff meet with the Garrett’s Space team on December 12, 2024, to discuss next steps.   

Page 133 of 314



4 

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

The last ZBA meeting was held April 8, 2024.  The following two (2) cases are active and pending review: 

1) ZBA #24-02 - 5766 Geddes Road
Continuance of an appeal of the decision of the Township Zoning Administrator

2) ZBA #24-03 - 7486 Plymouth-Ann Arbor Road
Variance from Section 3.101 (Dimensional Standards) to allow for an attached accessory structure
to be constructed in the front yard setback.

Per bylaws, the ZBA consists of seven (7) regular and two (2) alternates members appointed by the 
Township Board.  One (1) of the members must be a member of the Township Planning Commission and 
one member may be a member of the Township Board.  The remaining members must reside in the 
unincorporated areas of the Township and represent the population distribution and various interests 
present.  Supervisor Dabish Yahkind is actively identifying and recommending new ZBA appointments.   

All current ZBA members were queried and asked whether they wanted to continue serving and if they were 
available for regular scheduled ZBA meetings.  Current members that will continue to serve on the ZBA 
include: 

• Thomas Brennan
• Rachel Smith

The Township Board approved the following new members to serve on the ZBA: 
• Dana Greene (ZBA & BOT)
• Guy Conti (ZBA)
• Meghan Winslow (ZBA)
• Jack Gilbreath (ZBA)

One (1) ZBA position remains open and the Township is accepting applications. 

Historically, the Township has not had regular scheduled ZBA meetings and has been convening as needed.  
This is not efficient, and it is recommended that regular meeting be scheduled for the 2nd Wednesday of 
the month; if there are no agenda items, the meeting would be cancelled.  The next ZBA meeting is 
anticipated to be scheduled for February 12 or March 12, 2025. 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

The next Planning Commission meeting is scheduled for January 22, 2024.  Agenda items reviewed at the 
that meeting included: 

Page 134 of 314



5 

POLICY DISCUSSION  

1. Adoption of the 2025 Meeting Schedule
2. Election of Officers for 2025
3. Review of Ordinance No. 181 Establishing the Planning Commission
4. Zoning Ordinance Rewrite Update

Final site plans submitted for Brookwood (STPC 23-05) and Prospect Pointe West Phase 3 (STPC 25-01) and 
a request received from The Meadows at Hawthorn Mills (STPC21-01) for a one-year extension of the 
approved Final Site Plan, are the only new petitions submitted for the Planning Commission to consider at a 
future meeting.  It is anticipated that these items will be reviewed at the February or March Planning 
Commission meeting.    

Besides these agenda items, the Zoning Ordinance Rewrite Steering Committee (appointed by the Township 
Board on October 21, 2024) will be convening.  Three (3) Planning Commissioners (Jay Gardner, Thomas 
Brennan, and Nahid Sanii-Yahyai) were identified to serve on this Steering Committee and the first meeting 
was held December 18, 2024. 

Like the ZBA, new appointments are necessary for the Planning Commission.  Per bylaws, the Planning 
Commission shall consist of seven (7) members serving for three (3) year terms with eligibility for re-
appointment. One member of the Township Board shall be appointed to the Planning Commission as an ex 
officio member and Township Board Representative, with full voting rights. The Planning Commission was 
comprised of following: 

ه Jay Gardner, Chair (Term expires 2/28/2026) 
ه Robert Steel, Vice Chair (Term expires 2/28/2025) 
ه Thomas Brennan, Secretary (Term expires 2/28/2027) 
ه Patrick McGill (Term expires 2/28/2027) 
ه Nahid Sanii-Yahyai (Term expires 2/28/2026) 
ه Lynette Findley, Board Rep (Term expires 11/5/2024) 
ه Emily Dabish Yahkind, Board Rep (Term expires 3/1/2027) 

Lynette Findley is no longer on the Board of Trustees and her position on the Planning Commission will be 
replaced by Brenda McKinney.   Emily Dabish Yahkind was appointed Township Supervisor her regular seat 
on the Planning Commission will be filled by Curt Wolf.  All other Planning Commission members will 
continue to serve.  Robert Steel will need to be reappointed because his seat expires on February 28, 2025. 

OTHER BUSINESS/NEWS 

1) Diane Muville-Friel of Carlisle Wortman Associates (CWA), continues to serve as the Township
Planning and Zoning Administrator as approved by the Board of Trustees at their meeting on May
20, 2024.  Over the last eight (8) months, she has reviewed approximately 175 Zoning Compliance
Certificates and responded to 230+ phone calls and email inquiries from the general public.  She

Page 135 of 314



6 

also manages and attends the ZBA and Planning Commission meetings and responds to Board of 
Trustee inquiries. 

2) Carlisle Wortman Associates staff also serve in the role as the Township Planner and review and
manage projects that are paid from escrows including applicant inquiries and project coordination.

Page 136 of 314



Page 137 of 314



Page 138 of 314



Page 139 of 314



Page 140 of 314



Page 141 of 314



Page 142 of 314



Page 143 of 314



Page 144 of 314



Page 145 of 314



Page 146 of 314



Page 147 of 314



Page 148 of 314



Page 149 of 314



Page 150 of 314



Page 151 of 314



Page 152 of 314



Page 153 of 314



Page 154 of 314



Page 155 of 314



Page 156 of 314



Page 157 of 314



Page 158 of 314



Page 159 of 314



Page 160 of 314



Page 161 of 314



Page 162 of 314



Page 163 of 314



Page 164 of 314



Page 165 of 314



Page 166 of 314



Page 167 of 314



Page 168 of 314



Page 169 of 314



Page 170 of 314



Page 171 of 314



Page 172 of 314



Page 173 of 314



Page 174 of 314



Page 175 of 314



Page 176 of 314



Page 177 of 314



Page 178 of 314



Page 179 of 314



Page 180 of 314



Page 181 of 314



Page 182 of 314



Page 183 of 314



Page 184 of 314



Page 185 of 314



Page 186 of 314



Page 187 of 314



Page 188 of 314



Page 189 of 314



Page 190 of 314



Page 191 of 314



Page 192 of 314



Page 193 of 314



Page 194 of 314



Page 195 of 314



Page 196 of 314



Page 197 of 314



Page 198 of 314



Page 199 of 314



Page 200 of 314



Page 201 of 314



Page 202 of 314



Page 203 of 314



Page 204 of 314



Page 205 of 314



Page 206 of 314



Page 207 of 314



This Page Is Intentionally Left Blank 

Page 208 of 314



Page 209 of 314



Page 210 of 314



Page 211 of 314



Page 212 of 314



Page 213 of 314



Page 214 of 314



Page 215 of 314



Page 216 of 314



Page 217 of 314



Learn about options for conserving or managing your farmland
and natural areas. Following the presentation, staff from local
conservation organizations will be available to discuss individual
properties.

Superior
Township

March 10th, 2025 7-8:30
PM

3040 N Prospect Rd
Superior Township, MI

48198

Protecting Your Land,
Preserving Our Future

F
A

R
M

L
A

N
D

 A
N

D
 N

A
T

U
R

A
L

 A
R

E
A

S

RSVP appreciated: 
washtenawcd.org/events 

or 734-302-8715

Your Role in Conserving Washtenaw County’s Natural and Agricultural
Landscapes

Scan QR code using your
phone’s camera app to registerPage 218 of 314



             Grobbel Environmental & Planning Associates
P O  B o x  5 8   L a k e  L e e l a n a u   M i c h i g a n  4 9 6 5 3

February 11, 2025 

Emily Dabish Yahkind, Supervisor 
Superior Charter Township 
3040 North Prospect 
Superior Township, MI 48198 

RE: Summary of Conservation Easements and other Voluntary Property Use Restrictions in Michigan. 

Dear Supervisor Yahkind, 

It is my understanding that the Superior Township Board of Trustees has been requested by representative(s) of 
Garrett’s Space to change the required Conservation Easement (CE) to a deed restriction within their Planned 
Community. There are substantive differences between these two approaches. 

Conservation easements (CE) are voluntary contractual agreements between two parties that restrict and limit  
future development of a parcel, or portions of a parcel, in perpetuity. Under Michigan law (i.e., MCL 324.2140), 
CEs may be held by land trusts, local units of government, or the State of Michigan.  1

CEs may be and are typically highly-tailored to the specific needs, circumstances and conditions of a parcel and 
its landowner(s). Like other real property easements, a CE is a right of use, not a fee simple or propriety/owner-
ship interest in a parcel, that runs with the land not with the landowner(s). A valid, legally executed CE binds and 
is incumbent upon all future landowners. CE properties remain in private ownership, and do not allow public   
access or use, i.e., are typically intended to conserve natural resources, productive farmland, environmental      
features, and/or historic places/structures. 

CEs differ in large part from other forms of voluntary property use restrictions (i.e., deed restrictions, covenants, 
and/or deed conditions) as CEs must involve a 3rd party who holds and enforces the terms of the CE at the    
subject parcel. While also typically in perpetuity, these other forms of deed restrictions are self-enforced by a 
landowner/warranty deed holder. 

As spelled out in a CE, it is typical for CE holders to have the right to enter the subject parcel at reasonable 
times and reasonable prior notice to monitor and/or enforce the terms of a CE agreement. 

Land trusts and local units of government often work cooperatively, and as such a land trust may enter early into a 
CE negotiations to tailor and secure the CE, and then transfer a parcel CE to the local unit of government for 
long-term CE monitoring, enforcement and/or occasionally forms of property maintenance. 

 MCL 324.2140 Definitions: (a) "Conservation easement" means an interest in land that provides limitation on the use of land or a body of 1

water or requires or prohibits certain acts on or with respect to the land or body of water, whether or not the interest is stated in the form of a 
restriction, easement, covenant, or condition in a deed, will, or other instrument executed by or on behalf of the owner of the land or body of 
water or in an order of taking, which interest is appropriate to retaining or maintaining the land or body of water, including improvements on 
the land or body of water, predominantly in its natural, scenic, or open condition, or in an agricultural, farming, open space, or forest use, or 
similar use or condition.

Environmental and Planning Consultants 
phone 231-499-7165   grobbelenvironmental@gmail.com

Page 219 of 314



To Superior Township Planning Commission and Board of Trustees, 

We were alerted today that Garrett’s Space is asking to alter the initial agreement with the 
Township and requesting to use a deed restriction to manage the property rather than 
seeking for conservation easement as originally planned. Conservative easement 
agreement was the major selling point for the approval for rezoning during public hearing as 
they discussed about the public benefit. 

I believe that switching over to a deed restriction will minimize oversight from the 
government that enforces appropriate use of the land, which is problematic for a civilian 
neighbor who shares boarder with Garrett’s Space and already have many concerns 
including safety and environmental pollution regarding this facility. 

It is also alarming to hear many changes in their aspiration that has been made since 
rezoning was approved. Despite the promise as a non medical facility, Michigan Daily ran 
an article and referred to the facility as an emergency room alternative. It is reasonable to 
think that if an individual is looking for emergency alternatives, the patient is severely ill and 
will need a certain level of medical treatment. This brings safety concerns and also goes 
against what was promised to the public including the immediate neighbors.  

Please continue to maintain what was initially promised and request Garrett’s Space to 
search for a third party to oversee their conservation easement for their neighbors. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Page 220 of 314



This Page Is Intentionally Left Blank 

Page 221 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 
WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

ORDINANCE AMENDING  
DANBURY PARK MANOR TAX EXEMPTION ORDINANCE NO. 159 

First Reading: January 21, 2025 

Second Reading: February 18, 2025 

WHEREAS, this amendment was introduced on January 21, 2025. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Charter Township of Superior ordains: 

Section 1. Amendment to Add Section 159.09A. Ordinance 159, the Charter 
Township of Superior Danbury Park Manor Tax Exemption Ordinance is amended by 
adding a new Section 159.09A. Section 159.09A shall read in its entirety as follows: 

Sec. 159.09A. Service charge constitutes a lien on property. 

The service charge shall constitute a lien on the housing project property and 
improvements, effective at the same times and enforceable in the same 
manner as general property taxes. 

Section 2. Amendment to Add Section 159.09B. Ordinance 159, the Charter 
Township of Superior Danbury Park Manor Tax Exemption Ordinance is amended by 
adding a new Section 159.09B. Section 159.09B shall read in its entirety as follows: 

Sec. 159.09B. Collection of service charge. 

The service charge as determined by this division shall be payable in the same 
manner as general property taxes, except that the annual payment shall be paid 
on or before August 15 of each year during which the exemption is in 
effect. The entire tax collection procedure provided by the General Property 
Tax Act; (MCL 211.1 et seq.) shall be effective and utilized with respect 
to such payment, including, but not limited to, the provisions providing for 
interest and penalties on late payments, return of delinquent taxes, tax lien, and 
the sale of lands for delinquent taxes. In the event of a delinquency in the 
payment in lieu of taxes, the township shall issue a tax bill for the premises 
and include the required payment as a delinquent tax. In its discretion, in the 
event of a delinquent payment, the township may also declare a default. 

Section 3. Amendment to Add Section 159.09C. Ordinance 159, the Charter 
Township of Superior Danbury Park Manor Tax Exemption Ordinance is amended by 
adding a new Section 159.09C. Section 159.09C shall read in its entirety as follows: 

Page 222 of 314



Sec. 159.09C. Service charge lien. 

In the event Housing Development is sold, transferred, or refinanced by the 
Sponsor or a related entity of the Sponsor, any delinquency owed to the 
Township pursuant to this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect and 
without further action by the Sponsor or the Township to otherwise change, alter 
or amend this Ordinance. Further, said delinquency shall constitute a lien on the 
Development until such time as the delinquency and all accrued service charges 
and interest are paid in full. 

Section 4. Amendment to Add Section 159.09D Ordinance 159, the Charter 
Township of Superior Danbury Park Manor Tax Exemption Ordinance is amended by 
adding a new Section 159.09D. Section 159.09D shall read in its entirety as follows: 

Sec. 159.09D. Default. 

In addition to the remedies set forth Sections 159.09A, 159.09B and 
159.09C, in the event Sponsor is more than six (6) months delinquent in 
paying the required annual payment, the Township may file suit in the 
appropriate court in Washtenaw County, Michigan to collect any and all such 
delinquencies a related entity of the Sponsor, any delinquency owed to the 
Township pursuant to this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect and 
without further action by the Sponsor or the Township to otherwise 
change, alter or amend this Ordinance. 

Section 5.  Saving Clause. 

All provisions of Ordinance 159, the Superior Charter Township Danbury Park Manor Tax 
Exemption Ordinance, not amended by this ordinance remain in full force and effect. 

Section 6.  Publication and Effective Date. 

This Ordinance shall be published by posting in the Office of the Clerk, 3040 N. Prospect, 
Ypsilanti, 48198, and on the Township website - www.superior-twp.org - pursuant to 
Section 8 of the Charter Township Act, being MCL 42.8(3)(b) within thirty (30) days 
following the final adoption thereof. This Ordinance shall become effective upon 
publication All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

Ordinance declared adopted on February 18, 2025. 

Emily Yahkind Dabish, Supervisor 
Superior Charter Township 

Page 223 of 314



CERTIFICATE OF ADOPTION AND PUBLICATION 

I, Angela Robinson, Clerk of the Charter Township of Superior, Washtenaw County, 
Michigan, hereby certify that this is a true copy of an Ordinance adopted by the Superior 
Charter Township Board for first reading at a regular meeting held on January 21, 2025 and for 
final reading on February 18, 2025 and published as required by law. 

Angela Robinson, Clerk 
Superior Charter Township 

Page 224 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 
WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE SUPERIOR TOWNSHIP APPOINTMENTS 
TO THE BOARD OF REVIEW 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2025-02 

DATE: JANUARY 21, 2024 

APPOINTMENTS 

TO: Superior Township Board of Trustees 

SUBJECT: Superior Township Appointments 

Board of Review Appointments to be made effective immediately: 

James Switala; term expires January 2027 
John G. MacNicol; term expires January 2027 
Brian G. Clark; term expires January 2027 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board members are hereby duly 
appointed to serve on the committees, commissions, boards, and authorities of Superior 
Township, as outlined above, and shall undertake their respective roles with the dedication and 
expertise required to further the goals and responsibilities of these bodies. 

Page 225 of 314



This Page Is Intentionally Left Blank 

Page 226 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 
WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE SUPERIOR TOWNSHIP APPOINTMENT 
TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2025-07 

DATE: FEBRUARY 18, 2025 

PLANNING COMMISSION: 

Planning Commission Appointments to be made effective 
immediately: 

Robert Steele, Term Expires February 2028 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the board member is hereby duly 
appointed to serve on the committees, commissions, boards, and authorities of Superior 
Township, as outlined above, and shall undertake their respective role with the dedication and 
expertise required to further the goals and responsibilities of these bodies. 

Page 227 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 
WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AMENDED AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN SUPERIOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP PARKS & RECREATION 

COMMISSION AND WILLOW RUN ACRES REGARDING  
CLAYHILL COMMUNITY FARM AND GARDEN 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2025-08 

DATE: FEBRUARY 18, 2025 

WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Superior is a Michigan municipal corporation that 
provides public services to residents of the Township, especially services that support the well-
being of families in the QCT; and, 

WHEREAS, Willow Run Acres created a self-sustaining community farm (Clay Hill Farm 
Market), on the southeast corner of MacArthur Blvd. and Harris Rd. in the Charter Township of 
Superior. Clay Hill Farm Market allows people of all ages and backgrounds to grow, harvest and 
sell produce obtained from the land, while also allowing space for building community, and 
economic stability for the residents; and, 

WHEREAS, the Township Planning Commission recommended the rezoning of the land 
stated in the following agreement for the purpose of the Clay Hill Farm Market; and, 

WHEREAS, the Township Board of Trustees approved unanimously the rezoning of the 
land stated in the following agreement for the purpose of the Clay Hill Farm Market; and, 

WHEREAS, on January 21, 2025, the Township approved an amendment to the lease 
agreement between the Township and Willow Run Acres to extend the term of the lease from ten 
years to fifteen years, contingent on Willow Run Acres securing grant funds for Clay Hill 
Community Farma and Garden; and 

WHEREAS, the parties now desire to further amend this lease by adding language setting 
a deadline for securing such grant funding.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Charter Township of Superior Board 
of Trustees hereby further amends the agreement between the Charter Township of Superior Parks 
& Recreation Commission and Willow Run Acres concerning Clay Hill Community Farm and 
Garden which was executed on February 3, 2025 to add the following language to the amended 
lease: 

In the event WRA fails to secure such an award by no later than August 1, 2025, this 
amendment to the lease shall be null and void and the lease term will revert to original lease 
term of ten (10) years. 

Page 228 of 314



RESTATED AMENDMENT TO LEASE AGREEMENT 

On October 16, 2023, the Charter Township of Superior (“Superior Township”)and Willow Run 
Acres, LLC (“WRA”) entered into a lease agreement for the following described real property: 

Harris Road – J-10-35-200-009 

W.D. L3325 P924 ****FROM 1035200007 07/22/96SU 35-5A-1A-1A COM AT
NW COR SEC 35, TH S 01-47-15 E 1520.09 FT ALNGC/L HARRIS RD TO POB,
TH N 88-27-45 E 233.00 FT, TH S 01-47-15 E 236.11 FT, TH N 82-44-06 W 235.95
FT, TH N 01-47-15 W 200.00 FT TO POB. PT OF NW 1/4 SEC 35, T2S-R7E. 1.17
AC.

9045 MacArthur Blvd – J-10-35 200-004 

*OLD SID - J 10-035-006-10 SU 35-5A-2 COM AT NW COR OF SEC, TH S 1DEG
47' 15" E 2151.7 FT, TH S 87 DEG 56' 30" E 196.7 FT, TH N 4 DEG 40' E 60 FT
TO POB, TH N 1 DEG 47' 15" W140 FT, TH N 88 DEG 12' 45" E 280 FT, TH S 1
DEG 47' 15" E 189.93 FT, TH NWLY 284.61 FT ON ARC OF CURV-RADIUS 2230
FT-CHORD N 81 DEG 40' 36" W 284.42 FT TO POB PART NW 1/4 SEC 35 T2S
R7E. 1.06 AC.

1850 Harris Road – J-10-35-200-003 

*OLD SID - J 10-035-006-05 SU 35-5A-1C COM AT NW CORNER SEC 5, TH S
1-47-15 E 2151.7 FT TO POB, TH S 87-56-30 E 196.7 FT, TH N 4-40 E 60 FT, TH
N 1-47-15 W 213.57 FT, TH S 88-12-45 W 203.0 FT, TH SOUTH TO POB PART
OF NW 1/4 SEC 35 T2S R7E 1.0 AC.

On January 21, 2025, the Township Board of Superior Township approved a resolution to amend 
the lease agreement by extending the lease agreement from ten (10) years to fifteen (15) years with 
an expiration date of October 16, 2039, contingent on WRA securing a USDA award under the 
cost sharing program for Clay Hill Community Farm and Garden. Also, on February 17, 2025, the 
Township Board approved a further amendment to the lease setting a deadline for securing such 
grant funding. 

Therefore, the lease agreement between Superior Township and WRA is amended as follows: 

1. The term of the lease, as set forth in paragraph 2 of the original lease, is amended from ten
(10) years to fifteen (15) years, with an expiration date of October 16, 2039, contingent on
WRA securing a USDA award under the cost sharing program for Clay Hill Community
Farm and Garden

2. In the event that WRA fails to secure such an award by no later than August 1, 2025 this
amendment to the lease shall be null and void and the lease term will revert to original
lease term of ten (10) years.

Signatures on following page 

Page 229 of 314



Charter Township of Superior Charter Township of Superior 

By: Emily Dabish Yahkind By: Angela Robinson 
Its: Supervisor Its: Clerk 

Charter Township of Superior  
Parks and Recreation Department 

By: Juan Bradford 
Its: Director 

Willow Run Acres, LLC 

By: Takuna Collins 
Its: Director/Member 

Page 230 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 
WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE PURCHASE OF LAPTOPS 
FOR ELECTION PRECINCT USE 

RESOLUTON NUMBER: 2025-09 

DATE: FEBRUARY 18, 2025 

WHEREAS, the need for updated and functional laptops for election precincts use has 
been identified to comply with current operational and technical requirements set by the State of 
Michigan/Election Security Reimbursement program, ensuring the precinct operates smoothly 
and efficiently; 

WHEREAS, the total cost for purchasing 5 laptops is $3,678.20, with the requirement 
that the laptops meet updated specifications necessary to support precinct operations; 

WHEREAS, the State of Michigan will reimburse up to $1,000 per precinct, based on 
the amount spent, for a total reimbursement of up to $5,000, to help offset the total cost of the 
laptops; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Charter Township of Superior 
authorizes the purchase of 5 laptops totaling $3,678.20 to meet the updated operational and 
technical requirements for election precinct use, ensuring the precinct runs efficiently; 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Charter Township of Superior requests 
reimbursement from the State of Michigan of up to $1,000 per precinct, based on the amount 
spent, for a total reimbursement of up to $5,000, to offset the cost of the laptops. 

Page 231 of 314



Agenda Item: Authorization for the Purchase of Laptops for Precinct Use 

Purpose: 
To seek approval for the purchase of 5 laptops for election precincts use in compliance with the 
updated operational and technical requirements set by the State of Michigan. 

Background: 
The State of Michigan has established updated technical requirements for precincts to ensure 
smooth and efficient operations. To meet these requirements, 5 laptops need to be purchased at a 
total cost of $3,678.20. The State will reimburse up to $1,000 per precinct, based on the amount 
spent, for a total reimbursement of up to $5,000, which will offset the cost of the laptops. 

Recommendation: 
It is recommended that the Charter Township of Superior approve the purchase of 5 laptops 
totaling $3,678.20 and authorize the request for reimbursement from the State of Michigan of up 
to $1,000 per precinct, based on the amount spent, for a total reimbursement of up to $5,000. 

Page 232 of 314



Product Unit Price Quantity Subtotal

Dell Latitude 3550 $694.00 5 $3,470.00

Subtotal: $3,470.00
Shipping: $0.00

Estimated Tax: $208.20

Total: $3,678.20

From: Holly.Mcwilliams@Dell.com <Holly.Mcwilliams@Dell.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, January 21, 2025 8:15 AM
To: Angela Robinson <arobinson@superior-twp.org>
Subject: Your Dell Quote 3000185087011.1

Your quote is ready for purchase.
Complete the purchase of your personalized quote through our secure online checkout 

before the quote expires on Feb. 20, 2025.

You can download a copy of this quote during checkout.

Place your order

Quote No. 3000185087011.1
Total $3,678.20
Customer # 530038509152
Quoted On Jan. 21, 2025
Expires by Feb. 20, 2025
Contract Name State of Michigan -

071B6600111
Contract Code C000000009850
Customer Agreement # 071B6600111
Deal ID 25814942

Sales Rep Holly Mcwilliams
Phone 737-289-0160
Email Holly_Mcwilliams@Dell.com
Billing To ANGELA ROBINSON

CHARTER TOWNSHIP AT
SUPERIOR
3040 N PROSPECT RD
YPSILANTI, MI  48198-
9447

Message from your Sales Rep
Please use the Order button to securely place the order with your preferred payment
method online. You may contact your Dell sales team if you have any questions. Thank
you for shopping with Dell.

Regards,
Holly Mcwilliams

Page 233 of 314

https://nam02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.dell.com%2Fquote%2Fpurchase%2Fordernow%2Fen-us%2Fvalidatequote%3Fcontext%3DkQ4OumQYKJ7na9rxipx5zDnpJxDQDmdThQLZBgZ7pSIgfdTHDSewDRjOF3WukYjIeindt4zpnGQkf7lmDFZCWQ3NVMQmh9O2csL0YVEjZO4AGew5CZBcmx6OlNyp%252B9rqw8FPLCakK%252FxR9VwDQlUfg9bQC3f%252FW6xLBwb4Fx%252FRlwA%253D%26contextversion%3D2%26ref%3Dcce_em_qto&data=05%7C02%7Ccbenitez%40superior-twp.org%7C0678c34ed7c742c9b0ae08dd4c494bc4%7Ceebeaa9f0cfe4ee9822d0cefd4fc38a2%7C0%7C0%7C638750599926449517%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=R0yC9f%2BD1Uaha2gi1WdsbTcG8TWtvy8ZrQ2RTtomL%2BA%3D&reserved=0
mailto:Holly_Mcwilliams@Dell.com


The Consultant for its part agrees to provide services in accordance with the items listed in Exhibit 
A - Scope of Services attached hereto and other provisions of this Agreement. 

SECTION 2.0 - REPRESENTATION AND COMMUNICATIONS 

It is understood and agreed that Ben Carlisle and Brent Strong will represent the Consultant and 
that Emily Dabish Yahkind will represent the Client in all matters pertaining to the execution of 
this Agreement.  From time to time, the Parties may identify other or additional personnel to 
assist in the execution of matters pertaining to this Agreement. 

SECTION 3.0 - PAYMENT FOR SERVICES 

3.1

3.2

For services described under this agreement and Exhibit A - Scope of Services, 
the Consultant shall be paid in accordance with the rate schedule and fees listed in 
Exhibit B – Rates & Fees.

The Consultant shall present the Client an invoice each month based on work performed 
in the previous month.  Invoices shall be paid within thirty (30) days after receipt by the 
Client. 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR
WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE AGREEMENT FOR RENTAL HOUSING 
CERTIFICATION CONSULTING SERVICE

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2025-10

DATE: FEBRUARY 18, 2025

WHEREAS, this agreement is entered into this 18th day of February 2025, by the 
Superior Charter Township hereinafter referred to as the “Client” and Carlisle/
Wortman Associates, Inc. hereinafter referred to as the “Consultant.” 

WHEREAS, The Client desires to engage the Consultant to provide assistance with 
rental housing certification services. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED in consideration of the foregoing, 
and of the mutual agreement hereinafter set forth, the parties hereto legally intending to 
be bound hereby do agree for themselves and their respective successors and assigns as 
follows: 

SECTION 1.0 - RENTAL HOUSING CERTIFICATION CONSULTING SERVICES 

Page 234 of 314



SECTION 4.0 - CLIENT RESPONSIBILITY

The Client shall be responsible to maintain its BS&A Bldg.NET software program (or an 
acceptable alternative), provide a suitable work space, and provide necessary supplies and 
postage for program mailings for the Consultant’s use to administer the Scope of Services. 

SECTION 5.0 - OWNERSHIP OF MATERIALS 

5.1 

5.2 

5.3 

5.4 

5.5 

Any work product, materials, and documents produced by the Consultant pursuant to this 
Agreement shall be and remain property of the Client and shall not be made subject to 
any copyright unless authorized by the Client. The Consultant hereby assigns to the 
Client the copyright to all works prepared, developed, or created pursuant to the 
services outlined in this Agreement, including the rights to: (1) reproduce the work; (2) 
prepare derivative works; (3) distribute copies to the public by sale, rental, lease, or 
lending; (4) perform the works publicly; and (5) to display the work publicly. The 
Consultant waives its right to claim authorship of the works, to prevent its name 
from being used in connection with the works, and to prevent distortion of the works. 

Other materials, methodology and proprietary work used or provided by the Consultant to 
The Client not specifically created and delivered pursuant to the Services outlined in this 
Agreement may be protected by a copyright held by the Consultant and the 
Consultant reserves all rights granted to it by any copyright. The Client shall not 
reproduce, sell, or otherwise make copies of any copyrighted material, subject to the 
following exceptions: (1) for exclusive use internally by The Client staff and/or 
employees; or (2) pursuant to a request under the Michigan Freedom of Information Act, 
MCL 15,231, et seq., or any other state or federal open records act, to the extent that 
such statutes apply; or (3) pursuant to law, regulations, or court order. The Consultant 
waives any right to prevent its name from being used in connection with the services. 

The Consultant will be provided with a copy of the the Client’s Freedom of Information 
Act (“FOIA”) policy. The Client is responsible for responses to FOIA requests, and 
the Consultant shall not directly respond to any third parties regarding any received 
FOIA requests.  Upon receipt of a FOIA request, the Consultant shall immediately 
give that request to the the Client Clerk. The Consultant shall provide specific 
information requested by the Client for response to the FOIA request by the date and time 
requested by the the Client Clerk or in a specific format if so requested by the the Client 
Clerk. 

If the Consultant receives a claim for damages, a summons or complaint, a subpoena or 
other document concerning a request for money damages, a threat of a lawsuit, or any 
court action proceeding, the Consultant shall immediately hand deliver these documents 
to the the Client Clerk. 

In the event of litigation, the Client acknowledges that the Consultant can only produce 
information or materials requested at any point in the litigation process with 

Page 235 of 314



authorization from the the Client Attorney, or designated Legal Counsel. The Client 
agrees to defend the Consultant against any and all claims when the Consultant is 
operating under the direction of the the Client Attorney, or other designated Legal 
Counsel, regarding such matters. 

SECTION 6.0 - INSURANCE AND LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

6.1 During the term of this agreement, the Consultant agrees to procure and maintain in 
effect insurance policies in the amounts and with the types of coverage shown below: 

1. Professional liability insurance protecting the Consultant and its employees in an
amount not less than $2,000,000.

2. Workers Compensation Insurance in the form and amount required by Michigan
law.

3. Commercial General Liability Insurance on an “Occurrence Basis” with limits
of liability not less than $2,000,000 per occurrence and/or aggregate
combined single limit, Personal Injury, Bodily Injury and Property Damage.

6.2 The Client and the Consultant shall have no liability to each other for any claim relating 
to this agreement in excess of the fees and expenses paid to the Consultant except 
pursuant to indemnification obligations concerning third party claims under Section 
7.0.  In no event shall the Client and the Consultant be liable to each other for 
indirect, special, incidental, or consequential damages, even if the Client and the 
Consultant have been advised of the possibility of such damages.  Except as otherwise 
specifically provided in this agreement, neither party’s liability to the other party under 
this Agreement shall exceed the total amounts paid or payable by the Client under this 
Agreement. 

SECTION 7.0 - INDEMNIFICATION

The Consultant agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold the Client 
harmless from damages and losses arising from the negligent acts, errors or omissions of the 
Consultant in the performance of professional services under this Agreement, to the extent that 
the Consultant is responsible for such damages and losses on a comparative basis of fault and 
responsibility between the Consultant and the Client. The Consultant is not obligated to 
indemnify the Client for the Client's own negligence. 

SECTION 8.0 - TERMS OF AGREEMENT 

The term of this Agreement shall be for a period of approximately three (3) years from the date 
first entered into through December 31, 2027, unless mutually extended. In the event services 

Page 236 of 314



continue to be provided beyond the expiration date, all rates and fees shall be adjusted five-
percent (5%) unless otherwise mutually agreed upon by the parties. 

This Agreement may be terminated by either the Client or Consultant individually or jointly 
upon sixty (60) days written notice. Compensation during the notice period would be paid by the 
Client to the Consultant if services are faithfully rendered to the Client. 

SECTION 9.0 – GENERAL PROVISIONS 

9.1 

9.2 

9.3 

9.4 

9.5 

9.6 

9.7 

The Exhibits attached to and referenced in this Agreement are incorporated into this 
Agreement by reference and expressly made an integral and component part of this 
Agreement for all purposes and shall be binding upon the Parties. References to any 
Exhibit in this Agreement shall be deemed to include this reference and incorporation. 

Any notice under this Agreement shall be addressed and directed to the representatives 
of the Parties identified in Section 2.0. 

The headings contained in this Agreement are for convenience in reference and are not 
intended to define or limit the scope of any provision of this Agreement. 

This Agreement is intended solely for the mutual benefit of the Parties hereto, and there 
is no intention, expressed or otherwise, to create any rights or interest for any party or 
person other than the Parties. 

CWA shall perform the services under this Agreement as an independent contractor and 
shall not be deemed by virtue of this Agreement to have entered into any partnership, 
joint venture, employer/employee or other relationship with the Client other than as a 
contracting party and independent contractor. Employees of CWA shall not be deemed 
to be employees of the Client for purposes of compensation, fringe benefits, workers' 
compensation, unemployment compensation, minimum wage laws, income tax 
withholding, social security, or any other purpose. 

CWA will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of 
race, color, religion, sex or national origin. CWA will take affirmative action to 
ensure applicants are employed, and employees are treated during employment without 
regard to their race, color, religion, sex or national origin. Such action shall include, but 
not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer; 
recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of payor 
other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. 

Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to waive, limit, or otherwise modify any 
governmental immunity that may be available by law to the Client, its officials, 
employees, contractors, agents, volunteers, or any other person acting on behalf of the 

Page 237 of 314



9.8 

9.9 

Client and, in particular, governmental immunity afforded or available pursuant to the 
Michigan Governmental Immunity Act, MCL 691.1401, et. seq. 

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties, and all prior 
discussion, agreements and understandings, whether verbal or in writing, are merged into 
this Agreement. 

If any section, subsection, clause, phrase or portion of this Agreement is for any reason 
held invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, that 
portion shall be considered a separate, distinct and independent portion of this 
Agreement, and the remaining portions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and 
effect. 

Page 238 of 314



Benjamin R. Carlisle, President   John L. Enos, Vice President   Douglas J. Lewan, Principal 

David Scurto, Principal   Sally M. Elmiger, Principal   R. Donald Wortman, Principal   Craig Strong, Principal 

Paul Montagno, Principal   Megan Masson-Minock, Principal   Brent Strong, Principal   Laura Kreps, Principal 

Richard K. Carlisle, Past President/Senior Principal 

AGREEMENT FOR RENTAL HOUSING CERTIFICATION 
CONSULTING SERVICES 

THIS AGREEMENT, entered into this _________ day of ____________________ 2025, by 
the Superior Charter Township hereinafter referred to as the “Client” and Carlisle/Wortman 
Associates, Inc. hereinafter referred to as the “Consultant.” 

WHEREAS, The Client desires to engage the Consultant to provide assistance with rental 
housing certification services. 

NOW, THEREFORE, In consideration of the foregoing, and of the mutual agreement 
hereinafter set forth, the parties hereto legally intending to be bound hereby do agree for 
themselves and their respective successors and assigns as follows: 

SECTION 1.0 - RENTAL HOUSING CERTIFICATION CONSULTING SERVICES 

The Consultant for its part agrees to provide services in accordance with the items listed in Exhibit 
A - Scope of Services attached hereto and other provisions of this Agreement. 

SECTION 2.0 - REPRESENTATION AND COMMUNICATIONS 

It is understood and agreed that Ben Carlisle and Brent Strong will represent the Consultant and 
that Emily Dabish Yahkind will represent the Client in all matters pertaining to the execution of 
this Agreement.  From time to time, the Parties may identify other or additional personnel to 
assist in the execution of matters pertaining to this Agreement. 

SECTION 3.0 - PAYMENT FOR SERVICES 

3.1 For services described under this agreement and Exhibit A - Scope of Services, the 
Consultant shall be paid in accordance with the rate schedule and fees listed in Exhibit B 
– Rates & Fees.

3.2 The Consultant shall present the Client an invoice each month based on work performed 
in the previous month.  Invoices shall be paid within thirty (30) days after receipt by the 
Client. 

Page 239 of 314



SECTION 4.0 - CLIENT RESPONSIBILITY 

The Client shall be responsible to maintain its BS&A Bldg.NET software program (or an acceptable 
alternative), provide a suitable work space, and provide necessary supplies and postage for 
program mailings for the Consultant’s use to administer the Scope of Services. 

SECTION 5.0 - OWNERSHIP OF MATERIALS 

5.1 Any work product, materials, and documents produced by the Consultant pursuant to this 
Agreement shall be and remain property of the Client and shall not be made subject to 
any copyright unless authorized by the Client. The Consultant hereby assigns to the Client 
the copyright to all works prepared, developed, or created pursuant to the services 
outlined in this Agreement, including the rights to: (1) reproduce the work; (2) prepare 
derivative works; (3) distribute copies to the public by sale, rental, lease, or lending; (4) 
perform the works publicly; and (5) to display the work publicly. The Consultant waives 
its right to claim authorship of the works, to prevent its name from being used in 
connection with the works, and to prevent distortion of the works. 

5.2 Other materials, methodology and proprietary work used or provided by the Consultant 
to The Client not specifically created and delivered pursuant to the Services outlined in 
this Agreement may be protected by a copyright held by the Consultant and the 
Consultant reserves all rights granted to it by any copyright. The Client shall not 
reproduce, sell, or otherwise make copies of any copyrighted material, subject to the 
following exceptions: (1) for exclusive use internally by The Client staff and/or employees; 
or (2) pursuant to a request under the Michigan Freedom of Information Act, MCL 15,231, 
et seq., or any other state or federal open records act, to the extent that such statutes 
apply; or (3) pursuant to law, regulations, or court order. The Consultant waives any right 
to prevent its name from being used in connection with the services. 

5.3 The Consultant will be provided with a copy of the the Client’s Freedom of Information 
Act (“FOIA”) policy. The Client is responsible for responses to FOIA requests, and the 
Consultant shall not directly respond to any third parties regarding any received FOIA 
requests.  Upon receipt of a FOIA request, the Consultant shall immediately give that 
request to the the Client Clerk. The Consultant shall provide specific information 
requested by the Client for response to the FOIA request by the date and time requested 
by the the Client Clerk or in a specific format if so requested by the the Client Clerk. 

5.4 If the Consultant receives a claim for damages, a summons or complaint, a subpoena or 
other document concerning a request for money damages, a threat of a lawsuit, or any 
court action proceeding, the Consultant shall immediately hand deliver these documents 
to the the Client Clerk. 

5.5 In the event of litigation, the Client acknowledges that the Consultant can only produce 
information or materials requested at any point in the litigation process with 

Page 240 of 314



authorization from the the Client Attorney, or designated Legal Counsel. The Client agrees 
to defend the Consultant against any and all claims when the Consultant is operating 
under the direction of the the Client Attorney, or other designated Legal Counsel, 
regarding such matters. 

SECTION 6.0 - INSURANCE AND LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 

6.1 During the term of this agreement, the Consultant agrees to procure and maintain in 
effect insurance policies in the amounts and with the types of coverage shown below: 

1. Professional liability insurance protecting the Consultant and its employees in an
amount not less than $2,000,000.

2. Workers Compensation Insurance in the form and amount required by Michigan
law.

3. Commercial General Liability Insurance on an “Occurrence Basis” with limits of
liability not less than $2,000,000 per occurrence and/or aggregate combined
single limit, Personal Injury, Bodily Injury and Property Damage.

6.2 The Client and the Consultant shall have no liability to each other for any claim relating to 
this agreement in excess of the fees and expenses paid to the Consultant except pursuant 
to indemnification obligations concerning third party claims under Section 7.0.  In no 
event shall the Client and the Consultant be liable to each other for indirect, special, 
incidental, or consequential damages, even if the Client and the Consultant have been 
advised of the possibility of such damages.  Except as otherwise specifically provided in 
this agreement, neither party’s liability to the other party under this Agreement shall 
exceed the total amounts paid or payable by the Client under this Agreement. 

SECTION 7.0 - INDEMNIFICATION 

The Consultant agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold the Client 
harmless from damages and losses arising from the negligent acts, errors or omissions of the 
Consultant in the performance of professional services under this Agreement, to the extent that 
the Consultant is responsible for such damages and losses on a comparative basis of fault and 
responsibility between the Consultant and the Client. The Consultant is not obligated to 
indemnify the Client for the Client's own negligence. 

SECTION 8.0 - TERMS OF AGREEMENT 

The term of this Agreement shall be for a period of approximately three (3) years from the date 
first entered into through December 31, 2027, unless mutually extended. In the event services 

Page 241 of 314



continue to be provided beyond the expiration date, all rates and fees shall be adjusted five-
percent (5%) unless otherwise mutually agreed upon by the parties. 

This Agreement may be terminated by either the Client or Consultant individually or jointly upon 
sixty (60) days written notice. Compensation during the notice period would be paid by the Client 
to the Consultant if services are faithfully rendered to the Client. 

SECTION 9.0 – GENERAL PROVISIONS 

9.1 The Exhibits attached to and referenced in this Agreement are incorporated into this 
Agreement by reference and expressly made an integral and component part of this 
Agreement for all purposes and shall be binding upon the Parties. References to any 
Exhibit in this Agreement shall be deemed to include this reference and incorporation. 

9.2 Any notice under this Agreement shall be addressed and directed to the representatives 
of the Parties identified in Section 2.0. 

9.3 The headings contained in this Agreement are for convenience in reference and are not 
intended to define or limit the scope of any provision of this Agreement. 

9.4 This Agreement is intended solely for the mutual benefit of the Parties hereto, and there 
is no intention, expressed or otherwise, to create any rights or interest for any party or 
person other than the Parties. 

9.5 CWA shall perform the services under this Agreement as an independent contractor and 
shall not be deemed by virtue of this Agreement to have entered into any partnership, 
joint venture, employer/employee or other relationship with the Client other than as a 
contracting party and independent contractor. Employees of CWA shall not be deemed 
to be employees of the Client for purposes of compensation, fringe benefits, workers' 
compensation, unemployment compensation, minimum wage laws, income tax 
withholding, social security, or any other purpose. 

9.6 CWA will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of 
race, color, religion, sex or national origin. CWA will take affirmative action to ensure 
applicants are employed, and employees are treated during employment without regard 
to their race, color, religion, sex or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be 
limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer; recruitment or 
recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of payor other forms of 
compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. 

9.7 Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to waive, limit, or otherwise modify any 
governmental immunity that may be available by law to the Client, its officials, 
employees, contractors, agents, volunteers, or any other person acting on behalf of the 

Page 242 of 314



Client and, in particular, governmental immunity afforded or available pursuant to the 
Michigan Governmental Immunity Act, MCL 691.1401, et. seq. 

9.8 This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties, and all prior 
discussion, agreements and understandings, whether verbal or in writing, are merged into 
this Agreement. 

9.9 If any section, subsection, clause, phrase or portion of this Agreement is for any reason 
held invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, that 
portion shall be considered a separate, distinct and independent portion of this 
Agreement, and the remaining portions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and 
effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The Consultant and the Client execute this Agreement as of the 
date first set forth in this Agreement. 

WITNESS CLIENT 

Emily Dabish Yahkind 
Township Supervisor 

Angela Robinson 
Township Clerk 

CONSULTANT 

Benjamin R. Carlisle, AICP 
President 
Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 

Page 243 of 314



EXHIBIT A 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

CWA agrees to coordinate with the Client and provide professional rental housing certification 
services as described in the Agreement and  Scope of Work below. The Client retains the right to make 
changes within the general scope of the agreement at any time by a written order. If the changes add 
to or deduct from the extent of the services, the contract sum shall be adjusted accordingly. All such 
changes shall be executed under the conditions of the original agreement. Phase I of the Scope of 
Work shall include the following: 

1. Ordinance Development

a) Deliver a draft rental housing certification ordinance for first reading consideration by the

Board of Trustees to replace, in its entirety, Ordinance No. 106 entitled, “Inspections of

Multiple Dwellings.” The ordinance will establish the core regulatory process and

inspection standards for equitable administration of a Rental Housing Certification

program. The ordinance will be inclusive of all types of rental housing, not only multiple

dwellings, with clear and achievable expectations for landlords and tenants alike.

b) Deliver a final rental housing certification ordinance that incorporates revisions derived

from Board and public input for second reading consideration and adoption.

c) In conjunction with the second reading, CWA will present a recommended Township fee

schedule that will fund the ongoing operation of a rental housing certification program

operated by CWA pursuant to this Agreement with no burden on the Township’s general

fund.

d) CWA will present a study of market rate rents in Superior Township and will estimate

landlord compliance costs based upon the Township fee schedule recommended for

adoption.

e) CWA will present draft and final versions of an ordinance amendment to Ordinaince No.

191 to upgrade the Township’s current 2015 property maintenance code with the 2021

edition of the International Property Maintenance Code customized to meet Superior

Township’s needs. The code will establish maintenance standards for use during rental

inspections and can also be applied to general blight enforcement as necessary.

f) Ordinance development and adoption shall commence upon acceptance and

authorization of this proposal in its entirety, and will be dependent upon two readings by

the Board of Trustees which will be achieved within two consecutive regular board

meetings (generally within 60 days).

Page 244 of 314



2. Program Implementation & Ongoing Operation

Following ordinance and fee schedule adoption, the second phase is designed to register known 

rental properties, identify and register previously unknown rental properties, schedule 

inspection appointments in a strategic manner, conduct inspections, and certify rental dwellings 

for continued occupancy. Phase II of the Scope of Work shall include the following: 

a) Host an educational seminar for landlords to introduce new regulations and provide

educational resources to assist with successful certification of properties.

b) Develop application forms that report all necessary information to facilitate rental

property registration, inspection, and certification.

c) Develop and post online resources on the Client’s website to assist landlords and tenants.

d) Help program the Township’s existing BS&A Bldg.NET software to facilitate registration,

invoicing, inspection, and certification of rental properties.

e) Invoice, collect and process rental registration forms and fees.

f) Strategically schedule and invoice rental inspections by appointment at the Township’s

discretion in order to certify all registered properties within the designated certification

time frame in alignment with requirements of the Housing Law of Michigan.

g) Conduct inspections, issue inspection reports detailing code deficiencies and repairs, and

conduct re-inspections to verify compliance as necessary.

h) Issue district court citations, when necessary, in order to achieve code compliance; and

recommend circuit court action, when necessary, to achieve code compliance.

i) Issue Certificates of Compliance when code requirements are met.

j) Notify landlords prior to certificate expiration and repeat the inspection process for each

certification cycle, typically every 24 months.

k) Respond and investigate tenant complaints of property maintenance deficiencies as

required by the Housing Law of Michigan.

l) Maintain a public registry of registered rental housing properties.

Page 245 of 314



m) Program implementation shall commence within 14 days of final adoption of all

associated ordinances and fee schedules.

3. Administrative and inspection staff performing services under this Agreement shall be
trained and experienced in rental housing certification processes, property maintenance
code enforcement, and customer service orientation.

4. The Parties mutually agree that CWA’s and its employees’ actions reflect on the
reputation of the Township. It is imperative to the Township that CWA and its employees
treat Township employees and the public with the utmost fairness and respect.

5. The quality of services under this Agreement shall be of the level of professional quality
performed by persons trained and regularly rendering this type of service.

6. CWA and its employees shall perform the services under this Agreement in compliance
with all applicable laws, ordinances, standards, and regulations.

7. Access to Client facilities by CWA and its employees assigned to the Township shall be
limited to the normal business hours of the Township except under circumstances with
prior permission granted by the Township Supervisor.

8. CWA shall make available registered and trained staff capable of filling in for regular staff
when illness, emergency or vacation require an absence of the regular staff.

Page 246 of 314



EXHIBIT B 
RATES AND FEES 

The Consultant shall charge the Client for the Scope of Services described in Exhibit A pursuant 
to the following rate schedule: 

REGISTRATION FEES (one-time fee per property ownership) 

SINGLE FAMILY HOUSES $75 Single family & owner-occupied duplex 

DUPLEX 2-FAMILY HOUSES $100 Duplex structure with two rental units 

MULTIFAMILY BUILDINGS $125 Per building with 3 or more units each 

INSPECTION FEES 

SINGLE FAMILY 

Inspection $125 Interior & Exterior 

DUPLEX / 2-FAMILY 

Inspection $70 Exterior Bldg & Grounds 

$70 Interior per Dwelling Unit 

MULTIFAMILY 

Inspection $125 Each Bldg Exterior & Grounds 

$75 Each Dwelling Unit 

$75 Each Accessory Facility (mechanical, laundry, 

boiler, pool/recreation, storage, office, etc) 

ALL STRUCTURES 

Re-Inspection $60 Each Compliance Verification Visit 

Property Posting $50 Non-Compliance Notice Posting 

Owner/Agent Transfer $30 Per Structure 

Late Cancellation (< 72 hrs notice) $25 *(one per cycle at no cost) 

Inspection No Show/Lock Out → Equal to Scheduled Inspection Fee

Complaint Response/Inspection $75 Billed to Tenant If No Code Violation(s) Verified 

$75 Billed to Owner if Code Violation(s) Verified 

Failure to Register Penalty $125 Per Structure + Required Inspection Fees 

Administrative Inspection Warrant $250 Per Dwelling Unit + Required Inspection Fees 

Note: Fees for Phase I Scope of Work entitled Ordinance Development shall be deferred upon 
acceptance and authorization of this Agreement in its entirety. 

Page 247 of 314



Meeting Attendance – For attendance at any scheduled meetings in accordance with the services 
rendered in this Agreement, above and beyond meetings described in the attached Scope of 
Work, the Consultant shall charge the following hourly rates: 

• CES Director/Principal $130/hr 

• Operations Manager $120/hr 

• Housing Administrator $  65/hr 

• Housing Inspector $  80/hr 

Meetings between CWA staff assigned to this Agreement and Township staff and officials that 
occur during regularly scheduled CWA staff business hours shall not be charged a fee. 

Page 248 of 314



Benjamin R. Carlisle, President   John L. Enos, Vice President   Douglas J. Lewan, Principal 

David Scurto, Principal   Sally M. Elmiger, Principal   R. Donald Wortman, Principal   Craig Strong, Principal 

Paul Montagno, Principal   Megan Masson-Minock, Principal   Laura Kreps, Principal   Brent Strong, Principal 

Richard K. Carlisle, Past President/Senior Principal 

February 10, 2025 

Emily Dabish Yahkind, Supervisor 

Superior Charter Township 

N. Prospect Rd

Ypsilanti, MI 48198

Proposal: Rental Housing Certification Program Development & Implementation 

Tramsitted by email only to: edy@superior-twp.org 

Dear Emily, 

Carlisle Wortman Associates (CWA) is pleased to provide the Township with this proposal for 

development and implementation of a comprehensive and equitable Rental Housing 

Certification program. CWA recommends a phased approach in alignment with the House Law 

of Michigan. CWA has extensive experience working with elected leaders, building officials and 

municipal attorneys to develop, implement, and administer a program that meets the unique 

needs of Superior Township. This proposal facilitates a budget-nuetral two-phase strategy to 

develop and implement rental housing certification requirements that are completely funded 

by user fees. 

Upon authorization of this proposal, CWA will: 

Phase I – Scope of Work: Ordinance Development 

1. Deliver a draft rental housing certification ordinance for first reading consideration by

the Board of Trustees. The ordinance will establish the core regulatory process and

inspection standards for equitable administration of a Rental Housing Certification

program. The ordinance will be inclusive of all types of rental housing with clear and

achievable expectations for landlords and tenants alike.

2. Deliver a final ordinance that incorporates revisions derived from Board and public

input for second reading consideration and adoption.

Page 249 of 314

mailto:edy@superior-twp.org


Proposal: Rental Housing Certification Program Development & Implementation 
February 10, 2025 

3. In conjunction with the second reading, CWA will present a recommended Township

fee schedule that will fund ongoing operation of a rental housing certification program

with no burden on the Township’s general fund.

4. CWA will present a study of market rate rents in Superior Township and will estimate

landlord compliance costs based upon the Township fee schedule recommended for

adoption.

5. In addition, CWA will present draft and final versions of an ordinance amendment to

upgrade the Township’s current 2015 property maintenance code with the 2021 edition

of the International Property Maintenance Code customized to meet Superior

Township’s needs. The code will establish maintenance standards for use during rental

inspections and can also be applied to general blight enforcement as necessary.

6. Ordinance development and adoption shall commence upon acceptance and

authorization of this proposal in its entirety, and will be dependent upon two readings

by the Board of Trustees which will be achieved within two consecutive regular board

meetings (generally within 60 days).

Phase II – Scope of Work: Program Implementation 

Following completion of Phase I, the second phase is designed to register known rental 

properties, identify and register previously unknown rental properties, schedule inspection 

appointments in a strategic manner, conduct inspections, and certify rental dwellings for 

continued occupancy. Elements of Phase II will include: 

1. Host an educational seminar for landlords to introduce new regulations and provide

educational resources to assist with successful certification of properties.

2. Develop application forms that report all necessary information to facilitate rental

property registration, inspection, and certification.

3. Develop and post online resources to assist landlords and tenants.

4. Program the Township’s existing BS&A Bldg.NET software to facilitate registration,

invoicing, inspection, and certification of rental properties.

5. Invoice, collect and process rental registration forms and fees.

Page 250 of 314



Proposal: Rental Housing Certification Program Development & Implementation 
February 10, 2025 

6. Strategically schedule rental inspections by appointment at the township’s discretion in

order to certify all registered properties within the designated certification time frame

in alignment with requirements of the Housing Law of Michigan.

7. Conduct inspections, issue inspection reports detailing code deficiencies and repairs,

and conduct re-inspections to verify compliance as necessary.

8. Issue district court citations, when necessary, in order to achieve code compliance; and

recommend circuit court action, when necessary, to achieve code compliance.

9. Issue Certificates of Compliance when code requirements are met.

10. Notify landlords prior to certificate expiration and repeat the process to completion for

each certification cycle.

11. Respond and investigate tenant complaints of property maintenance deficiencies as

required by the Housing Law of Michigan.

12. Maintain a public registry of registered rental housing properties.

13. Program implementation shall commence within 14 days of final adoption of all

associated ordinances and fee schedules.

Phase I Fees 

The fees for Phase I ordinance development shall be deferred and incorporated into the overall 

implementation strategy upon acceptance and authorization of this proposal and the 

accompanying contract agreement. The Phase I Scope of Work shall include up to two (2) 

evening meetings to facilitate ordinance adoption. Additional consultation not included in the 

Scope of Work will be charged on an hourly basis at the Township’s discretion. 

Phase II Fees 

Upon completion of the Phase I Scope of Work, CWA will implement and administer ongoing 

rental housing certification services in Superior Charter Township pursuant to the Phase II 

Scope of Work and fees outlined in the accompanying contractual agreement. Phase II fees 

shall be in alignment with the municipal fee schedule adopted by the Township so as to ensure 

Page 251 of 314



Proposal: Rental Housing Certification Program Development & Implementation 
February 10, 2025 

the program is operated with no burden on the Township’s general fund and that fees are 

representative of costs required to provide services. 

Summary 

CWA currently administers similar programs in municipalities in Washtenaw, Livingston, and 

Wayne counties. Our staff has extensive administrative and field experience working with 

landlords to achieve code compliance, responding to tenant complaints about property 

conditions, and coordinating with building officials to ensure all legally required building and 

trade permits are obtained for necessary repairs. 

Thank you very much for this opportunity to help improve the quality of rental housing for the 

residents of Superior Township. We look forward to working with your office and the Township 

Board of Trustees for the benefit of your residents. 

Sincerely, 

Emily Dabish Yahkind, Supervisor 

Superior Charter Township 

Page 252 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 
WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION TO PERMIT THE MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL 
RESOURCES (MDNR) TO PROCEED WITH A PUBLIC HEARING AND INVESTIGATE 
THE NEED FOR PRESCRIBED HUNTING AND FIREARM CONTROLS IN SUPERIOR 

TOWNSHIP 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2025-11 

DATE: FEBRUARY 18, 2025

WHEREAS, Superior Charter Township has an existing Hunting Restrictive Ordinance No. 
28 (as amended by Ordinance No. 40) that describes areas closed to hunting, special local regulations 
for hunting, and to provide for the safety of persons and property within the Township of Superior, 
Washtenaw County; and 

WHEREAS, the Township’s existing Hunting Restrictive Ordinance No. 28 (as amended by 
Ordinance No. 40) was enacted under the authority of the Hunting Area Control Act 159 of 1967 
(M.C.L 317.331); and 

WHEREAS, the Hunting Area Control Act 159 of 1967 (M.C.L. 317.331-317.336) was 
repealed in 1995, by Act 57, Imd. Eff. May 24, 1995; and 

WHEREAS, the Superior Township Board of Trustees is concerned about the safety and 
well-being of persons or property that may potentially be endangered by hunters or discharge of 
firearms or bow and arrows; and 

WHEREAS, for a Superior Township to establish or amend current hunting area controls, it 
must follow the process outlined in the state Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act 
(NREPA) Act 451 of 1994 (MCL 324.101 et seq); and 

WHEREAS, the Superior Township Board of Trustees may by resolution request the 
Michigan Department of Natural Resources (MDNR) to recommend closure of those areas where 
hunting or the discharge of firearms or bow and arrow may or is likely to kill, injure, or disturb 
persons who can reasonably be expected to be present in the areas or to destroy or damage buildings 
or personal property situated or customarily situated in the areas or will impair the general safety and 
welfare; and 

WHEREAS, the Superior Township Board of Trustees desires to initiate passing a resolution 
requesting the MDNR to conduct a public hearing locally to receive input, followed by an 
investigation of the need for prescribed hunting and firearm controls or amending current controls; 
and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Superior Township Board of Trustees 
approves to transmit this resolution to the MDNR to conduct a public hearing to receive input; 
investigate the need for prescribed hunting and firearm controls, and; to develop recommendations 
for prescribed hunting or firearms controls in accordance with the NREPA Act 451 of 1994 (MCL 
324.101 et seq). 

Page 253 of 314



MEMO 

TO: Superior Charter Township Board of Trustees 

FROM: Diane Mulville-Friel, Planning & Zoning Administrator 

RE: RESOLTUION TO PERMIT THE MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES (MDNR) TO PROCEED WITH 
A PUBLIC HEARING AND INVESTIGATE THE NEED FOR PRESCRIBED HUNTING AND FIREARM CONTROLS IN 
SUPERIOR TOWNSHIP. 

DATE: February 10, 2025 

Background 

Lt. Cratsenburg, Washtenaw County Sherrif reached out to the Township Supervisor regarding complaints received 
about hunting and indicated that the map of hunting restrictive areas included in the Township’s existing Hunting 
Restrictive Ordinance may not reflect some of the more recent subdivision developments.    

Township Supervisor Emily Dabish Yahkind asked Carlisle Wortman Associates (CWA) to determine whether the 
existing Hunting Restrictive Ordinance No. 28 (as amended by No. 40) needed to be updated. 

CWA contacted the Michigan Department of Natural Resources (MDNR) to explain that Superior Township is 
considering revising the Township’s Hunting Restrictive Ordinance.   

F/Lt. Thomas R. Wanless, MDNR Law Enforcement Division, responded to CWA’s request with procedures that a local 
unit of government must undertake to establish or amend current hunting area controls (local ordinances).  Such 
procedures are codified under state statute MCL - 451-1994-III-2-1-SHOOTING-AND-HUNTING-GROUNDS-419 - 
Michigan Legislature.  The process requires the MDNR to proceed with public hearings, investigations and studies to 
be made of the area as it considers appropriate and then make a statement of the facts of the situation as found at 
the hearing and as a result of its investigations.  The MDNR shall then prescribe regulations as are necessary to 
alleviate or correct the problems found. 

Recommended Action 

The Board of Trustees should approve the resolution to permit the MDNR to proceed with a public hearing and 
investigate the need for prescribed hunting and firearm controls in Superior Township in accordance with the state 
statute MCL - 451-1994-III-2-1-SHOOTING-AND-HUNTING-GROUNDS-419 - Michigan Legislature. 

Attached:  
• Superior Township Hunting Restrictive Ordinance No. 28 (As Amended by No. 40)
• MCL - 451-1994-III-2-1-SHOOTING-AND-HUNTING-GROUNDS-419 - Michigan Legislature
• RESOLTUION TO PERMIT THE MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES (MDNR) TO PROCEED WITH

A PUBLIC HEARING AND INVESTIGATE THE NEED FOR PRESCRIBED HUNTING AND FIREARM CONTROLS IN
SUPERIOR TOWNSHIP

Page 254 of 314

https://nam02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fsuperiortownship.org%2Fwp-content%2Fuploads%2F2016%2F10%2FOrdinance-28-and-40-Hunting-1.pdf&data=05%7C02%7Cplanning%40superior-twp.org%7C998618e2e62a4ccba2af08dd4ab5c86e%7Ceebeaa9f0cfe4ee9822d0cefd4fc38a2%7C0%7C0%7C638748866884730399%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=25ar71a4Qa%2BuKbAgQ4aAKd8QShXA8YkFcuPlN9r2uQw%3D&reserved=0
https://www.legislature.mi.gov/Laws/MCL?objectName=mcl-451-1994-III-2-1-SHOOTING-AND-HUNTING-GROUNDS-419
https://www.legislature.mi.gov/Laws/MCL?objectName=mcl-451-1994-III-2-1-SHOOTING-AND-HUNTING-GROUNDS-419


ORDINANCE  28 – HUNTING RESTRICTIONS 
PAGE 28-1 

SUPERIOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP  
WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

ORDINANCE  NO. 28  
AS AMENDED BY NO.  40 

HUNTING RESTRICTIVE ORDINANCE  

AN ORDINANCE TO DESCRIBE AREAS CLOSED TO HUNTING, SPECIAL LOCAL 
REGULATIONS FOR HUNTING, AND TO PROVIDE FOR THE SAFETY OF PERSONS AND 
PROPERTY WITHIN THE TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR, WASHTENAW COUNTY; ENACTED 

UNDER THE AUTHORITY OF ACT 159, PUBLIC ACTS OF 1967 (M.C.L. 317.331), BEING 
INDENTICAL TO STATE ADMINISTRATIVE RULES FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE 

SECRETARY OF STATE. 

THE TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR ORDAINS: 

Section 28-01.  All words and phrases used in this ordinance shall be construed and have the same 
meanings as those words and phrases defined in Act 159, P.A. 1967, H.C.L. 317.331. 

. 
Section 28-02. 

A. In the following sections of the Township hunting is prohibited:

Hunting with or the discharge of firearms is unlawful in the south ½  of Section 7 bounded on the 
north by State Highway 14, and in Sections 18, 19, 29, 30, 31, 32, 34, 35, and 36, Town 2 South, 
Range 7 East, Superior Township, Washtenaw County. 

B. In the following Sections of the Township Hunting is restricted:

Hunting with or the discharge of any firearms, other than a shotgun loaded with shot not larger 
than No. 2 is unlawful in Sections 5, 8, 9, 25, and 33, Town 2 South, Range 7 East, Superior 
Township, Washtenaw County, Michigan. 

C. In the following Section of the Township hunting with a rifle is prohibited:

Hunting with or the discharge of a rifle is unlawful in Section 17, Town 2 South, Range 7 East, 
Superior Township, Washtenaw County, Michigan 

Section 28-03. All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

Section 28-04. Violations of this ordinance are misdemeanor and may be punished by a fine not to 
exceed one hundred dollars ($100.00) together with costs of prosecution or imprisonment in the county 
jailor such other place of detention as the court may prescribe, for a period not to exceed ninety (90) 
days, or said fine, costs of prosecution, and imprisonment, at the discretion of the court. 

Section 28-05. This ordinance and the various parts, sections, subsections, provisions, sentences and 
clauses are severable. If any part of this ordinance is found to be unconstitutional or invalid it is declared 
the remainder of this ordinance shall not be affected hereby. 

Section 28-06. This ordinance shall take effect 30 days after its publication in the Ypsilanti Press and 
the Ann Arbor News. 

Page 255 of 314



ORDINANCE  28 – HUNTING RESTRICTIONS 
PAGE 28-2 

Page 256 of 314



NATURAL RESOURCES AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION ACT (EXCERPT)
Act 451 of 1994

PART 419
HUNTING AREA CONTROL

324.41901 Regulation and prohibitions in certain areas; powers of department; area
closures; hearings, investigations, studies, and statement of facts; regulations.
Sec. 41901. (1) In addition to all of the department powers, in the interest of public safety and the general

welfare, the department may regulate and prohibit hunting, and the discharge of firearms and bow and arrow,
as provided in this part, on those areas established under this part where hunting or the discharge of firearms
or bow and arrow may or is likely to kill, injure, or disturb persons who can reasonably be expected to be
present in the areas or to destroy or damage buildings or personal property situated or customarily situated in
the areas or will impair the general safety and welfare. In addition, the department may determine and define
the boundaries of the areas. Areas or parts of areas may be closed throughout the year. The department, in
furtherance of safety, may designate areas where hunting is permitted only by prescribed methods and
weapons that are not inconsistent with law. Whenever the governing body of any political subdivision
determines that the safety and well-being of persons or property are endangered by hunters or discharge of
firearms or bow and arrows, by resolution it may request the department to recommend closure of the area as
may be required to relieve the problem. Upon receipt of a certified resolution, the department shall establish a
date for a public hearing in the political subdivision, and the requesting political authority shall arrange for
suitable quarters for the hearing. The department shall receive testimony on the nature of the problems
resulting from hunting activities and firearms use from all interested parties on the type, extent, and nature of
the closure, regulations, or controls desired locally to remedy these problems.

(2) Upon completion of the public hearing, the department shall cause such investigations and studies to be
made of the area as it considers appropriate and shall then make a statement of the facts of the situation as
found at the hearing and as a result of its investigations. The department shall then prescribe regulations as are
necessary to alleviate or correct the problems found.

History: Add. 1995, Act 57, Imd. Eff. May 24, 1995.

Popular name: Act 451

Popular name: NREPA

324.41902 Submission of findings and recommendations; approval or disapproval of
prescribed controls; ordinance; certified copy; repeal of ordinance; enforcement; rules.
Sec. 41902. (1) The department shall submit its findings and recommendations to the governing body of

the political subdivision concerned. By majority vote, the governing body shall advise the department by
certified resolution that it approves or disapproves the prescribed hunting or firearms controls. If the
governing body disapproves the prescribed controls, further action shall not be taken. If the governing body
approves the prescribed controls, a local ordinance shall be enacted in accordance with the provisions of law
pertaining to the enactment of ordinances, which ordinance shall be identical in all respects to the regulations
prescribed by the department. A certified copy of the ordinance shall be forwarded to the department. The
governing body of the political subdivision, having established such an ordinance, by majority vote, may
repeal the ordinance at any time. The department shall be informed of such action by certified resolution.

(2) State, local, and county law enforcement officers shall enforce ordinances enacted in accordance with
this part.

(3) All rules promulgated under this section and section 41901 before March 17, 1986 shall remain in
effect unless rescinded pursuant to the administrative procedures act of 1969, Act No. 306 of the Public Acts
of 1969, being sections 24.201 to 24.328 of the Michigan Compiled Laws.

History: Add. 1995, Act 57, Imd. Eff. May 24, 1995.

Popular name: Act 451

Popular name: NREPA

324.41903 Closure notice signs; materials, form, placement, maintenance, spacing,
publication of notice; rescission of closure.
Sec. 41903. The department shall designate closure notice signs of approved material, overall size,

number, and letter size and composition of message. At least 4 notices, relatively equally spaced, shall be
posted on the boundaries of the closed area. A closure is not effective prior to the erection of closure notices
by the petitioning political subdivisions and approval of the same by the department. The petitioning political
Rendered Friday, January 3, 2025 Page 1 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 185 of 2024

 Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov

Page 257 of 314



subdivision shall place and maintain the signs and shall publish a notice of closure for 3 successive weeks, at
least once in each week, in a newspaper published in the county in which the area to be closed is located. If no
newspaper is published in the county, then the notice shall be published in a newspaper published in an
adjoining county. If, in the judgment of the department, closure signs are not maintained so as to adequately
give notice of the closure to a careful and prudent person, the closure may be rescinded by service of notice of
rescission on the clerk or recording officer of the political subdivision, and in such case the closure shall
terminate 30 days after service of notice of rescission.

History: Add. 1995, Act 57, Imd. Eff. May 24, 1995.

Popular name: Act 451

Popular name: NREPA

324.41904 Prohibitions against discharge of firearms; exceptions.
Sec. 41904. Any prohibition against discharge of firearms made under authority of this part does not apply

to peace officers or members of any branch of the armed forces in the discharge of their proper duties. The
department may authorize the use of firearms to prevent or control the depredations of birds or animals in
situations where significant damages are being caused by wildlife.

History: Add. 1995, Act 57, Imd. Eff. May 24, 1995.

Popular name: Act 451

Popular name: NREPA

324.41905 Violation of part or rules as misdemeanor.
Sec. 41905. Any person who violates this part or a rule promulgated under this part is guilty of a

misdemeanor.
History: Add. 1995, Act 57, Imd. Eff. May 24, 1995.

Popular name: Act 451

Popular name: NREPA

Rendered Friday, January 3, 2025 Page 2 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 185 of 2024

 Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov

Page 258 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 
WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT BID WITH PPM TREE SERVICE & ARBOR CARE, LLC 
FOR REMOVAL OF TREES ON GEDDES ROAD BETWEEN ANDOVER AND 

WEXFORD FOR FUTURE NON-MOTORIZED PATH CONSTRUCTION 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2025-12 

DATE: FEBRUARY 18, 2025 

WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Superior (Township), in partnership with the 
Washtenaw County Road Commission (WCRC) has received a Southeast Michigan Council of 
Government (SEMCOG) Transportation Alternative Program (TAP) Grant to extend the non-
motorized path on the south side of Geddes Road from Andover to Wexford.  

WHEREAS, OHM Advisors has completed the design of the non-motorized pathway and 
has submitted the project to the Michigan Department of Transportation’s (MDOT) Local 
Agency Program (LAP) for inclusion in their April bid letting.  

WHEREAS, federal guidelines recommend the removal of trees outside the roosting 
season of the Indiana Bat and Northern Long-eared Bat from April 15th to October 1st.  

WHEREAS, the MDOT contract is anticipated to be awarded in May or June of 2025, 
within the bat roosting season, and the Township. 

WHEREAS, the Township desires to construct the pathway during the summer of 2025, 
and in order to start path construction in summer 2025, it is recommended to award a separate 
contract locally to remove trees outside the roosting season, prior to April 15, 2025. 

WHEREAS, the Township has received three quotes for removal of the trees, ranging 
from $18,000 to $21,250, from Owen Tree Service, PPM Tree Service & Arbor Care, and 
Burman Tree Service. 

WHEREAS, all three companies can complete the work by the April 14, 2025 deadline, 
and both PPM Tree Service & Arbor Care, and Burman Tree Service provided sufficient detail in 
their proposals for award. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Charter Township of Superior Board 
of Trustees hereby approves the proposed contract with PPM Tree Service & Arbor Care, LLC to 
remove trees on the south side of Geddes Rd from Andover to Wexford for the future non-
motorized pathway extension project.      

Page 259 of 314



PPM Landscape Contractor, Inc.

Proposal

PPM Tree Service & Arbor Care, LLC.

www.ppmtree.com

Superior Township
Lori Maher
3040 N Prospect Rd
Ypsilanti, MI 48198
Phone:734-482-6099

Salesperson: Steve Saylor

Worksite:

estimates@ppmtree.com

3040 N Prospect Rd
Ypsilanti, MI 48198

734-454-1700

Friday, January 31, 2025

Superior Township 20250131

# Item Description CostQty

1 Brush Brush Removal $2,400.000.15

.15 acres of brush removal for job located on Geddes  Road
east of Andover Drive in wooden section ending at private
property. Forestry machine and mulch all debris within this area.

2 Spruce (Colorado
Blue) Picea pungus,
Pinaceae

Tree Removal $3,800.0014

Southside of Geddes Road at project site. Remove 14 blue
spruce or spruce trees complete. Cut low. Remove debris from
site no stump grinding.

3 Cottonwood - Populus
Deltoides - Salicaceae

Tree Removal $2,900.002

Southside of Geddes Road at project work site. Remove to
Cottonwood trees complete cut low. Remove debris from site.
No stump grinding.

4 Walnut (Black) -
Juglans nigra -
Juglandaceae

Tree Removal $900.001

Southside of Geddes Road in construction work site. Remove
one black walnut tree complete. Cut low. Remove debris from
site. No stump grinding.

5 Elm (American) -
Ulmus americana -
Ulmaceae

Tree Removal $12,000.009

Southside of Geddes Road throughout construction site.
Remove eight American elm trees complete cut low. Remove
debris from site. No stump grinding.

6 Maple Tree Removal $350.001

Southside of Geddes Road.  Remove one maple tree inside of
construction zone. Remove debris from site cut low no stump
grinding.

7 Discount Discount (Total Job) ($2,350.00)0

Service
Discounted:

-$2350

Page 260 of 314



PPM Landscape Contractor, Inc.

Proposal

PPM Tree Service & Arbor Care, LLC.

www.ppmtree.com

Total: $20,000.00

Subtotal: $20,000.00

Tax: $0.00

Acceptance of Proposal:

The above prices, specification and conditions are satisfactory and hereby accepted. You are authorized to do the work as
specified above. Payments will be made upon completion.

Signature: Signature:

Date: Date:

We propose hereby to furnish material and labor complete in accordance with the above specifications for the sum listed above. Payments are due upon
completion.

All material is guaranteed to be as specified and the above work to be performed in workmanlike manner according to standard practices. Any alteration or
deviation from above specifications involving extra cost will be executed only upon written orders and will become and extra charge over and above the
estimate. Homeowner is responsible for any movable property that can be damaged and for windows to be covered for stump grinding. We carry liability
coverage and Workers Compensation Insurance. In the event of a breach of contract there will be a 15% charge.

We are not responsible for turf and/or irrigation damage.

We do not take stump grindings unless otherwise specified. Initial Above

Page 261 of 314



Page 262 of 314



PPM Tree Service & Arbor Care, LLC. 

PPM Tree Service & Arbor Care, LLC. 
36222 Glenwood Rd.  
Westland, MI. 48186 
734-454-1700

A. Professional Qualifications

PPM Tree Service & Arbor Care, LLC. is located at the above address in Westland, Michigan. 
The company operates as an LLC. and is compliant with all State regulations and tax filings. It 
was established in 2016 and is woman-owned by Laura Dobbs. It is certified through WBE-
2301188 and WOSB-231199. Our sister company, PPM Landscape Contractors, INC., was 
established in 2000 by Bryan Dobbs. The operation of a landscape company and tree service 
provides a unique benefit to all our customers as we are qualified to examine the forest and the 
landscape and work to preserve the mutual relationship that exists between them.  

We offer many tree and landscape services that our local communities demand to help sustain 
natural and urban forests. Bryan Dobbs, Manager of Sales and Operations, is an ISA- ertified 

rborist  ISA- ertified unicipal Arborist (MI-4139 AM)
. He is also Michigan Oak Wilt Certified- 060 and ISA Tree Risk 

Assessment Qualified. In addition, he is in his senior year at Michigan State University, 
He performs tree evaluations, structures the daily 

crews, and meets with city officials to organize and manage tree care projects for other 
municipalities. We have had remarkable success with all our municipalities in terms of 
completing tree projects timely and efficiently. 

 We understand that being organized and responsive is a key element that municipalities 
require, and we believe those traits separate PPM from our competitors.  PPM Tree Service has 
the latest professional equipment to do any job safely.  We have three 70’ bucket trucks 
purchased new from Altec in the last few years. We are the only tree company in southeastern 
Michigan to own and operate the BIK 126’ knuckle-boom crane truck. Using a grapple saw to 
prune the limbs; this unit can safely remove the most hazardous trees. We are equipped with 
much more to remove the toughest of trees efficiently. Tree pruning and safety are important to 
PPM, and our staff abides by all ISA standards and follows the Michigan OSHA and ANSI 
standards and 

36222 Glenwood Road, Westland, MI 48186 | 734-454-1700 | ppmtree.com | estimates@ppmtree.com 

�7

Page 263 of 314



PPM Tree Service & Arbor Care, LLC. 

recommendations.  Other personnel that are key to the success of 
completing tree pruning and removal for Superior Township 
include: 

Steve Saylor is our Senior Sales Representative and Project Manager. He has been with PPM 
Tree Service, LLC. for the last eight years and worked for PPM Landscape Contractors, INC. for 
many years prior. Steve helps organize the crews, cover the scope of work, and follow up with 
post-site inspections for quality control.  

David Snyder is one of our ISA Certified Arborists  and bucket truck operators who 
will play a key role in managing daily pruning activities. He will direct a 5 to 6 man crew to 
meet daily goals effectively.  

We work extremely hard to keep the details at the forefront of every project. We value all our 
relationships and believe we are as good as our last completed project. Each project is an 
opportunity to prove our reliability and quality of work. 

B. Past Involvement with Similar Projects

We have attached a list of references that includes all current municipalities to which PPM Tree 
Service & Arbor Care, LLC. has provided project service. These projects include removing large 
easement trees for the City of Westland for the last five years. We have also helped maintain 
infrastructure during storms and other emergency-related service demands. We have cleared and 
pruned trees within a forest to help create a dog park in 2023. We cleared a multi-acre land 
project for them in 2018, consisting of large tree removal and stump/ root grinding. There are 
many other tree projects that PPM has completed for the city over the years.  

In 2023, PPM Tree Service & Arbor Care, LLC. was contracted by Ypsilanti Township to 
remove tree debris throughout most of the city after a major ice storm and later after a tornado 
that touched down. We provided cleanup crews for more than a month to help get the township 
residents back to normal function. We have provided tree service to the city as an on-call service. 

PPM Tree Service & Arbor Care, LLC., recently completed its second large tree project for 
Canton Township and has served as an on-call service provider for the last two years.  

PPM Tree Service & Arbor Care, LLC., has been a subcontractor for B&M Ashman as its 
primary tree pruner for Comcast service lines for the last six years. We provide emergency 
service line pruning along with routine vegetation management.  

PPM Tree Service & Arbor Care, LLC., has provided all types of tree removal and pruning 
services for the Washtenaw County Water Department for the last four years. We serve as an on-
call tree emergency vendor in addition to routine tree removal, land clearing near watersheds, 
and routine tree maintenance.  

36222 Glenwood Road, Westland, MI 48186 | 734-454-1700 | ppmtree.com | estimates@ppmtree.com 
Page 264 of 314

Terri
Cross-Out



PPM Tree Service & Arbor Care, LLC. 

36222 Glenwood Road, Westland, MI 48186 | 734-454-1700 | ppmtree.com | estimates@ppmtree.com 

In 2023, PPM Tree Service & Arbor Care, LLC., secured a tree contract with 
the City of Romulus as their tree contract vendor. We have helped with emergency tree removal 
and scheduled removal of easement trees. 

In 2023, PPM Tree Service & Arbor Care, LLC., Completed a tree project for Van Buren 
Township. It was a two-week project removing easement trees and grinding stumps/roots. We 
serve as an on-call tree service provider. 

C. Proposal Work Plan

 We plan to implement the RFP work plans for this contract as we coordinate other municipality 
work plans. The planning begins in our office, where key staff members manage the project. We 
look at the project and then schedule crews to meet contract deadlines. We plan for a systematic 
approach that can be monitored qualitatively and quantitatively. Tree services provided will be 
inspected by the onsite crew leader and our post-site managers for quality of work and cleanup. 
Once work has been completed and confirmed internally, we will report to our city contact every 
week or the recommended reporting time frame. We understand that incidents can occasionally 
occur, and those will be reported to our city contact immediately. We believe communication is 
key to obtaining a successful outcome. We provide cell phone numbers and direct emails to 
communicate effectively anytime or at night. Storms and emergencies can occur on weekends, 
holidays, and in the middle of the night; we do our best to respond to all situations to the best of 
our ability.  

We have had remarkable success partnering with all our local municipalities to provide them 
with superior service. Our goal is to build a lasting relationship that will continue for many years. 

Page 265 of 314



SetSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSeSeSeSeeeeeSSeeeeeSSSSSSSSSSeeSeeeSSSSSSeSeSeeSeeeeS tttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttt

Your Trusted Tree Partner

PPM Tree Service & Arbor Care, LLC.
PPM Tree Service & Arbor Care, LLC. Is a family owned and operated since 
2016. We have a passion for preserving the quality and beauty of trees coupled 
with the education and skills to care for them.

We specialize in the removal of all trees including hazardous and emergency 
situations with 24-hour services available for dangerous situations, including the 
clean-up after storms and removal of limbs from power lines, houses, and 
structures.

We are a member of the International Society of Arboriculture and maintain a 
certified arborist on staff to properly identify and care for all species of trees.

Core Competencies
Diagnosis and Tree Risk Evaluations
Trimming
Pruning and Shaping
Removals
Utility line trimming management
Land Clearing
Stump Grinding
Root Excavation
24-hour emergency services

Laura Dobbs, Owner/Member

Main: (877) 454-TREE
Local: (734) 454-1700
Email: ldobbs@ppmtree.com
Website: www.ppmtree.com
36222 Glenwood Road
Westland, MI 48185

Company Data

Established – Aug 2016
Headquartered – Westland, MI
NAICS -561730
Certifications:

o WBE Certification: 2301188
o WOSB: 231199
o ISA Member
o ISA Arborist- On Staff

Contracting Information
- Laura Dobbs, Member
- Bryan Dobbs, Manager of Sales & Ops

o Currently enrolled in MSU Forestry
Program

o Certified Arborist: MI-4139AM
o ISA Tree Risk Assessment Qualified
o Michigan Oak Wilt Qualified-060

Past Performance
Washtenaw County Water Department, On-call Tree Service.  2019- Present
We provide land clearing services including trimming, limb removals, and 24-hour emergency services to allow them access to county waterways for routine
maintenance and emergency maintenance.

City of Westland, Routine Tree Maintenance and Emergency Tree Removal. 2019- Present
We provide a variety of all tree care needs for the City of Westland including diagnoses and recommendations on tree care maintenance, trimming/pruning,
removals, and emergency services.

Canton Township, Routine Tree Maintenance and Emergency Tree Removal. 2022- Present
We provide a variety of all tree care needs for the Canton Township including diagnoses and recommendations on tree care maintenance, trimming/pruning,
removals, and emergency services.

Ypsilanti Township, Routine Tree Maintenance and Emergency Tree Removal. 2022- Present
We provide a variety of all tree care needs for the city of Ypsilanti including diagnoses and recommendations on tree care maintenance, trimming/pruning,
removals, and emergency services.

City of Romulus, Routine Tree Maintenance and Emergency Tree Removal. 2023- Present
We provide a variety of all tree care needs for the City of Romulus including diagnoses and recommendations on tree care maintenance, trimming/pruning,
removals, and emergency services.

Page 266 of 314



Bid Proposal - Geddes Pathway Tree Removals, Washtenaw County 

Contractor (Sub): Burman’s Tree Services, LLC - Non Union Laborers & Operators. 

Description: 
Tree removals for the Geddes pathway project in Washtenaw County MI. 

Schedule of Items: 

Item ID/ 
Description 

Approximate Qty  
& Units 

Unit  
Price 

Bid  
Amount 

Tree Removals 6 inch to 18 inch 24 
Ea 

$500.00 $12,000.00 

Tree Removals 19 inch to 36 inch 3 
Ea 

$1,750.00 $5,250.00 

Land Clearing/Brush Removal .15 
Acre 

Lump Sum $4,000.00 

TOTAL $21,250.00 

● Final quantities must be approved by Burman’s Tree Services.
● This quote is exempt from bonds and dues.
● Burman’s Tree Services LLC is an equal opportunity employer.
● This quote does not include stump grinding.

Page 267 of 314



Owen Tree Service
225 N. Lake George Rd
Attica, MI  48412 Inq Date: 01/17/25
(810) 724-6651
Fax (810) 724-2684

Superior Township 
Attn: Estimating Bid Deadline

Geddes Pathway Tree Removals 

Tree Removals

PROPOSAL / RECOMMENDATIONS  AMOUNT

Tree Removals: $18,000.00

Remove Trees and Brushfor pathway. Dispose of all debris. No stump removal- Included traffic control per 

Washtenaw County Road Commission standards maintaining two-way traffic, completed by April 14th, 2025

Operator Hours80 Hours 

LICENSED - INSURED - CERTIFIED ARBORIST Randy J Owen/ Cassandra Ziel DATE 01/17/25

CUSTOMER APPROVAL______________________________________________ DATE ___________________

A SERVICE CHARGE OF 1 1/2% PER MONTH WILL BE CHARGED ON ALL PAST DUE ACCOUNTS.

and mechanics employed directly upon the site of the work at least the locally prevailing wages (including fringe benefits),  listed in the 

Davis-Bacon wage determination in the contract, for the work performed."

CUSTOMER AUTHORIZATION
The above prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and are hereby accepted. 

You are authorizing to do the work specified. Payment is due upon completion of work. 

Febuary 6th, 2025

Terms to Accept our Quote
Owen Tree Service Inc. (OTS) as a NON signatory subcontractor has NO interest to pay into the fringe benefit funds of the 

OE 324 local because the Davis-Bacon Act directs the local prevailing wages including fringe benefits to be  paid to the 
worker. OTS will estimate the operator hours for your information.

NOTE: PER - U.S. Department of Labor Wage and Hour Division. Fact Sheet #66 - "Contractors and subcontractors must pay laborers 

Page 268 of 314



Draft 1-6-2025 
[revised 1-24-2025 per meeting Fred Lucas & GAF] 

CONSERVATION DEED RESTRICTION 

BY THIS AGREEMENT, Garrett’s Space, a Michigan non-profit corporation, 1400 

Granger Ave., Ann Arbor, Michigan 48104 (“GS”), grants, conveys, and covenants to Superior 

Charter Township, a municipal corporation, 3040 North Prospect, Ypsilanti, Michigan, 48198 

(“Township”) a conservation restriction on certain property defined below. 

RECITATIONS: 

GS made application to the Township for a rezoning of approximately 76 acres of land (“76 

acres”) to permit a predominantly residential use under the Planned Community (PC) Special 

District authorized in Article 7 of the Township’s Zoning Ordinance in order to establish a care 

center to provide support for young adults struggling with depression, anxiety, and/or suicidal 

ideation, and who are voluntarily seeking care and support from GS (“Garrett’s Space Use”). 

Following several hearings and related proceedings at the Township, the Township Board 

approved Ordinance No. 174-25, which amended the Township Zoning Ordinance, and the Zoning 

District Map, and thereby rezoned the 76 acres and authorized the Garrett’s Space Use (the “Zoning 

Ordinance Amendment”). The Conservation Property, which is the subject of this agreement, lies 

entirely within the 76 acres rezoned by the Zoning Ordinance Amendment.  

The land described in the attachment to this agreement, entitled “Conservation Deed 

Restriction” is the property on which a conservation restriction is to be granted, conveyed, and 

covenanted in this agreement. Such land is referenced below as the “Conservation Property”. 

The rezoning approved by the Township in the Zoning Ordinance Amendment applicable 

to the 76 acres imposes many requirements and specifications as part of the Garrett’s Space Use, 

including the obligation to conserve natural areas on the Conservation Property as reflected in 

Page 269 of 314



Section 1.4 of the Development Agreement, dated October 21, 2024, entered into by the Township 

and GS (“Development Agreement”) provides as follows: 

“Open and common space and conservation easement protection; maintenance and 
permitted activities within respective open space and conservation areas. 

1. A substantial portion of the Property is shown as unimproved areas
on the Area Plan. Areas restricted by conservation easement shall be restricted from 
use as provided below. Other areas, outside of conservation easement, shall be 
restricted from the development of new buildings or structures unless they have 
been approved, or until subsequently approved, either administratively or by the 
Planning Commission or Township Board, as applicable under the provisions in the 
Zoning Ordinance; however, such other areas shall not be restricted for use if they 
are consistent with the intent and purpose of the approved land use. 

2. Areas of the Property restricted by deed restriction or conservation
easement shall have a limited use in accordance with the terms of the respective 
restriction or conservation easement, as applicable, subject to the terms of the 
Zoning and Land Use Agreement, which provides that such areas shall not be 
restricted for nonstructural use consistent with the principal and accessory uses 
permitted in that Agreement. 

3. Prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy for the main
residential structure to be newly constructed, the areas on the Property which 
consist of a substantial amount of open and wooded space, regulated wetlands, 
wetland buffers, the pond, and the stream shall be placed under the protection of  a  
conservation easement which shall, among other things, restrict some 58 acres of 
the Property from the construction of structures, but may permit  underground 
utilities,  septic drain fields, water wells, walking paths and elements, landscape 
installations and elements, drainage elements such as retention / detention; rain 
gardens, culverts, swales, or other facilities required for the land use approved in 
this Agreement, and shall require such areas to be maintained as specified as part 
of the terms of the conservation easement. Subject to approvals required by law, 
such areas shall not be restricted from customary use, such as hiking and nature 
observation, including any ancillary elements approved by the conservation 
easement grantee. The Conservation Easement shall be for the benefit of the grantee 
entity to whom the easement is conveyed. 

4. Until the conservation easement is established, GS shall preserve
from active construction and development the 58-acre area in a manner not 
inconsistent with the preservation described in paragraph 1.4.3 above. 

5. In all events, all areas on the Property shall be maintained in good
faith consistent with the objectives of the approved Final Site Plan, and the 
requirements of this Agreement. 

Page 270 of 314



6. In the event GS is unable to find an entity to partner with to establish
a conservation easement, GS agrees to execute a deed restriction that provides for 
the use of the 58-acres consistent with the restrictions described in paragraph 1.4.3 
above, and the Township is named as a beneficiary with the right to enforce such 
restriction. In the event the property is no longer used for the purpose approved by 
the Township for which this Development Agreement is adopted, the owner or 
transferee may alter or release the deed restriction consistent with an approved 
rezoning, subject to the reasonable right of approval of the alteration or release of 
the restriction by the Township accordingly.” 

Once the Zoning Ordinance Amendment was approved, GS actively attempted to secure 

the agreement of a suitable conservation easement grantee for relative to the Property, consistent 

with the terms of Section 1.4 of the Development Agreement, referenced above. However, the 

process of review and approval of a conservation easement for the Property by suitable grantees 

requires an extensive period of time.   

GS will earnestly continue to pursue approval of a conservation easement for the Property 

with a suitable grantee; in the meantime, consistent with the language of Section 1.4 of the 

Development Agreement (referenced above), the Township and GS have agreed that GS shall grant 

and convey the conservation deed restriction granted, conveyed, and covenanted in this agreement 

to the Township to serve until such time as a conservation easement is secured and recorded, with 

the understanding that this conservation deed restriction shall be deemed to satisfy the Township’s 

conservation easement requirement in the meantime. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE TOWNSHIP AND GS AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

1. All of the Recitations stated above are incorporated as part of this agreement.

2. GS grants, conveys, and covenants to Superior Charter Township, a conservation

restriction, establishing a restriction on the use of the Conservation Property, prohibiting the 

following, subject to the provisions below: 

Page 271 of 314



 Building or constructing any structures on the Conservation Property,

except as authorized as part of Township, County, or State permits and

approvals;

 Removing trees or other vegetation from the Conservation Property, with

the exception of vegetation, which is diseased, dying, dead, or invasive, and

with the further exception of actions in accordance with EGLE- or

Township-approved management plans;

 Depositing or permitting the deposit of fill materials; dredging, removing

or permitting the removal of soil or minerals; or diverting the flow of water

on the Conservation Property; except as temporarily undertaken during

construction incidental to work authorized as part of Township, County, or

State permits and approvals;

 Altering the natural character and topography of the Conservation Property

except as authorized by Township, County, or State permits and approvals;

Provided, using due care, GS shall be permitted to construct underground utilities, septic 

drain fields, water wells, walking paths and elements, landscape installations and elements, 

drainage elements such as retention/detention; rain gardens, culverts, swales, and other facilities 

required for the land use approved by the Township in rezoning the 76 Acres, including temporary 

storage of materials and restoration of disruptions by regrading as reasonably required to achieve 

the development as specified in the Development Agreement and incorporated documents.  

3. Subject to and in accordance with the terms of this agreement, and subject to

approvals required by law, the Conservation Property shall not be restricted from customary use, 

such as hiking and nature observation, including customary ancillary activities. 

Page 272 of 314



4. The Township, as grantee and beneficiary, accepts the grant, conveyance and

covenant of this conservation restriction, subject to and in accordance with the terms of this 

agreement. 

5. This conservation restriction shall have as its sole beneficiary Superior Charter

Township and shall be enforceable by the Township. While the general public, or other persons or 

entities, may incidentally benefit from it, this conservation restriction shall be enforceable 

exclusively by the Township and not by any other person or entity, and no other person or entity 

shall be deemed a beneficiary or third-party beneficiary of this agreement or the conservation 

restriction. 

6. If required by the Township, GS shall continue to pursue a suitable conservation

easement arrangement for the Conservation Property as specified in Section 1.4 of the 

Development Agreement, referenced above. However, until a suitable conservation easement is 

secured, approved by the Township and recorded, this Conservation Deed Restriction is intended 

to have, and shall be deemed to have, the full force of a covenant granted under MCL 324.2141, 

and shall satisfy all requirements of the Township for a conservation easement on the Conservation 

Property. Ultimately, the Township shall have the sole discretion to authorize the approval of a 

conservation easement or to continue to rely exclusively on this conservation deed restriction. 

7. At such a time in the future as a conservation easement is secured with a suitable

grantee and recorded, the conservation deed restriction created in this agreement shall cease to be 

effective and enforceable, and this agreement and the deed restriction, shall be deemed null and 

void. In addition, confirming the understanding reflected in the Development Agreement: In the 

event the Conservation Property is no longer used for the Garrett’s Space use approved by 

Township under the Planned Community (PC) Special District, the owner or transferee of the 76 

Page 273 of 314



acres may alter or release the deed restriction consistent with an approved rezoning and reasonable 

right of approval of the alteration or release of the restriction by the Township accordingly. 

Page 274 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 

WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE UPDATED POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

FOR USE AND OPERATION OF TOWNSHIP POOL VEHICLES, TOWNSHIP

OWNED VEHICLES, AND THE USE OF PRIVATE VEHICLES FOR TOWNSHIP 

BUSINESS 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2024-58A 

DATE: SEPTEMBER 16, 2024 

WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Superior currently maintains pool vehicles, 

Township-owned vehicles, and utilizes private vehicles for official Township business; and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to update and revise the Township's existing policy and 

procedure governing the use, operation, and maintenance of these vehicles to ensure proper use, 

compliance, and safety in the performance of Township duties; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed updates to the policy include clear guidelines on the 

authorized use of vehicles, a quarterly maintenance schedule, and rules governing the use of 

private vehicles for Township business, which will strengthen compliance with legal and 

operational standards; and 

WHEREAS, this attached updated policy, and procedure will enhance the accountability, 

transparency, and safety of Township employees in the use of Township resources; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Charter Township of Superior 

Board of Trustees hereby approves the updated Policy and Procedure for the Use and Operation 

of Township Pool Vehicles, Township-Owned Vehicles, and the Use of Private Vehicles for 

Township Business as presented, including provisions to strengthen compliance, ensure regular 

maintenance, and promote the proper use of Township resources. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Township Administration shall implement the 

approved policy and ensure that all Township employees are informed and adhere to the updated 

procedures. 

Page 275 of 314



01.01.006 POLICY AND PROCEDURE FOR USE AND OPERATION OF 

TOWNSHIP POOL VEHICLES, TOWNSHIP OWNED VEHICLES AND THE USE OF 

PRIVATE VEHICLE FOR TOWNSHIP BUSINESS 

1. Purpose

To establish the policies and procedures for the use and operation of the Township pool
vehicles, Township owned vehicles and the use of private vehicles for Township
Business.

2. Vehicle Use:

2.1 The Township pool vehicles and Township owned vehicles shall only be used for

legitimate Township business. The vehicles shall not be used for lunch breaks or

personal errands. Exceptions for lunch breaks shall be made only when the vehicle

is needed for extended field use. When employees are required to be in the field

more than three hours, lunch breaks may be taken using the Township pool vehicles

and Township owned vehicles.

2.2 All Township owned vehicles are smoke free. No smoking shall be allowed inside
the pool vehicles or Township owned vehicles.

2.3 Individual Departments shall be responsible for fueling and maintaining the
Township pool vehicles.

3. Authorized Drivers:

3.1 Prior to operating any Township owned vehicle, or operating a personal vehicle for
Township business, the driver shall be recognized by the Township Administration prior
to use and will be subject to periodic driver's license history checks at the Township's
expense.

3.2 Drivers of any Township vehicle, or private vehicle for Township business, shall
obey all traffic laws. Township owned vehicles shall not be driven in a manner or to
locations that may subject the vehicle to harm or civil liability. A reasonable expectation
of proper use shall be required. Intentional harming or improper use of any Township
owned vehicle shall be grounds for discipline.

3 .3 Drivers of any Township vehicle, or private vehicle for Township use, must have a
current and valid driver's license, free of any restrictions which would prohibit them
operating a Township owned vehicle or private vehicle for Township use.

3.4 Prior to operating a Township vehicle, or private vehicle for Township use, the driver
must inform Township Administration of any restrictions on their driver's license, which
may prohibit them for operating a vehicle for such use.

Page 276 of 314



4. 

3.5 Private vehicles used for Township business must meet all legal requirements for 
msurance. 

Procedure for Use of Township Pool Vehicle: 

4.1 The vehicles' keys shall be maintained by the Township Clerk's office. A clipboard 
with a request for authorized use shall also be maintained in the Township Clerk's office 
and shall be accessible to the Supervisor and Treasurer in the absence of the Clerk. 

4.2 A mileage log shall be maintained in each vehicle indicating the starting and ending 
mileage of each trip. The destination and purpose of each trip shall also be documented. 

4.3 Employees requesting use of the vehicles shall coordinate with other vehicle users in 
advance whenever possible. Otherwise, the first employee to sign up will be the 
authorized user. Disputes shall be presented to the Township Supervisor for resolution. 

5. Maintenance:

5.1 Oil Changes: All Township pool vehicles and Township-owned vehicles shall
undergo quarterly oil changes to ensure optimal performance and longevity. The
scheduling of these oil changes shall be the responsibility of the individual departments
in coordination with Township Administration.

5.2 Internal Detailing: Internal detailing of Township vehicles shall be conducted as
needed to maintain cleanliness and hygiene. Detailing services must be obtained from
vendors without any conflicts of interest with the Township to ensure transparency and
fairness. Employees should report any excessive dirt or damage in a vehicle after use.

5.3 General Maintenance: Routine maintenance, including tire checks, brake
inspections, and fluid top-offs, shall be performed regularly as per the manufacturer's
guidelines. Individual Departments will track and schedule their maintenance tasks to
ensure all vehicles are in safe, working condition.

CERTIFICATION STATEMENT 

I, Lynette Findley, the duly qualified Clerk of the Charter Township of Superior, Washtenaw 
County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution 
adopted at a regular meeting of the Charter Township of Superior Board held on October 21, 
2024 and that public notices of said meeting were given pursuant to Act No. 267, Public Acts of 
Michigan, 1976, as amended. 

��--J 
Lynette Findley, Township Clerk \ 

10/21/2024 
Date Certified 

Page 277 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 

WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING GENERAL APPROPRIATIONS 

ACT MILLAGE RA TES FOR2025 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2024-58B 

DATE: DECEMBER 12, 2024 

WHEREAS: The Charter Township of Superior Board of Trustee's has carefully reviewed 

the Township's current and projected financial needs, and 

WHEREAS: The Board of Trustee's recognizes its responsibility to the citizens of the Charter 

Township of Superior to carefully monitor the Township funds and provide necessary revenue to offset 

proposed expenditures, and 

WHEREAS: The auditors suggested that millage rates for revenue should be by resolution. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Charter Township of Superior Board of 

Trustees adopts the millages on the attachment by Resolution. 

TAXABLE MILLAGE TOTAL TAX REVENUE 
VALUE 

GENERAL 

REG $897,591,028 0.7974 $715,739 

IFT $25,954,008 0.3987 $10,348 

FIRE 
Voter-Approved 

REG $897,591,028 3.4933 $3,135,555 

IFT $25,954,008 1.7466 $45,331 

LAW Voter-Approved 

REG $897,591,028 2.7447 $2,463,618 

IFT $25,954,008 1.3723 $35 617 

Page 278 of 314



Page 279 of 314



CERTIFICATION STATEMENT 
I, Angela Robinson, the duly qualified Clerk of the Charter Township of Superior, Washtenaw 
County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a 
resolution  adopted at a special meeting of the Charter Township of Superior Board held on 
December 12, 2024 and that public notices of said meeting were given pursuant to Act No. 
267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, as amended. 

Angela Robinson, Township Clerk  Date Certified

12/12/2024

Page 280 of 314

Christina Benitez
Line

Christina Benitez
Line



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 

WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION APPROVING GARRETTS SPACE 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2024-59A

DATE: OCTOBER21,2024 

WHEREAS, the Developer desires to develop Garretts Space, on seven (7) parcels that 

will be combined into one lot totaling approximately 76.0 acres. The site is located at 3900 

Dixboro Road, located in Section 7 of the Township, in accordance with the approved Final Site 

Plan dated August 30, 2024 (the "Development") as more particularly described in the attached 

Exhibit A; and 

WHEREAS, the Developer is developing the residential and institutional use development 

pursuant to the Superior Township Zoning Ordinance No. 174, and other applicable law; and 

WHEREAS, the Developer is using the property pursuant to the approved Garretts Space 

Zoning and Land Use Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Developer desires to build all necessary on-site infrastructure for the 

Development, including but not limited to: well and septic, non-motorized trails, storm water 

management system, private drive, parking areas, and similar amenities in the Development ("Site 

Improvements"); and 

WHEREAS, the Developer desires to install grading and soil erosion and sedimentation 

control improvements to facilitate the drainage of storm water from the Development in such a 

manner as is not expected to result in damage to any adjacent property outside of the Development 

or any site, building, or residential unit within the Development from an increase in the flow of 

storm water or decrease in water quality of storm water from the Development, as more fully set 

forth in the final engineering plans approved by the Township ("Engineering Plans"); and 

WHEREAS, all agreements, approvals, and conditions agreed to by the Developer and the 

Township remain in effect for the Development, including, but not limited to, conditions of all 

approvals by the Township regarding zoning and site plan approval for the Development and 

permits that may have been issued by appropriate governmental review agencies for the 

Development; and 

WHEREAS, on September 25, 2024, the Township approved, by action of the Superior 

Township Planning Commission, the Final Site Plan for STPC #23-03, Garretts Space, with 

conditions ("Final Site Plan") and all conditions of the Final Site Plan will be satisfactorily met; 

and, 

Page 281 of 314



WHEREAS, the approved Final Site Plan for the Development is consistent with the 

purposes and objectives of the Township's Zoning Ordinance pertaining to the use and 

development of the Development; and 

WHEREAS, Section 10.05(G) of the Superior Township Zoning Ordinance requires the 

execution of a Development Agreement in connection with the approval of the Final Site Plan for 

the Development; and 

WHEREAS, the Development Agreement shall be binding upon the Township, the 

Developer of the Development, their successors-in-interest, and assigns. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, in consideration of the premises and the 

mutual covenants of the parties described in this Agreement, and with the express understanding 

that this Agreement contains important and essential terms as part of the approval of the 

Developer's Final Site Plan for the Development, the parties hereby agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I. 

GENERAL TERMS 

Section 1.01 Recitals Part of Agreement. 

Developer and the Township acknowledge and represent that the foregoing recitals are true, 
accurate and binding on the respective parties and are an integral part of this Agreement. 

Section 1.02 Zoning District. 

The Township acknowledges and represents that the property is zoned PC, Planned Community 
District for the Development and, for purposes of recordation, shall be referred to as Garretts 
Space, and that the Developer's intended use as described herein is a permitted use under the PC, 
Planned Community District designation. 

Section 1.03 Approval of Final Site Plan. 

The Final Site Plan dated August 30, 2024 attached hereto as Exhibit B has been approved 
pursuant to the authority granted to and vested in the Township pursuant to the Michigan Public 
Act 110 of the 2006 Zoning Enabling Act, as amended. 

Section 1.04 Conditions of Final Site Plan Approval. 

The Developer and the Township acknowledge that the approved Final Site Plan for the 
Development referenced in Section 1.03 incorporates the Township's complete and final approved 
conditions and requirements for the Final Site Plan that were adopted by the Township Planning 
Commission pursuant to recommendations by the consultants and departments of the Township. 

Page 282 of 314



Section 1.05 Agreement Running with the Land. 

The terms, provisions and conditions of this Agreement shall be deemed to be of benefit to the 
Development described herein, shall be deemed a restrictive covenant which shall run with the 
land and be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their successors and assigns, 
and binding upon the successors-in-interest to any portion of the Development, and may not be 

modified or rescinded except as provided in Section 3.01 below. 

Section 1.06 Developer Responsibilities for Improvements and Assessments. 

Except as otherwise provided for in this Agreement and except as dedicated by the Developer to 
the Township or other governmental authorities after approval of the Township, the Developer 

shall be responsible for the maintenance of all Site Improvements. 

ARTICLE II. 

PROVISIONS REGARDING DEVELOPMENT 

Section 2.01 PD Agreement. 

The permitted principal uses and development parameters within the Development shall conform 
to the list of allowable land uses and regulations specified on the adopted and recorded PD 

Agreement and Site Plan for the Development, along with any other accessory uses and/or 
amenities permitted under the Township's ordinances. 

Section 2.02 Payment of Fees and Invoices. 

Developer shall pay all such applicable fees and invoices as may be due and payable prior to the 
issuance of building permits. Construction permit fees for buildings to be constructed within the 
Development shall be the responsibility of the party requesting such permits. 

Section 2.03 Common Elements. 

As used in this Agreement the term Common Elements refers to the following items: 

(a) Open space

(b) Parking Areas

( c) Private Drives
( d) Pathways

( e) Detention areas

(f) Storm water drainage; and

(g) Any other items depicted in the Final Site Plan and designated as a Common Element.

Section 2.04 Use of Detention Areas; Use of Open Space and Park Areas. 

Certain portions of the Development are to be used for storm water detention and drainage; 

recreation, open space, wetlands as depicted in the approved drainage plan and/or Final Site Plan. 

Page 283 of 314



Section 2.05 Changes and Improvements. 

Incidental changes to the Development, the Final Site Plan, or to the Site Improvements may be 
installed or constructed with the prior approval of the Township Building Official, Planning & 

Zoning Administrator, and the Township Supervisor set forth in Administrative Approval, of 
Zoning Ordinance 174 which approval shall not unreasonably be withheld. All other 

improvements and changes must be approved by the Township Planning Commission. 

Section 2.06 Performance Guarantees. 

Prior to the commencement of any work on the Site Improvements in the Development, the 

Developer shall deliver to the Township financial security by means of a certified check, cash, or 

an irrevocable letter of credit (hereafter referred to as the "Security") that names the Township as 
the beneficiary thereof in an amount equal to the estimated costs as approved by the Township 

consulting engineers, which approval may not be unreasonably withheld for the following items 
with respect to the Development: 

(a) All Site Improvements to be installed pursuant to the Final Site Plan and approved
Engineering Plans.

(b) All Site Improvements to be installed pursuant to the issuance of any Township building
permit.

The Security may be amended or replaced from time to time as expressly provided in this 
Agreement. 

The Security may be drawn upon by the Township only as expressly permitted in this Agreement. 

Section 2.07 Completion of Site Improvements. 

All Site Improvements will be installed in compliance with the approved Engineering Plan. Site 

Improvements shall be installed, as depicted on the Final Site Plan and approved final Engineering 
Plans by no later than the time of application for the building permit for the construction of the 

first building. The first building permit may be issued if the franchise utilities (gas, electric, 

telephone, cable TV) are not installed, but no certificate of occupancy will be issued until the 

franchise utilities have been completed. 

Section 2.08 Fire Access 

The required fire apparatus access road, as shown on the Final Site Plan, shall not obstructed in 

any manner, overhead utility and powerlines and/or tree branches shall not be located over the fire 
access road, and that the road is to be maintained (including snow removal) at all times. The 

minimum widths and clearances established in Section 503.2.1 and 503.2.2 shall be maintained at 
all times. 

Page 284 of 314



Section 2.09 

Common Elements. 

Responsibility to Preserve, Retain, and Maintain the Development and 

The Developer shall regularly remove, but no less frequently than once a month, all construction 
debris and rubbish within the Development and for maintaining the function of all Common 
Elements. The Developer shall be responsible for the function and maintenance of all Common 
Elements. No burning of any kind will be allowed on the site, including the burning of trees, brush, 
stumps, or vegetative materials while clearing the site, or of construction materials during 
construction. 

In the event the Developer fails at any time to preserve, retain, or maintain the function of the 
Common Elements, the Township may serve written notice upon the Developer setting forth the 
manner in which the Developer has failed to maintain or preserve the Common Element. Such 
notice shall include a demand that deficiencies in maintenance or preservation be cured within 
thirty (30) days of the notice. If the deficiencies set forth in the original notice, or any modification 
thereof, are not cured within such thirty (30) day period or any extension thereof, the Township, 
in order to prevent the Common Element from becoming a nuisance, may, but is not obligated to, 
enter upon the Common Element and perform the required maintenance or otherwise cure the 
deficiencies. The Township's reasonable cost to perform any such maintenance or cure, together 
with a surcharge equal to fifteen percent (15%) for administrative costs, shall be assessed against 
the Developer, on the Township's tax rolls for the Development. 

Section 2.10 Private Drives. 

All drives within the Development shall be private as depicted on the approved Final Site Plan and 
approved Engineering Plans. 

Section 2.11 Storm Water Management. 

The Developer shall notify the Township in writing within thirty (30) days of the date the 
Washtenaw County Water Resources Commission (WCWRC) becomes responsible for the storm 
water management system, including its related detention basin areas, inlet and outlet areas (the 
"Storm Water Management System") as depicted on the Final Site Plan. Notwithstanding the 
dedication and acceptance of the Storm Water Management System by the WCWRC, the 
Developer shall be responsible for the maintenance and appearance of the Storm Water 
Management System. The detention basin(s) or components thereof, shall not be maintained in an 
unkempt manner. 

Section 2.12 Water Supply, and Sanitary Sewage Disposal Facilities. 

Water supply in the form of on-site wells shall be provided to serve the uses on the Property, 
approved by the Washtenaw County Health Department. 

Page 285 of 314



Sanitary sewage disposal shall be provided to serve the uses on the Property by on-site septic tanks 
and fields consistent with the plans and specifications approved by the Washtenaw County Health 
Department, with permit to be issued pending well installation. 

Section 2.13 Escrow Amounts. 

Prior to the pre-construction meeting, the Developer shall pay the Township an amount to be 
established by the Township's engineers as an escrow to cover the costs of construction 
administration and inspection of the Site Improvements, and other related infrastructure in the 

Development. The Developer will deposit additional funds from time to time to cover the costs of 
inspections performed by the Township's consultants, as outlined in the Zoning Ordinance and 
engineering standards, or when the escrow amount has been depleted prior to final approval of the 
Site Improvements, and other related infrastructure in the Development. 

Section 2.14 Engineering Approval of Plans. 

In accordance with Superior Township Ordinance and Superior Township Engineering Design 
Specifications, no construction work or grading shall be performed on the Development until 

Engineering Plans are reviewed and approved. 

Section 2.15 Construction Access. 

Developer shall take all reasonable measures requested by the Township to reduce any dirt, mud 
and dust created by trucks traveling to and from the Development during construction. This may 
include regular cleaning of streets, cleaning and replacement of the mud mat at the entrance to the 
Development, as well as deploying a water truck on site when dust conditions create a nuisance 
during the site development stage of construction, the expense of which shall be borne exclusively 
by the Developer. 

Section 2.16 Construction Work Schedule. 

Construction work within the Development (including excavation, demolition, alteration, and 
erection) and construction noises shall be prohibited at all times other than: 

Monday through Saturday from 7:00 A.M. to 6:00 P.M. 

The Township may issue a work permit for hours other than those identified immediately above 

upon written request of the owner or owner's representative. The request must demonstrate unusual 

or unique circumstances relating to the proposed construction hours. 

Section 2.17 Engineering and Certification. 

(a) Developer shall furnish as-built drawing plans signed and sealed by an engineer licensed

in the State of Michigan indicating that the site grading, water transmission system, sanitary
sewer system, storm water conveyance, soil erosion/ sedimentation and detention/retention
facilities have been constructed in substantial accordance with the approved Engineering

Plans. Format shall be as requested by Township Engineer. All inspections for water and
sewer (sanitary and storm) installations are to be performed by the Township engineers,

Page 286 of 314



with applicable fees paid by Developer. The Township will review and approve 
improvements in accordance with the Township "Engineering Design Specification for Site 
Improvements" and other applicable laws and ordinances. 

(b) Developer shall furnish as-built drawing plans in digital format that is in conformance with
the Charter Township of Superior Standards for Submitting Digital As-Built Drawings,
Revised March 2007 as amended.

Section 2.18 Underground Utilities. 

The Developer shall install all electric, telephone and other communication systems underground 
in accordance with requirements of the applicable utility company and applicable Township 
Ordinances. No underground utility structures, i.e. manholes, shall be permitted in sidewalks or 
driveways per Superior Charter Township Engineering Standards. 

Section 2.19 Site Grading 

(a) The Developer or the Developer's representative shall submit as-built plot plans and certify
that the as-built lot grading conforms to the Township approved site and engineering
drawings within industry standards, and that building setbacks conform to the Township
approved site and engineering drawings. This certification shall be prepared by and bear
the seal of a professional land surveyor licensed in the State of Michigan.

(b) The Township shall have the right to spot-check certification grades at its own discretion.
The final certificate of use and occupancy of each building shall be withheld until the lot
grading/setback certification is received and approved by the Township. The Township
shall have the right, at its own discretion, to waive some or all of the lot grading and
building setback certification requirements.

ARTICLE III. 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

Section 3.01 Amendment and Modifications. 

No amendment or modification to or of this Agreement shall be binding upon any party hereto 
until such amendment or modification is reduced to writing and executed by all parties. 

Section 3.02 Governing Law. 

This Agreement shall be governed in all respects, whether as to validity, construction, performance 

and otherwise, by the laws of the State of Michigan. 

Section 3.03 Township Approval. 

This Agreement has been approved through action of the Township Board at a duly scheduled 
meeting. 

Page 287 of 314



Section 3.04 Developer Approval. 

The signers on behalf of the Developer below represent by their signatures that they represent and 
have authority to bind all owners of legal and equitable title in the Development. 

Section 3.05 Execution in Counterparts. 

This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an 
original and all of which shall constitute one Agreement. The signature of any party to any 
counterpart shall be deemed to be a signature to, and may be appended to, any other counterpart. 

Section 3.06 Preconstruction Meeting with Contractors. 

Prior to the commencement of any grading on the Development, the Developer or such other third 
parties shall schedule a meeting as per the Township's engineering standards with its general 
contractor, construction manager and the Township's applicable departments, officials, and 
consultants to review the applicable policies, procedures, and requirements of the Township with 
respect to construction of the Development. 

Section 3.07 Fees. 

The Developer shall pay for any reviews reasonably necessary to determine conformance of the 
Development to this Agreement. This fee would include review time by the Township Engineer, 
Planner or Attorney. 

Section 3.08 Recordation of Agreement. 

The Township shall record this Agreement with the Washtenaw County Register of Deeds and 
shall provide a true copy to the Developer. All costs associated with the recording of this 
Agreement shall be borne by the Developer. This Agreement will run with the land. 

Page 288 of 314



Section 3.09 Mutual Cooperation. 

Each party to this Agreement shall (i) take all actions required of it by the terms of this Agreement 
as expeditiously as possible; (ii) cooperate, to the fullest extent possible, with the other party to 
this Agreement and with any individual, entity or governmental agency involved in or with 

jurisdiction over the engineering, design, construction or operation of the Development, or any 
other improvements which are undertaken in connection with the foregoing, in the granting and 
obtaining of all easements, rights of way, permits, licenses, approvals and any other consents or 
permissions necessary for the construction or operation thereof, and including cooperation 
reasonably necessary to obtain loans or grants; (iii) execute and deliver all reasonable documents 
necessary to accomplish the purposes and intent of this Agreement, including, but not limited to, 

such documents or agreements as may be required by the lenders with respect to the Development 

to secure the financing from such lenders; and (iv) use its reasonable efforts to assist the other 
party to this Agreement in the discharge of their respective obligations hereunder. 

CERTIFICATION STATEMENT 

I, Lynette Findley, the duly qualified Clerk of the Charter Township of Superior, Washtenaw 
County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution 
adopted at a regular meeting of the Charter Township of Superior Board held on October 21, 2024 
and that public notices of said meeting were given pursuant to Act No. 267, Public Acts of 
M chigan, 1976, as amended. 

10/21/2024 
Date Certified 

Page 289 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSIDP OF SUPERIOR 

WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING GENERAL APPROPRIATIONS ACT: 

2025 BUDGETS FOR ALL FUNDS 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2024-59B

DATE: DECEMBER 12, 2024 

WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Superior Board of Trustee's has carefully 
reviewed the Township's current and projected financial needs, and 

WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Superior Board of Trustees recognizes its 
responsibility to the citizens of Superior Township to carefully monitor the Township funds and 
provide for the needs of the Township, and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Charter Township of Superior has carefully 
considered the projected revenues and expenditures for the coming year, and 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Charter Township of Superior 
Board of Trustee's adopt the proposed budgets for the 2025 calendar year: the General Fund 
Budget by activity dated December 12, 2024, the Fire fund Budget dated December 12, 2024, the 
Building Fund budget dated December 12, 2024, the Law Fund budget dated December 12, 
2024, the Park Fund Budget dated December 12, 2024, the Utility Fund Budget dated December 
12, 2024, The Streetlight Budget dated December 12, 2024, and the Side Street Maintenance 
fund budget dated December 12, 2024. The Board agrees to approve the following table: 

Fund Revenues Expenditures Transfers Appropriations 

General $2,776,004 $2,425,485 $412,338 $61,819 

Fire $3,462,486 $2,879,002 $583,484 -0-

Law Enforcement $2,980,769 $2,124,033 $856,736 -0-

Building $571,100 $387,532 $183,568 -0-

Parks $437,538 $522,538 -0- $85,000 

Streetlights $26,500 $26,500 -0- -0-

Side Street Maint. $93,700 $93,700 -0- -0-

Amer. Rescue Plan $703,413 $703,413 -0- -0-

Utilities $5,144,861 $4,879,800 $265,061 -0-

Legal Defense -0- $20,000 -0- $20,000 

Page 290 of 314



CERTIFICATION STATEMENT 
I, Angela Robinson, the duly qualified Clerk of the Charter Township of Superior, Washtenaw 
County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution 
adopted at a special meeting of the Charter Township of Superior Board held on December 12, 
2024 and that public notices of said meeting were given pursuant to Act No. 267, Public Acts of 
Michigan, 1976, as amended. 

Angela Robinson, Township Clerk Date Certified
12/12/2024

Page 291 of 314

Christina Benitez
Line

Christina Benitez
Line



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 

WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION TO ESTABLISH AND APPOINT MEMBERS TO THE ZONING 

ORDINANCE REWRITE STEERING COMMITTEE 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2024-60A 

DATE: OCTOBER 21, 2024 

WHEREAS, the Superior Charter Township Board of Trustees, on April 2024, approved 

Resolution No. 2024-22 authorizing the Township to contract with Carlisle Wortman Associates 

(CWA) to undertake a comprehensive rewrite of Zoning Ordinance No. 174, originally adopted 

August 14, 2008; and 

WHEREAS, significant progress has been made on the reorganization and restructuring 

of the existing Zoning Ordinance to improve clarity, ease of use, and functionality for the general 

public, applicants, Township staff, and the Planning Commission; and 

WHEREAS, the next phase of the rewrite project involves amending the zoning 

language, with initial drafts of Articles 1-4 anticipated to be ready for review by October or 

November 2024; and 

WHEREAS, a Zoning Ordinance Steering Committee ("Steering Committee") is 

necessary to assist with planning, stakeholder engagement, policy development, and reviewing 

the proposed changes to ensure alignment with the revised 2024 Master Plan, community 

character, and goals for sustainable development; and 

WHEREAS, at the September 25, 2024, Planning Commission meeting, three (3) 

Planning Commissioners-Jay Gardner, Thomas Brennan, and Nahid Sanii-Yahyai-were 

identified to serve on the Steering Committee; and 

WHEREAS, the Steering Committee is anticipated to meet no more than six ( 6) times, 

one (1) hour prior to regularly scheduled Planning Commission meetings, with the possibility of 

additional meetings outside regular meeting times, leading to a question of whether additional 

compensation is warranted for such time; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Superior Charter Township Board 

of Trustees hereby: 

1. Approves the establishment of the Zoning Ordinance Steering Committee for the purpose

of providing oversight, engaging stakeholders, recommending policy updates, and

reviewing the draft zoning ordinance.

Page 292 of 314



Page 293 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 
WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION TO MOVE THE REPORTING OF THE TOWNSHIP CONTROLLER 
TO THE TOWNSHIP CLERK'S OFFICE 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2024-60B 

DATE: NOVEMBER 18, 2024 

WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Superior is committed to ensuring the most 
efficient and effective administrative and financial reporting structure; and 

WHEREAS, the Township recognizes the need for clear lines of communication and 
reporting within its government structure to optimize operations; and 

WHEREAS, it is a typical reporting structure for a township controller to report to the 
Township Clerk's office in many municipalities, which has proven to be effective; and 

WHEREAS, such a reporting structure facilitates better coordination, oversight, and 
accountability of the financial operations of the township; and 

WHEREAS, the Township Clerk is the official record keeper of the Township and works 
in concert with the Controller and Treasurer's Office to review and execute the release of funds, 
ensuring a high level of fiscal responsibility and transparency; and 

WHEREAS, under MCL Section 41.65, the Township Clerk is mandated to maintain 
custody of all township records, books, and papers, and is responsible for the detailed accounting 
records of the township, including journals and ledgers that reflect the assets, liabilities, fund 
equities, revenues, and expenditures for each fund, ensuring proper financial oversight and 
adherence to the uniform chart of accounts prescribed by the state treasurer. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Charter Township of Superior 
hereby moves the reporting of the Township Controller to the Township Clerk's Office, aligning 
the reporting structure with the statutory duties outlined in MCL Section 41.65. 

CERTIFICATION STATEMENT 
I, Lynette Findley, the duly qualified Clerk of the Charter Township of Superior, Washtenaw 
County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution 
adopted at a regular meeting of the Charter Township of Superior Board held on November 18, 
2024 and that public notices of said meeting were given pursuant to Act No. 267, Public Acts of 
Michigan, 1976, as amended. 

__________________________________ 11/20/2024 
Lynette Findley, Township Clerk                                         Date Certified 

Page 294 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 

WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE PURCHASE FOR UTILITY DEPARTMENT HEAVY 

DUTY EQUIPMENT 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2024-61A

DATE: OCTOBER 21, 2024 

WHEREAS, the Superior Township Utility Department needs to purchase heavy duty 
equipment for its growing maintenance demands throughout the Township. 

WHEREAS, equipment such as a Compact Track loader has been costly and rented 
annually to cut and remove overgrown brush from areas that require access to water valves or 
hydrants. 

WHEREAS, he need for heavy equipment is becoming greater to adequately repair 
main breaks and address other needs for digging. 

WHEREAS, it is recommended that Charter Township of Superior Board of Trustees 
approve the purchase of a Case TV3 70B compact track loader with attachments (pallet fork, 
HD dirt bucket with bolt on cutting edge, Paladin Bradco Ultra HD high flow shark brush 
cutter), a Kobelco SK85CS-7 and a GVWR equipment trailer from Southeastern Equipment 
Co. ofNovi, Michigan via MiDeal in the amount of$251,108.00. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT BE RESOLVED that the Charter Township of Superior 
Board of Trustees hereby approves heavy duty equipment be purchased for the Utility 
Department from Southeastern Equipment Company for a total amount of $251,108.00. 

CERTIFICATION STATEMENT 

I, Lynette Findley, the duly qualified Clerk of the Charter Township of Superior, Washtenaw 
County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a 
resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Charter Township of Superior Board held on 
October 21, 2024 and that public notices of said meeting were given pursuant to Act No. 267, 
Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, as amended. 

10/21/2024 
Date Certified 

Page 295 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 
WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE PURCHASE OF FIRE NOZZLES AND 
APPLIANCES USING FEMA ASSISTANCE TO FIREFIGHTERS GRANT FUNDS 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2024-61B 

DATE: NOVEMBER 18, 2024 

WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Superior Fire Department was awarded the Fiscal 
Year 2023 FEMA Assistance to Firefighters Grant (AFG) under award number EMW-2023-FG-
05927 on July 8, 2024, for the purchase of fire nozzles and appliances; and 

WHEREAS, this grant is part of a regional effort involving the fire departments of 
Pittsfield Township, Northfield Township, and the City of Belleville, with a total project budget 
of $156,401.00, including $142,182.72 in Federal funding and a required 10% local cost share of 
$14,218.28; and 

WHEREAS, a request for bids was issued via Bidnet/Biddirect, with bid submissions 
received and opened on October 30, 2024, by Nancy Mason and Fire Chief Vic Chevrette; and 

WHEREAS, two bids were received and reviewed: MacQueen Company of St. Paul, 
Minnesota, with a bid amount of $101,311.00 (including a 20% factory discount), and Municipal 
Emergency Services (MES) of Sandy Hook, Connecticut, with a bid amount of $123,175.57; and 

WHEREAS, the bid from MacQueen Company was deemed the lowest responsible bid 
and met all the required specifications for the purchase of the nozzles and appliances needed for 
the Superior Township Fire Department and its regional partners. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Charter Township of Superior 
hereby approves the purchase of fire nozzles and appliances as specified in the bid from 
MacQueen Company, in the amount of $101,311.00, using the awarded FEMA grant funds and 
authorizes the allocation of the required local cost share of $14,218.28. The Township Board 
directs the Supervisor, Clerk, and Fire Chief to execute all necessary documents for the 
procurement, ensuring compliance with the grant terms and maintaining proper financial records 
per MCL Section 41.65. 

CERTIFICATION STATEMENT 
I, Lynette Findley, the duly qualified Clerk of the Charter Township of Superior, Washtenaw 
County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution 
adopted at a regular meeting of the Charter Township of Superior Board held on November 18, 
2024 and that public notices of said meeting were given pursuant to Act No. 267, Public Acts of 
Michigan, 1976, as amended. 

__________________________________ 11/20/2024 
Lynette Findley, Township Clerk Date Certified 

Page 296 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 

WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE SALE OF TRAILER MOUNTED GENERA TOR 

FOR UTILITY DEPARTMENT 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2024-62A

DATE: OCTOBER 21, 2024 

WHEREAS, the Superior Township Utility Department owns a 20-year-old trailer 
mounted generator that was used for the old Clark Road Lift Station during power outages. 

WHEREAS, the trailer mounted generator is no longer needed after the new Lift 
Station was constructed. 

WHEREAS, the trailer mounted generator is valued at approximately $15,000.00 and 
YCUA is offering to buy it for $18,000.00. 

WHEREAS, it is recommended that Supervisor, Ken Schwartz, approve the sale of 
the trailer mounted generator to YCUA for $18,000.00. 

WHEREAS, MCL 42.10 (m) authorizes the Township supervisor to "conduct all 
sales of personal property which the township board may authorize to be sold." 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT BE RESOLVED that the Charter Township of Superior 
Board of Trustees hereby authorizes the Supervisor to sell the trailer mounted generator for 
the amount of $18,000.00 and deposit the proceeds into the Superior Township Utility 
Department Capital Reserves Fund. 

CERTIFICATION ST A TEMENT 

I, Lynette Findley, the duly qualified Clerk of the Charter Township of Superior, Washtenaw 
County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a 
resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Charter Township of Superior Board held on 
October 21, 2024 and that public notices of said meeting were given pursuant to Act No. 267, 
Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, as amended. 

10/21/2024 
Date Certified 

Page 297 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 
WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE ARPA ALLOCATION TO WASHTENAW COUNTY 
FOR EAST WASHTENAW COMMUNITY AND RECREATION CENTER 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2024-62B 

DATE: NOVEMBER 18, 2024 

WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Superior has been allocated American Rescue 
Plan Act (ARPA) funds from the U.S. Department of Treasury for the purpose of supporting 
community development initiatives; and 

WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Superior recognizes the need for enhanced 
community and recreational facilities to serve its residents and the surrounding areas; and 

WHEREAS, the Township, in collaboration with Washtenaw County, has identified the 
development of the East Washtenaw Community and Recreation Center (EWCRC) as a critical 
project to meet these needs, with a proposed site at 1500 Stamford Rd., a 26-acre property owned 
by Washtenaw County and spanning both Ypsilanti and Superior Township; and 

WHEREAS, the Township intends to allocate $445,472.52 of its ARPA funds to support 
the planning, development, and initial operational phases of the EWCRC, with the understanding 
that a formal agreement will be drafted and finalized before December 31, 2024, in compliance 
with federal ARPA regulations; and 

WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Superior will remain the primary recipient of the 
ARPA funds, and Washtenaw County will be designated as a subrecipient, subject to federal 
reporting and evaluation requirements as stipulated by the U.S. Department of Treasury and the 
Township’s ARPA guidelines; and 

WHEREAS, the allocation of these funds will support Washtenaw County’s efforts to 
secure architects and engineers through a competitive RFP process, establish a strategy for 
affordability and accessibility of the center for Superior Township residents, and provide 
quarterly progress reports to the Township Board regarding the project; and 

WHEREAS, the approval of this allocation is contingent upon future review and 
approval of a formal subrecipient agreement by the Charter Township of Superior Administrative 
Officials and the Washtenaw County Board of Commissioners. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Charter Township of Superior 
hereby approves the allocation of $445,472.52 of its ARPA funds to Washtenaw County for the 
development of the East Washtenaw Community and Recreation Center and directs the 

Page 298 of 314



Township Attorney to draft an agreement with Washtenaw County, subject to final review and 
approval by the Township Clerk, Treasurer, and Supervisor. The Township is further directed to 
comply with all federal reporting requirements and ensure proper financial oversight in 
accordance with U.S. Department of Treasury guidelines. 

CERTIFICATION STATEMENT 
I, Lynette Findley, the duly qualified Clerk of the Charter Township of Superior, Washtenaw 
County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution 
adopted at a regular meeting of the Charter Township of Superior Board held on November 18, 
2024 and that public notices of said meeting were given pursuant to Act No. 267, Public Acts of 
Michigan, 1976, as amended. 

__________________________________ _11/20/2024__ 
Lynette Findley, Township Clerk Date Certified 

Page 299 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 

WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE REPLACEMENT FENCE FOR PROSPECT 

POINTE LIFT STATION   

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2024-63A

DATE: OCTOBER 21, 2024 

WHEREAS, the Prospect Pointe Lift Station was built, to serve as a temporary 

structure but has now been made a permanent structure. 

WHEREAS, the old chain link fence is now in need of replacement, the Prospect 

Pointe Lift Station will be more secure and less likely a target for tampering with iron rod 

fencing. 

WHEREAS, it is recommended that Superior Charter Township Board of Trustees 

approve the replacement of the Prospect Pointe Lift Station fence in the amount of $31,400.00 

by Precision Fence LLC of Ypsilanti, Michigan. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT BE RESOLVED that the Superior Charter Township 

Board of Trustees hereby approves replacement of Prospect Pointe Lift Station fencing for the 

amount of $31,400.00. 

CERTIFICATION STATEMENT
I, Lynette Findley, the duly qualified Clerk of the Charter Township of Superior, Washtenaw 
County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a 
resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Charter Township of Superior Board held on 
October 21, 2024 and that public notices of said meeting were given pursuant to Act No. 267, 
Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, as amended.

__________________________________
Lynette Findley, Township Clerk

10/21/2024 
Date Certified

Page 300 of 314

Christina Benitez
Line



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 
WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION TO AFFIRM THE 2025 SALARY OF 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR CLERK  

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2024-63B 

DATE: DECEMBER 16, 2024 

WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Superior Board of Trustees approved the 2025 
budgets for all funds on December 16, 2024, and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees specifically designated the compensation for the full-
time elected officials and the Board of Trustees, and  

WHEREAS, the Township auditors have requested that the compensation for the full-
time elected officials and the Board of Trustees be approved by the Board of Trustees by 
resolution, and 

WHEREAS, the residents of Township continue to receive service that reflects 
positively on the employees, officials and trustees of the Township. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that compensation for the Clerk be $101,391 
which is two percent (2.0%) higher in 2025 than her compensation of $99,403 in 2024 as listed 
in the 2025 budget adopted by the Charter Township of Superior Board of Trustees. 

CERTIFICATION STATEMENT 
I, Angela Robinson, the duly qualified Clerk of the Charter Township of Superior, Washtenaw 
County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution 
adopted at a regular meeting of the Charter Township of Superior Board held on December 16, 
2024, and that public notices of said meeting were given pursuant to Act No. 267, Public Acts of 
Michigan, 1976, as amended. 

__________________________________  12/16/2024 
Angela Robinson, Township Clerk                                      Date Certified 

Page 301 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 
WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT THE MICHIGAN NATURAL RESOURCES TRUST FUND 
GRANT AGREEMENT FOR THE SUPERIOR GREENWAY NATURE PRESERVE 

ACQUISITION 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2024-64A 

DATE: OCTOBER 21, 2024 

WHEREAS, Charter Township of Superior in the County of Washtenaw has applied for 
and been awarded a Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund (MNRTF) grant to assist in the 
acquisition of land for the Superior Greenway Nature Preserve; and 

WHEREAS, the Michigan Department of Natural Resources (DNR) has provided a grant 
agreement, project number TF23-0058, for the acquisition of 161.84 acres of land in Superior 
Charter Township for the purpose of resource protection and public outdoor recreation; and 

WHEREAS, the total project cost is estimated at $1,540,000.00, with the MNRTF 
providing $1,020,000.00 in grant funds (67%) and the Township committing to provide 
$520,000.00 as matching funds (33%); and 

WHEREAS, the acquisition of this property will enhance the quality of life for 
Township residents and visitors by preserving open space, protecting natural resources, and 
providing opportunities for outdoor recreation; and 

WHEREAS, the Township must comply with the terms and conditions outlined in the 
MNRTF grant agreement, including financial documentation, site maintenance, and public 
access requirements; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Superior Charter Township Board of 
Trustees hereby: 

1. Accepts the terms of the Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund Grant Agreement for
the Superior Greenway Nature Preserve Acquisition Project No. TF23-0058.

2. Commits to providing matching funds in the amount of $520,000.00, representing
33% of the total project cost, as required by the grant agreement.

3. Maintain satisfactory financial accounts, documents, and records to make them
available to the DEPARTMENT for auditing at reasonable times in perpetuity.

4. Regulate the use of the property acquired and reserved under this Agreement to assure
the use thereof by the public on equal and reasonable terms.

5. Comply with any and all terms of said Agreement including all terms not specifically set
forth in the foregoing portions of this Resolution.

CERTIFICATION STATEMENT 
I, Lynette Findley, the duly qualified Clerk of the Charter Township of Superior, Washtenaw 
County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution 
adopted at a regular meeting of the Charter Township of Superior Board held on October 21, 2024

Page 302 of 314



and that public notices of said meeting were given pursuant to Act No. 267, Public Acts of 
Michigan, 1976, as amended. 

__________________________________ 10/21/2024 
Lynette Findley, Township Clerk                                      Date Certified 

Page 303 of 314



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR 
WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION TO AFFIRM THE 2025 SALARY OF  
THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR TREASURER 

RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2024-64B 

DATE: DECEMBER 16, 2024 

WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Superior Board of Trustees approved the 2025 
budgets for all funds on December 16, 2024, and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees specifically designated the compensation for the full-
time elected officials and the Board of Trustees; and  

WHEREAS, the Township auditors have requested that the compensation for the full-
time elected officials and the Board of Trustees be approved by the Board of Trustees by 
resolution; and 

WHEREAS, the residents of the Township continue to receive service that reflects 
positively on the employees, officials, and Trustees of the Township. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that compensation for the Treasurer be 
$101,391.00 which is two percent (2.0%) higher in 2025 than her compensation of $99,403.00 in 
2024 as listed in the 2025 budget adopted by the Charter Township of Superior Board of 
Trustees. 

CERTIFICATION STATEMENT 
I, Angela Robinson, the duly qualified Clerk of the Charter Township of Superior, Washtenaw 
County, Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution 
adopted at a regular meeting of the Charter Township of Superior Board held on December 16, 
2024, and that public notices of said meeting were given pursuant to Act No. 267, Public Acts of 
Michigan, 1976, as amended. 

__________________________________  12/16/2024 
Angela Robinson, Township Clerk                                      Date Certified 

Page 304 of 314



This Page Is Intentionally Left Blank 

Page 305 of 314



Page 306 of 314



Page 307 of 314



Page 308 of 314



Page 309 of 314



Page 310 of 314



Page 311 of 314



Page 312 of 314



Page 313 of 314



Page 314 of 314


	1. February 18, 2025 Regular Meeting Agenda TABBED
	1.1 This Page Is Intentionally Left Blank
	2. December 12, 2024 Special Meeting Minutes Draft. w.statement (signed)
	3. December 16, 2024 (SIGNED)
	4. January 21, 2025 Reg Minutes w Docs (SIGNED)
	January 21, 2025 Regular Minutes DRAFT
	Amendment to Add Section 159.09A. Ordinance 159, the Charter Township of Superior Danbury Park Manor Tax Exemption Ordinance is amended by adding a new Section 159.09A. Section 159.09A shall read in its entirety as follows:
	Amendment to Add Section 159.09B. Ordinance 159, the Charter Township of Superior Danbury Park Manor Tax Exemption Ordinance is amended by adding a new Section 159.09B. Section 159.09B shall read in its entirety as follows:
	Amendment to Add Section 159.09C. Ordinance 159, the Charter Township of Superior Danbury Park Manor Tax Exemption Ordinance is amended by adding a new Section 159.09C. Section 159.09C hall read in its entirety as follows:
	Amendment to Add Section 159.09D Ordinance 159, the Charter Township of Superior Danbury Park Manor Tax Exemption Ordinance is amended by adding a new Section 159.09D.Section 159.09D hall read in its entirety as follows:

	SATT

	4.1 This Page Is Intentionally Left Blank - Copy
	6. Building Department Report 2-10-2025
	7. Fire Department Run Report January 2025
	7.1 0093_001
	8. ADOPTED P&R Comm minutes 12-16-24
	8.1 January 2025 In and Out of Area Time (3)
	10. Utility Department Report February 17 2025
	11. 2-2025 ASSESSING DEPARTMENT MONTHLY REPORT for JANUARY
	12. 2025-1-16 P&Z Report
	12.1 Accounting Report - Feb
	14. Monthly Financials
	14.1 This Page Is Intentionally Left Blank - Copy (5)
	15. C2PST Infographic February 2025
	15.0 3968_001 John Mackson
	15.1 4127_001 (Thank You)
	15.2 Answer to Dave Phillips Letter to the Board
	15.3 Closure Notice
	15.4 Land Preservation Meeting
	15.5 Garrett's Space CE Memo - Grobbel 2_11_25 (FINAL)_
	15.6 GS
	15.7 This Page Is Intentionally Left Blank - Copy (4)
	16. 2025.02.12 Danbury Park PILOT ordinance amendment
	Section 1. Amendment to Add Section 159.09A. Ordinance 159, the Charter Township of Superior Danbury Park Manor Tax Exemption Ordinance is amended by adding a new Section 159.09A. Section 159.09A shall read in its entirety as follows:
	Section 2. Amendment to Add Section 159.09B. Ordinance 159, the Charter Township of Superior Danbury Park Manor Tax Exemption Ordinance is amended by adding a new Section 159.09B. Section 159.09B shall read in its entirety as follows:
	Section 3. Amendment to Add Section 159.09C. Ordinance 159, the Charter Township of Superior Danbury Park Manor Tax Exemption Ordinance is amended by adding a new Section 159.09C. Section 159.09C shall read in its entirety as follows:
	Section 4. Amendment to Add Section 159.09D Ordinance 159, the Charter Township of Superior Danbury Park Manor Tax Exemption Ordinance is amended by adding a new Section 159.09D. Section 159.09D shall read in its entirety as follows:

	17. Resolution 2025-02, Board of Review Appointments
	17.1 This Page Is Intentionally Left Blank - Copy (3)
	18. Resolution 2025-07, Planning Commission Appointments
	19. Resolution 2025-08, Clay Hill Farms Agreement
	19.1 2025.02.12 Lease amendment
	1. The term of the lease, as set forth in paragraph 2 of the original lease, is amended from ten (10) years to fifteen (15) years, with an expiration date of October 16, 2039, contingent on WRA securing a USDA award under the cost sharing program for ...
	2. In the event that WRA fails to secure such an award by no later than August 1, 2025 this amendment to the lease shall be null and void and the lease term will revert to original lease term of ten (10) years.
	Signatures on following page

	20. Resolution 2025-09, Laptop Purchase
	20.1 Dell Quote
	21. Resolution 2025-10, Rental Housing Certification Agreement
	21.0 Rental Housing Certification Agreement 2025-02-10
	21.1 Superior Twp Rental Proposal (revised 2025-02-10)
	21.5 Resolution 2025-11, Permit MDNR to Proceed with Public Hearing
	21.6 BOT Memo-20250211
	BOT Memo-20250211.pdf
	BOT Memo-20250211.pdf
	Ordinance-28-and-40-Hunting-1.pdf
	mcl-451-1994-III-2-1-SHOOTING-AND-HUNTING-GROUNDS-419.pdf
	HUNTING AREA CONTROL Division&&&&Part&&&&419&&&&HUNTING AREA CONTROL
	324.41901 Section&&&&324.41901 &&&&Regulation and prohibitions in certain areas; powers of department; area closures; hearings, investigations, studies, and statement of facts; regulations.
	324.41902 Section&&&&324.41902 &&&&Submission of findings and recommendations; approval or disapproval of prescribed controls; ordinance; certified copy; repeal of ordinance; enforcement; rules.
	324.41903 Section&&&&324.41903 &&&&Closure notice signs; materials, form, placement, maintenance, spacing, publication of notice; rescission of closure.
	324.41904 Section&&&&324.41904 &&&&Prohibitions against discharge of firearms; exceptions.
	324.41905 Section&&&&324.41905 &&&&Violation of part or rules as misdemeanor.




	21.7 Resolution 2025-12, Approve Contract with PPM Tree Service and Arbor Care
	21.8 PPM 2025 RFB - Superior Township 20250131
	21.9 PPM Company Qualifications
	21.10 Burman Geddes Pathway Tree Removals.docx
	21.11 Owen Geddes Pathway Tree Removals
	21.20 Draft Conservation Deed Restriction.3. Per Lucas-Fisher 1-24-25 Discussion (1)
	“Open and common space and conservation easement protection; maintenance and permitted activities within respective open space and conservation areas.
	1. A substantial portion of the Property is shown as unimproved areas on the Area Plan. Areas restricted by conservation easement shall be restricted from use as provided below. Other areas, outside of conservation easement, shall be restricted from t...
	2. Areas of the Property restricted by deed restriction or conservation easement shall have a limited use in accordance with the terms of the respective restriction or conservation easement, as applicable, subject to the terms of the Zoning and Land U...
	3. Prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy for the main residential structure to be newly constructed, the areas on the Property which consist of a substantial amount of open and wooded space, regulated wetlands, wetland buffers, the pond,...
	4. Until the conservation easement is established, GS shall preserve from active construction and development the 58-acre area in a manner not inconsistent with the preservation described in paragraph 1.4.3 above.
	5. In all events, all areas on the Property shall be maintained in good faith consistent with the objectives of the approved Final Site Plan, and the requirements of this Agreement.
	6. In the event GS is unable to find an entity to partner with to establish a conservation easement, GS agrees to execute a deed restriction that provides for the use of the 58-acres consistent with the restrictions described in paragraph 1.4.3 above,...
	1. All of the Recitations stated above are incorporated as part of this agreement.
	2. GS grants, conveys, and covenants to Superior Charter Township, a conservation restriction, establishing a restriction on the use of the Conservation Property, prohibiting the following, subject to the provisions below:
	3. Subject to and in accordance with the terms of this agreement, and subject to approvals required by law, the Conservation Property shall not be restricted from customary use, such as hiking and nature observation, including customary ancillary acti...
	4. The Township, as grantee and beneficiary, accepts the grant, conveyance and covenant of this conservation restriction, subject to and in accordance with the terms of this agreement.
	5. This conservation restriction shall have as its sole beneficiary Superior Charter Township and shall be enforceable by the Township. While the general public, or other persons or entities, may incidentally benefit from it, this conservation restric...
	6. If required by the Township, GS shall continue to pursue a suitable conservation easement arrangement for the Conservation Property as specified in Section 1.4 of the Development Agreement, referenced above. However, until a suitable conservation e...
	7. At such a time in the future as a conservation easement is secured with a suitable grantee and recorded, the conservation deed restriction created in this agreement shall cease to be effective and enforceable, and this agreement and the deed restri...

	22. 2024-58A, Approve the Updated Pollicy and Procedure for use and operation of vehicles (SIGNED)
	22.1 2024-58B, adopting millage rates 2025 REVISED.FINAL
	Blank Page

	23. 2024-59A, Approving Garretts Space Development Agreement (SIGNED)
	23.1 2024-59B Adopting General Appropriations Act 2025 Budgets for All Funds
	Blank Page

	24. 2024-60A, Establish and appoint members to the zoning ordinance rewrite steering committee (SIGNED)
	24.1 2024-60B, Reporting of Township Controller to the Township Clerk
	25. 2024-61A, Approve Purchase For Utility Departent Heavy Duty Equipment (SIGNED)
	25.1 2024-61B, APPROVE THE PURCHASE OF FIRE NOZZLES AND APPLIANCES USING FEMA ASSISTANCE TO FIREFIGHTERS GRANT FUNDS
	26. 2024-62A, Approve the sale of trailer mounted generator for utility department (SIGNED)
	26.1 2024-62B, Allocate Remaining ARPA Funds
	27. 2024-63A, Approve the Replacement Fence for Prospect Pointe Lift Station
	27.1 2024-63B, Affirm Salary of Clerk
	28. 2024-64A, Approve to Accept the Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund Grant Agreement for the Superior Greenway Nature Preserve Acquisition
	28.1 2024-64B, Affirm Salary of Treasurer
	28.2 This Page Is Intentionally Left Blank - Copy (2)
	29. Record of Disbursement - Feb 25



